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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

D/17S/ON OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

603-271-9474 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9474

Fax:603-271-4230 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

November 17, 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to enter into a Retroactive, Sole Source amendment to an existing
contract with the Contractor listed, in bold below, for the ongoing provision of a Permanent
Supportive Housing Program for individuals, youth, and families who are experiencing chronic
homelessness, by increasing the total price limitation by $230,916 from $8,522,418 to
$8,753,334 and by extending the completion date from August 31, 2022 to August 31, 2023,
as specified in bold in the table below, effective retroactive to September 1, 2022 upon
Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The individual contracts were approved by Governor and Council as specified in the
table below.

Vendor Name

& Code
Area Served

Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

Current

Completion
Date

Revised

Completion
Date

G&C

History

Community
Action

Partnership of
Strafford

County, Dover,
NH

177200-B004

Statewide $154,096 $0 $154,096
June 30,
2023

June 30,
2023

0: 6/19/19

(item #46)

A1: 5/6/20

(item #37)

A2: 6/30/21

(item #47)
A3: 6/29/22

(item #55)

Community
Action

Program
Belknap-
Merrimack

Statewide $346,888 $0 $346,888
June 30,

2023

June 30,
2023

0: 6/19/19

(item #46)

A1: 5/6/20

(Item #37)
A2: 6/30/21

Counties, Inc.,
Concord, NH

177203-B003

(Item #47)

A3: 6/29/22

(Item #55)

0: 6/19/19

Families in

Transition

Manchester,
NH

157730-8001

Concord $528,367 $230,916 $759,283
August 31,

2022

August 31,
2023

(Item #46)
A1: 5/6/20

(Item #37)

A2: 11/18/20

(Item #17)

A3: 6/30/21

(Item #47)

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in proi^j'din^ opportunities for citizens to achieve health and imlependence.
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Vendor Name

& Code

Area

Served

Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

Current

Completion
Date

Revised

Completion
Date

G&C

History

Families In
Transition

Manchester.

NH

157730-8001

Concord $274,340 $0 $274,340
June 30,
2023

June 30.
2023

0: 6/19/19

(Item #46)
A1: 5/6/20

(Hem #37)
A2: 6/30/21

(Item #47)
A3; 6/29/22

(Item #55)

The Lakes
Region Mental
Health Center.

Inc..
Laconia, NH
154480-8001

Laconia $421,578 $0 $421,578
June 30.
2023

June 30.

2023

O; 6/19/19

(Item #46)
A1: 5/6/20

(Item #37)
A2: 6/30/21

(item #47)
A3:6/29/22

(Item #55)

Southwestern

Community
Services. Inc..
Keene. NH

177511-R001

Cheshire &

Sullivan

Counties

$596,733 $0 $596,733
August 31.

2023

August 31.
2023

0:6/19/19

(Item #46)
A1: 5/6/20

(Item #37)
A2:12/2/20

(item #11)
A3: 6/30/21

(item #47)
A4:6/29/22

(Item #55)

Southwestern

Community
Services. Inc.,
Keene. NH

177511-R001

Statewide $346,208 $0 $346,208
June 30,
2023

June 30.
2023

0: 6/19/19

(Item #46)
A1: 5/6/20

(Item #37)
A2: 8/30/21

(Item #47)
A3: 6/29/22
(Item #55)

Southwestern

Community
Services, inc.,
Keene. NH

177511-R001

Cheshire &

Sullivan

Counties

$1,169,548 $0 $1,169,548
June 30,

2023

June 30.
2023

0: 6/19/19
(Item #46)
A1: 5/8/20

(Item #37)
A2: 6/30/21

(Item #47)
A3: 6/29/22

(Item #55)

The Mental

Health Center

for Southern

New

Hampshire
Deny. NH

174116-R001

Western

Rockingham
County

$1,126,332 $0 $1,126,332
June 30.
2023

June 30,
2023

0: 6/19/19
(Item #46)
A1: 5/6/20

(Item #37)
A2: 6/30/21

(Item #47)
A3: 6/29/22
(Item #55)
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Vendor Name

&Code Area Served
Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

Current

Completion
Date

Revised

Completion
Date

G&G

History

The Mental

Health Center

for Southern

Nevy

Hampshire
Derry, NH

174116-R001

Western

Rockingham
& Coos

Counties

$2,538,755 $0 $2,538,755 July 31.2023 July 31,2023

0; 6/19/19

(Item #46)
A1: 5/6/20

(Item #37)
A:2 12M0

(Item #11)
A3 6/30/21

(Item #47)
A4:6/29/22

(Item #55)

Tri-County
Community

Action

Program Inc.,
Berlin. NH

177195-8009

Statewide $523,288 $0 $523,288
June 30,
2023

June 30,
2023

0; 6/19/19

(Item #46)
A1: 5/6/20

(Item #37)
A2: 6/30/21

(Item #47)
A3: 6/29/22

(Item #55)

Tri-County
Community

Action

Program Inc.,
Berlin, NH

177195-B009

Grafton,
Coos &

Carroll

Counties

$496,285 $0 $496,285
August 31,

2023

August 31.
2023

0:6/19/19

(Item #46)
A1: 5/6/20

(Item #37)
A2: 6/30/21

(Item #47)

A3: 6/29/22

(Item #55)
A4:11/22/22

(Item # TED)

Total: $8,622,418 $230,916 $8,763,334

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line
Items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the
Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive because the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) previously required a merger of two separate contracts (Continuum of
Care [CoC] Concord Community Leasing II, approved June 19, 2019, Item #46 and CoC
Concord Community Permanent Housing, approved August 14. 2019, Item #9) offering
similar services, by this Contractor, which resulted in this one consolidated contract for which
this year's renewal grant award was not received in time to negotiate the terms of an
amendment to be effective prior to September 1, 2022. Retroactive approval of this
agreement, will allow the continuation of services critical to the Department's provision of
Permanent Supportive Housing services in Merrimack County.
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This request is Sole Source Ijecause federal regulations require all procurement
efforts to be directed by HUD which requires the Department to specify the vendor's name
during the annual, federal, CoC competitive application process for up to a year prior to the
grant award being issued. As the Collaborative Applicant, the Department is required to issue
a Request for Proposals, through the CoC, based on the HUD CoC Program Notice of
Funding Opportunity (NOFO). HUD reviews and scores vendor applications based on federal
rank and review policy, and scoring tools, created to match the federal NOFO. HUD
subsequently awards funding based on strict federal criteria specifying eligible activities,
populations to be served, expected performance outcomes, and time frames for the
application competition and subsequent Departmental agreements. The Department receives
notification of the awards and signed grant agreements from HUD several months later; at
which time agreements, such as that contained in this request, can be executed.

The purpose of this request is for the one contractor listed above, in bold, to continue
providing a Permanent Supportive Housing (PSH) program that delivers rental assistance,
associated administrative services and supportive services, including case management, to
help individuals, youth and families who are experiencing chronic homelessness obtain and
remain in permanent housing. Per a request from HUD, the contract end date is being
extended by one year, though there are no renewal options left on this contract.

This program will serve approximately 16 households comprised of approximately 22
individuals, at any given time annually.

Using the federally recommended Housing First model, and the development of
Stabilization and Crisis Management plans, the Contractor provides Housing Stability Case
Management and facilitates each participants relocation to sustained permanent housing.
Additionally, the Contractor works to maximize each participant's ability to live more
independently by providing connections to community and mainstream sen/ices.

The Department will monitor services by:

•  Conducting annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and
contractual agreements;

•  Reviewing semi-annual statistical reports, including various demographic
information, as well as income and expense reports, to include match dollars;
and

•  Reviewing data entered into the New Hampshire Homeless Management
Information System, which is the primary reporting tool for outcomes and
activities of shelter and housing programs.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer
permanent housing options and supportive services available, leaving vulnerable individuals,
youth and families experiencing homelessness in unsafe situations without needed support.
Additionally, the Department will be out of compliance with federal regulations, which could
result in a loss of federal funding for these and other types of permanent housing and
supportive senrice programs.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #14.267, FAIN #
NH0060L1T002109.
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Area served; Concord. NH

In the event that the Federal Funds l>ecome no longer available. General Funds will
not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Loil^. Shibinette (j
Commissioner

TKe DeparUntnt ofHtaUh and Human Services'Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05-95-42-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM

100% Federal Funds

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County 177200-B004

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Reused Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42307418 $38,524.00 $0.00 $38,524.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42307421 $38,524.00 $0.00 $38,524.00

2022 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 42307424 $38,524.00 $0.00 $38,524.00
2023 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $38,524.00 $0.00 $38,524.00

Sub Total $154,096.00 $0.00 $154,096.00

Community Action Program Belknap and Merrimack Counties Inc. 177203-8003

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42307418 $86,722.00 $0.00 $86,722.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts,for Program Servces 42307421 $86,722.00 $0.00 $86,722.00
2022 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 42307424 $86,722.00 $0.00 $86,722.00
2023 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $86,722.00 $0.00 $86,722.00

Sub Total $346,888.00 $0.00 $346,888.00

Families in Transition 157730-B001

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42301508 $167,631.00 $0.00 $167,631.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sen/ices 42301510 $248,077.00 $0.00 $248,077.00

2022 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 42301512 $281,761.00 $0.00 $281,761.00
2023 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $105,238.00 $192,430.00 $297,668.00
2024 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $0.00 $38,486.00 $38,486.00

Sub Total $802,707.00 $230,916.00 $1,033,623.00

The Lakes Region Mental Health Center. Inc. 154480-B001

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42307512 $99,835.00 $0.00 $99,835.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42307514 $102,211.00 $0.00 $102,211.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42307517 $107,170.00 $0.00 $107,170.00

2023 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $112,362.00 $0.00 $112,362.00

Sub Total $421,578.00 $0.00 $421,578.00

Southwestern Community Services 177511-R001

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42308208 $453,606.00 $0.00 $453,606.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42308210 $523,538.00 $0.00 $523,538.00
2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42308212 $292,036.00 $0.00 $292,036.00

2022 074-500585 Contracts for Program Services 42307812 $154,330.00 $0.00 $154,330.00
2022 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 42307424 $86,552.00 $0.00 $86,552.00

2023 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $393,696.00 $0.00 $393,696.00

2023 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $178,675.00 $0.00 $178,675.00
2024 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $30,056.00 $0.00 $30,056.00

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Page 1 of 2
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

Sub Total $2.112.489.00l $0.001 $2.112.489.00!

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire 174116-R001

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Trtle Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proqram Services 42307612 $540,665.00 $0.00 $540,665.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42302403 $925,837.00 $0.00 $925,837.00
2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42302406 $286,119.00 $0.00 $286,119.00
2022 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 42302121 $749,227.00 $0.00 $749,227.00

2023 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $299,319.00 $0.00 $299,319.00
2023 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $797,191.00 $0.00 $797,191.00
2024 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $66,729.00 $0.00 $66,729.00

Sub Total $3,665,087.00 $0.00 $3,665,087.00

Tri County Communfty Action Program. Inc. 177195-B009

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proqram Services 42307418 $219,781.00 $0.00 $219,781.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sen/lces 42307421 $220,501.00 $0.00 $220,501.00
2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42301685 $90,399.00 $0.00 $90,399.00

2022 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 42307424 $130,822.00 $0.00 $130,822.00
2023 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 42301688 $338,520.00 $0.00 $338,520.00

2024 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 42301688 $19,550.00 $0.00 $19,550.00

Sub Total $1,019,573.00 $0.00 $1.019.573.00

I  Overall Total! $8.522.418.001 $230.916.00l $8,753.334.001

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Page 2 of 2
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #4

This Amendment to the Continuum of Care, FIT Concord Community PSH contract Is by and between the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and
Families in Transition ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19, 2019, (Item #46), as amended on May 6, 2020, (Item #37), as amended on November 18.
2020, (Item #17), and as most recently amended on June 30, 2021 (Item # 47), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract, as amended, and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.3, Contractor Name, to read:

Families in Transition

2. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

August 31, 2023

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$759,283

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore, Director

5. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Permanent
Supportive Housing Program Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.4., to read:

1.2.4. Grant Numbers

1.2.4.1. NH0060L1T001806 (SFY 2020; July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2020)

1.2.4.2. NH0060L1T001907 (SFY 2021; July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2021)

1.2.4.3. NH0060L1T001907 (SFY 2022; July 1, 2021 - August 31. 2021)

1.2.4.4. NH0060L1T002008 (SFY 2022; Septemberl, 2021 - June 30, 2022)

1.2.4.5. NH0060L1T002008 (SFY 2023; July 1, 2022 - August 31, 2022)

1.2.4.6. NH0060L1T002109 (SFY 2023; September 1, 2022 - June 30. 2023)

1.2.4.7. NH0060L1T002109(SFY2024; July 1, 2023-August 31, 2023)

6. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Permanent
Supportive Housing Program Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.7., Subparagraph 1.2.7.1.,
to read:

1.2.7.1. Not to exceed $759,283 /—fs

Families in Transition A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials^

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-10-A04 Page 1 of 4 Date 11-/1-5/202 2
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7. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Permanent
Supportive Housing Program, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.8., to read:

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for the Continuum of Care Program: •

7/1/2019-

6/30/2020

7/1/2020 -

6/30/2021

7/1/2021 -

6/30/2022

7/1/2022-

8/31/2022

9/1/2022-

6/30/2023

7/1/2023 -

8/31/2023

Total

Budget

1.2.8.1.
Supportive
Services:

$15,956 $27,267 $31,053 $5,302 $26,509 $5,302 $111,389

1.2.8.2. Leasing: $80,780 $148,143 $177,475 $30,557 $161,953 $32,390 $631,298

1.2.8.3.
Administrative

Expenses:
$2,310 $4,082 $4,648 $794 $3,968 $794 $16,596

1.2.8.4.
Total Program
Amount:

$99,046 $179,492 $213,176 $36,653 $192,430 $38,486 $759,283

8. Modify Exhibit 8, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3., Subsection 3.4.5.,
Schedule of Payments, to read:

3.4.5. Schedule of Payments:

3.4.5.1. The Contractor shall submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following
the month In which the services were provided. The Contractor shall ensure
each invoice:

3.4.5.1.1. Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering
with New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

3.4.5.1.2. Is submitted in a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable to
the Department.

3.4.5.1.3. Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the
previous month.

3.4.5.1.4. Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs with each
invoice that may include, but are not limited to, time sheets, payroll
records, receipts for purchases, and proof of expenditures, as
applicable.

3.4.5.1.5. Is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the
supporting documentation for allowable expenses to initiate
payment.

3.4.5.1.6. Is assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting
documentation, and is emailed to: dhhs.bhhsfinance@dhhs.nh.Qov

or mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

9. Add Exhibit B-1 Amendment #4 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

Families In Transition

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-10-A04

A-S-1.3

Page 2 of 4

Contractor Initials

Date

MI)

11/15/2022
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective retroactive to September 1, 2022, upon
Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

11/15/2022

Date

— OocuSlgnwd by:

■M<C$CgB1B4A4H

NameiKaren Hebert

Title: Division Director

11/15/2022

Date

Families in Transition

■^^DocuSigntd by:

Name: Maria Devlin
Title. President & CEO

Families in Transition

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-10-A04

A-S-1,3

Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

^DoeuSlgntd by:•DocuSlgn«d by:

11/16/2022

Diti Namg:°«&ti^^h-uuanno
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Families in Transition A-S-1.3

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-10-A04 Page 4 of 4
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FIT: Concord Community PSH

jCoC Funds ■ NH0060UT002109

Exhibit 6-1 Amendment *4 budget

SFY23 -9/1/22-6/30/23
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHSSHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET MONTHLY

SuQpcrth* Servtcas Te.soe

Leaslnfl

Adminlstrstion

2t% ReqtrtrM Mattdi

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE

SFY24 -7/1/23-8/31/23
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHSSHARE

Activity Namo BUDGET MONTHLY BUDGET MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MONTHLY

Suppoftlva Services $.302

Leasing

Administration

25% Required Match

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE

TOTAL -9/1/22-8/31/23
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET MONTHLY

Supportive Services

Leaslrto

Adminbtration

25% Required Much

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE

Tout W/0 Match 230,916

Families in Transition

SS-2020-BHS<M-PERMA-10-A04

Exhibit B-1 Amendment 44 Budget

Contractor Initials

Page 1 of 1
11/15/2022
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secretary ofStatc of the State ofNew Hampshire, do hereby certify that FAMILIES IN TRANSITION is

a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 13, 1994. 1 further certify that

all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's olTicc have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID: 207982

Certificate Number: 0005779491

ua.

©
5^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 18th day of May A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary ofState
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

/(L Jfklfjj
(Name of tlyelected Of^^f the CorporatioryLLC; cannot be contract signatory)hereby certify that:

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of _ kiMfU/yj id
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The follovra is s true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
. 20^^. at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

VOTED: That _ (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment t>e desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority, f further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporatiorjinrSont^s with theSiate of Slew Hampshlj
all such limitation^ are expressly stated herein.

Dated:

SignaFure

vc

Elected Officer,
Name: UJ

Rev. 03/24/20
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certificate of liability insurance
DATE (uwDDnrrro

05/18/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER{S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If tho coiUficate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, tho policy{los} must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or bo ondoraed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to tho terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the corllflcoto holdar In lieu of such endorsemontis).

PRODUCER

MTM insurance Asaodalas

1320 Osgood Street

North Andover MA 01845

Jeffrey Morrissette

Kf... (878)681-5700 (978)681-5777
AO^ESS: carlificatesQmtminsijre.ccm

INSURERIS) AFrOAOWQ COVERAGE NAKf

INSURER A: PhUadelphis Insurance Company
INaUREO

Families In Transition, Inc and FIT/NHNH

Family Willows Limited Partnership

122 Market Street

Manchester NH 03101

INSURER B; Granite State Healthcere

INSURER C:

INSURER 0!

mSURER E ;

INSURER Fi

THIS IS TO CERTtFYTHAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN tSSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTV/ITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLtCIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUDJECT TO ML THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. UMfrS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE
IRK ^YVO POUCY NUMBER

POLICTEFF
IMMTODnVYVI

POUCY EXP
(MM/OO/YYYYI LIMITS

A

X COMMERCIAL C£NERALLIABa.rTY

€ i X| OCCUR
sbinty inci

PHPK23e507 01/01/2022 01/01/2023

EACH OCCURRENCE , 1.000,000

CLAIUSAIAO
UAMAUb lOKILNlEO
PREMISES rEi oeeumifKMil , 100,000

X Professional U
MED EXP (Any ono Mrion) , 5,000

PE RSONAL B AOVINAIRY , 1,000,000

GEN'LAOORCQATE UWiTAPPLItiS PER;

C^T DlOC
GENERALAQOREQATC , 3,000,000

POLICY X PRODUCTS • CCUnOPAOO ^ 3,000,000
OTHER; t

A

AU1OUOerLE UAOBJTY

PHPK2363512 01/01/2022 01/01/2023

COMBINEO SINGLE UMIT
/E* aecUem) S 1.000.000

ANY AUTO

KEDULEO
rros
NOWNED
TOSONLY

OOOILY INJURY (Pw DerMn) s

X
OVWEO
AUTOS ONLY
HIREO
AUTOS ONLY

SL

A1
DOOLY INJURY (Pw Kddsm) t

X X At
PROPCRTY DAMAGE
(Par Actidenii t

t

A

X UMDRELLA LIAD

EXCESS UAO

X OCCUR

CLAIMSMAOE
PHUB7fi8018 01/01/2022 01/01/2023

EACH OCCURRENCE , 5,000,000

AGGREGATE , 5.000.000

DEO X RETENTION S 10.000 s

B

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS'UAOILITY ytN
ANYpnoPRETTOREWtTNCR/nxncunvE rm
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED? ^
{MandaioiYI"NH) '
If VAB dMcrli© ufidar

O^nPTION OF OPERATIONS bNow

N/A HCHS20220000555 01/01/2022 01/01/2023

V'l PER 1 OTH-
-^1 STATUTE I FR

E.L. EACHACaOENT , 1,000,000

E.U DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE , 1.000,000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LMIT , 1,000,000

A
Crtme Coverage / Employee Dishonesty

PHPK236507 01/01/2022 01/01/2023

Limit

Deductible

500,000

500

OCSCRiPTION OF OPERATIONS 1 LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORO 101. AddlUonil Romarti* Schtdul*. (niy b* tltacM If mort *|»e* U requtrMf)

This certificate of Insurance represents coverage currently In effect end may or may nol bo in compliance with any wrilien conlracL

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELUT10N

State of Now Hampshire Oeparlmcnl of Health

and Humsn Senrices

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL DE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORO CORPORATION. All rights rosorvod.
Tho ACORD namo and logo sro roglstorod marks of ACORD
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a*.

Families
in Transition

Our Mission

The mission of Families in Transition is to prevent and
break the cycle of homelessness.
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Families
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

and

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

December 31, 2021

(With Comparative Totals for 2020)

With Independent Auditor's Report
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l^BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

Families in Transition, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Families in Transition, Inc.
and Subsidiaries (the Organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
of December 31, 2021 and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Organization as of December 31, 2021, and the
changes in their consolidated net assets and their consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there
are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the
Organization's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the
consolidated financial statements are available to be issued.

Maine • New Hampshire • Massochusetts • Connecticut • West Virginia • Arizona

berrydunn.com
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Board of Directors

Families in Transition, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Page 2

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,

individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based
on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, we;

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those

risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion
is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Organization's ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Organization's 2020 consolidated financial statements and, in our
report dated March 29, 2021, expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited consolidated financial
statements. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2020 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated
financial statements from which it has been derived.
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Board of Directors

Families in Transition, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Page 3

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying supplementary information, which consists of the
consolidating statement of financial position as of December 31, 2021, and the related consolidating
statements of activities and functional expenses for the year then ended, is presented for purposes of
additional analysis, rather than to present the financial position and changes in net assets of the
individual entities, and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Manchester, New Hampshire
March 23. 2022
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2021

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Grants and contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses
Other current assets

Total current assets

Replacement reserves
Reserve cash designated for properties
Investments

Investment in related entity
Property and equipment, net
Development in process
Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, net of current portion and unamortized deferred costs

Total liabilities

Net assets

Without donor restrictions • controlling interest
Without donor restrictions - noncontrolling interest

Total without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

2020)

2021 2020

i  2,533,606 $ 3,536,208
54,462 67,946

779,471 1,691,498
148,305 87,753
52.054 60.946

3.567.898 5.444.351

543,800 512,271
787,044 847,300

2,704,576 1,235,007
1,000 1,000

33,326,635 34,425,916
416,959 218,835

. 30.638

>  41.347.912 $ .42.715.318

300,631 $ 345,909
299,996 889,234

281,146 264,583
80.526 134.693

962,299 1.634,419

15.046.178 15.173.778

16.008.477 16.808.197

22,097,454 22,831,326
2.015.189 2.344.795

24,112,643 25,176,121

1.226.792 731.000

25.339.435 25.907.121

$  41.347.912 $ 42.715.316

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-4-
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2020)

Revenue and support

Federal, state and other grant support
Coronavirus Aid. Relief 8r>d Economic Security (CARES) Act

grants

Rental income, net of vacancies

Thrift store sales

Put>lic support
Special events
Developer fees
Unrealized gain on investments
Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Interest income

In-kind donations

Forgiveness of debt
Medicaid reimbursements

Other income

Net assets released from restrictions

Total revenue and support

Expenses
Program activities

Housing
Thrift store

Total program activities
Fundraising
Management and gerteraJ

Total expenses

(Deficiency) excess of revenue and support over
expenses

Capital contributions
Partnership distributions

Change in net assets t>efora redassification of portion
attributable to noncontroOing interest in
subsidiaries

Change in net assets attributat>le to r>oncontrolling interest in
subsidiaries

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Without Donor Restrictions Without Donor Restrictions Total Without Donor With Donor Total Total

• Controllino Interest - Noncontroflino Interest Restrictions Restrictions 2021 2020

S  2,874,142 $ $  2,874,142 S  1,082.148 $ 3,956,290 S 4.932,560

1,670,287 . 1,670,287 1,670,287 4,183,652

2.383.369 - 2,383,369 • 2,383,369 2.492.880

S92.00S . 592,005 - 592,005 410.942

2.500.288 - 2.500,288 • 2,500,288 2.952.466

342.619 . 342,619 - 342,619 420.547
. . . . - 121.670

234.310 . 234.310 - 234,310 103.827

(267.413) - (267.413) . (267,413) (1.362)

2.334 - 2.334 - 2,334 23.045

42.933 - 42.933 - 42,933 9.244

131.267 - 131.267 . 131,267 131.267

415.708 . 415.708 - 415.708 488.990

147.748 - 147.748 - 147,748 201.865

586.356 . 586.356 (586.356) . .

11.655.953 . 11.655.953 495.792 12.151.745 16.471.593

10.274.521 10.274.521 10,274,621 10.277,005

412.054 . 412.054 412.054 415.817

10,686.575 . 10,686.575 10,686,675 10.692,822

809.441 - 809.441 809,441 1.074.295

1.226.658 . 1.226.856 1.226.858 1.186.537

12.722.874 . 12.722.874 12.722.874 12 953.654

(1.066.921) (1.066.921) 495.792 (571,129) 3,517,939

3.751 . 3.751 . 3,751 24.438
. (308) (308) . (308) (1.410)

(1,063,170) (308) (1.063,478) 495,792 (567,686) 3,540.967

329.298 (329.298) . .

(733.872) (329.606) (1.063,478) 495.792 (567,686) 3.540.967

22.831.326 2.344.795 25.176.121 731.000 25.907.121 22.366.154

S  22.097.454 S  2.015.189 S  24.112.643 S  1|226.792 $ 25,339,436 $ 25.907.121

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-5-



DocuSign Envelope ID: B5550DA9-2318-4D93-8060-36BBCE95C71A

FAMILIES IN TRANSITION. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended December 31, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2020)

Program Activities

Salaries and benefits

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Payroll taxes

Total salaries and

benefits

Other expenses
Advertising
Bad debts

Bank charges
Condominium association fees

Consultants

COVID expenses
Depreciation
Events

Food

General insurance

Interest expense
Management fees
Meals and entertainment

Membership dues
Office supplies
Operational expenses - other
Participant expenses
Postage
Printing
Professional fees

Rental subsidies

Repairs and maintenance
Staff development
Taxes

Technology support
Telephone
Travel

Utilities

VISTA program
Workers' compensation

Total expenses

Management 2021 2020
Housino Thrift Store Fundraisino and General Total Total

$ 4.428.713 $  283,233 $  442,872 $  664,307 $ 5,819,125 $ 6,156,201
498.412 21,465 49,841 74,761 644,479 650,333
343.091 23.293 34.309 51.464 452.157 433083

5,270,216 327,991 527.022 790,532 6,915,761 7,239,617

3.998 13,668 350 525 18,541 36,363
25,698 - - - 25,698 63,594
12,545 8,246 1,207 1,811 23,809 22,092
14,575 • - - 14,575 15,515
78,629 3,988 7,842 11,763 102,222 144,209
22.161 - 2,216 3,324 27,701 428,144

1.221.584 3,404 93,661 140,492 1,459,141 1.382,232
29.137 - - - 29,137 74,371

238,472 - - - 238,472 156,813
168,528 2.318 11,537 17,306 199,689 180,501
164,597 - 17,786 26,679 209,062 238,399
(1.604)

- - - (1.604) -

4,317 - 432 648 5,397 2,278
9,270 - 873 1,309 11,452 13,671

112,840 9,451 10,553 15,829 148,673 90,214
362,333 - - - 362,333 156,304
93,431 - - - 93,431 72,037
6,880 17 688 1,033 8,618 9,491
16,302 818 1,442 2,164 20,726 26,715

175,249 4,000 14,010 21,014 214,273 183,043
265,605 - - - 265,605 301,110
662,589 18,416 49,263 73,895 804,163 528,545
26,318 187 2,622 3,933 33,060 31,816

332,887 183 - - 333,070 340,333
162,210 117 15,968 23,953 202,248 191,943
104,863 1,535 10,189 15,284 131,871 148,667
28,865 84 2,871 4,306 36,126 28,318

568,936 17,631 38,909 58,363 683,839 617,912
- - - - - 79,431

93.090 - - 12.695 105.785 149.976

$10.274.521 $  412.054 $  809.441 $ 1.226.858 $12,722,874 $12.953.654

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-6-
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2021

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by

operating activities
Depreciation and amortization
Forgiveness of debt
Unrealized gain on investments
Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Decrease (increase) in:

Accounts receivable

Grants and contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses
Other current assets

(Decrease) increase in:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Other current liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of investments

Investment in development in process
Acquisition of property and equipment

Net cash used by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from long-term debt
Payments on long-term debt

Net cash used by financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and restricted cash

Cash and restricted cash, beginning of year

Cash and restricted cash, end of year

Composition of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of year:
Cash and cash equivalents
Replacement reserves
Reserve cash designated for properties

Supplemental disclosures:
Acquisition of property and equipment and development in process through

accounts payable

Acquisition of property and equipment through long-term borrowings from seller
Property and equipment transferred from development in process

Interest paid

r31, 2020)

2021 2020

(567,686) $ 3,540,967

1,472,485 1,395.578
(131,267) (131,267)
(234,310) (103,827)
267,413 1,362

13,484 (445)
912,027 (1,102,280)
(60,552) (22,241)
39,530 (1.579)

80,826 (46,887)
16,563 (107,455)
(54.167) 75.022

1.754.346 3.496.946

(1,235,259) (7,767)
(450,004) (63,149)

(1.045.458) (2.227.481)

(2.730.721) (2.298.397)

265,091 2,452
(320.045) (268.663)

(54.954) (266.211)

(1,031,329) 932,338

4.895.779 3.963.441

;  3.864.450 $ 4.895.779

;  2,533,606 $ 3,536,208

543,800 512,271
787.044 847.300

;  3.864.450 $_ 4.895.779

1  98.500 $ 768.564

$ 25.412

;  350.380 $ .

i  209.062 $ 238.399

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-7-
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2020)

Organization

Families in Transition, Inc. (FIT), an incorporated New Hampshire nonprofit, provides hunger relief,
emergency shelter, safe affordable housing and support services to individuals and families who are
homeless or in need in the State of New Hampshire. The programs and services offered provide
positive outcomes through the incorporation of evidence based models and practices to meet identified
needs and goals of those they sen/e and provide an integrated system of care to prevent
homelessness when possible and rapidly rehouse those who become horrieless, including both the
chronically homeless and families with children.

FIT directly owns and operates housing programs In facilities located on Amherst Street, Spruce
Street, Lake Avenue and Douglas Street in Manchester, New Hampshire. Additional housing facilities
are owned and operated by two limited partnerships of which FIT, or one of its subsidiaries, is the sole
general partner. These limited partnerships include Family Bridge Limited Partnership (Family Bridge),
located on Second Street in Manchester, New Hampshire; and Family Willows Limited Partnership
(Family Willows), located on South Beech Street in Manchester, New Hampshire (collectively referred
to as the Limited Partnerships).

During 2021, Family Bridge reached the reached the end of its initial 15-year low-income housing tax
credit compliance period. As a result, effective August 31, 2021, BCCC, Inc. and Boston Financial
Corporate Tax Credit Fund XXII, withdrew from the Partnership and transferred their ownership interest
to Housing Benefits, Inc. (Housing Benefits), a non-profit Community Development Housing
Organization, located in Manchester, New Hampshire. In January 2022, Second Street Family Mill,
Inc., the general partner, transferred its ownership interest in the Partnership to Housing Benefits. As a
result, all assets and liabilities of the Partnership will have been assumed by Housing Benefits,
dissolving Family Bridge as a limited partnership.

FIT also owns and operates emergency shelters for homeless individuals in facilities located on
Manchester Street and Lake Ave in Manchester, New Hampshire. In 2020, FIT purchased an additional
property on Lake Ave in Manchester, New Hampshire where it will operate its food pantry formerly
located at the Manchester Street. Manchester, New Hampshire facility.

Housing Benefits, a Community Development Housing Organization was created to identify and
develop new housing units and refurbish existing units to meet the persistent need of combating
homelessness. Completed housing units are located on Concord Street, School & Third Street, Lowell
Street, Belmont Street, Market Street, Spruce Street and Hayward Street, in Manchester, New
Hampshire as well as additional housing facilities located on Central Avenue in Dover, New Hampshire
(Dover), and at Bicentennial Square in Concord, New Hampshire and an emergency shelter location in
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire.

HB-AH, LLC (HB-AH) was legally formed as a limited liability company organized under the laws of the
State of New Hampshire, which is treated as a disregarded entity for federal income tax purposes. HB-
AH's purpose is to acquire, own, rent, operate and manage 23 residential apartments located in
Manchester, New Hampshire. HB-AH is to operate exclusively to further the charitable purpose of
Housing Benefits, HB-AH's sole member.
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December 31, 2021
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FIT was the sole member of Manchester Emergency Housing, Inc. (MEM), a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation providing immediate shelter to homeless families in the Manchester, New Hampshire area.
During 2021, MEH legally dissolved and the program was absorbed by FIT'S operations.

FIT also owns 100% of Family Outfitters. LLC (Outfitters), a limited liability corporation. Outfitters
operates an independent thrift store in Manchester, New Hampshire with the sole purpose of
generating an alternate funding stream for FIT.

FIT is the sole member of The New Hampshire Coalition to End Homelessness (NHCEH), a statewide
entity, whose mission is to "eliminate the causes for homelessness through research, education and
advocacy."

Wilson Street Condominium Association (the Association) was established for the purpose of
maintaining and preserving a five unit property located on Wilson Street in Manchester. New
Hampshire. FIT is the majority owner of the Association.

FIT has several wholly-owned corporations which include Second Street Family Mill, Inc. (Family Mill),
and Big Shady Tree, Inc. (Big Shady Tree) (collectively referred to as the General Partners), all of
which are New Hampshire corporations. These wholly-owned corporations represent the .01% sole
general partners in the Limited Partnerships, whereby Family Mill is a general partner of Family Bridge
and Big Shady Tree is a general partner of Family Willows.

FIT has begun the redevelopment of its property located on 434 Union Street in Manchester, New
Hampshire. The project will create 11 units of permanent, supportive housing for those experiencing
homelessness.

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

Since the General Partners have control of the Limited Partnerships, in accordance with Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 810-20-25,
Consolidation, the financial statements of the Limited Partnerships are required to be consolidated
with these consolidated financial statements. The limited partners' ownership interest is reported in
the consolidated statement of financial position as noncontrolling interest.

The consolidated financial statements include the net assets of FIT, the Limited Partnerships,
Housing Benefits, HB-AH, Outfitters, NHCEH. the Association, and the General Partners
(collectively referred to as the Organization). All significant inter-entity balances and transactions
are eliminated in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Comparative Information

The consolidated financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative
information in total, but not by net asset classifications. Such information does not include
sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles (U.S. GAAP). Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the
Organization's December 31, 2020 consolidated financial statements, from which the summarized
information was derived.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements.
Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared iri accordance with
U.S. GAAP, which require the Organization to report information regarding to their consolidated
financial position and activities according to the following net asset classifications;

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and the Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by
actions of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity. Donor
restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. When a
restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to net
assets without donor restrictions in the consolidated statement of activities.

All contributions are considered to be available for general use unless specifically restricted by the
donor. Amounts received that are designated for future periods or restricted by the donor for
specific purposes are reported as support with donor restrictions that increases net assets with
donor restrictions. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends
or purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net
assets without donor restrictions and reported in the consolidated statement of activities as net
assets released from restrictions. The Organization records donor-restricted contributions whose
restrictions are met in the same reporting period as support without donor restrictions in the year of
the gift.
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The Organization reports contributions of property or equipment as support without donor
restrictions, unless a donor places explicit restriction on its use. Contributions of cash or other
assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as support with donor
restrictions and reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions when the assets are acquired
and placed in service.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of three months or
less to be cash equivalents. The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which,
at times, may exceed the federally insured limits. Management regularly monitors the financial
institutions, together with their respective cash balances, and attempts to maintain the potential
risk at a minimum. The Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts and
management believes it is not exposed to any significant risk on these accounts.

Reserves are those deposits of cash and cash equivalents not generally available for operating
costs, but restricted to particular uses including operating and replacement reserves for rental
properties as well as certain other social services and programs.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost or, if donated, at estimated fair market value at the
date of donation, less accumulated depreciation. The Organization's capitalization policy requires
the capitalization of capital expenditures greater than $1,000, while ordinary maintenance and
repairs are charged to expense. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the related assets. Assets not in service are not depreciated. Following is
a summary of estimated useful lives by asset category:

Land improvements 20 years
Buildings and improvements 3 - 40 years
Furniture and fixtures 3-10 years
Equipment 3-10 years
Vehicles 5 years

Rental Income

Rental revenue is recognized pro rata over each tenant's period of occupancy. A contract is
entered into with a tenant and covers a period of twelve months. All rents are collected at the
beginning of each month and are nonrefundable. A tenant has an option to cancel a lease at any
time with a minimum of 30 days' notice, at which time the Organization will prorate the final rent
payment through a tenant's expected move-out date.
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When a contract is entered into with a tenant, the Organization collects a security deposit. The
security deposits are maintained in separate cash accounts and a corresponding liability is
recognized. Upon termination of a tenant's contract, the Organization assesses the condition of
the unit being vacated. If it is determined a unit is vacated in a condition equivalent to when the
tenant occupied the unit, the security deposit is refunded to the tenant. If a unit Is determined to be
vacated in a condition less than equivalent to when the tenant occupied the unit, the security
deposit is retained and recognized as revenue.

Volunteer Services

A number of volunteers have donated their time to the Organization's various programs and
administrative services. The value of these services has not been included in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements since the volunteers' time does not meet criteria for recognition.
The estimated value of donated time for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was
approximately $540,000 and $410,000, respectively.

Functional Expense Allocation

The consolidated financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to
more than one program or supporting function. Therefore, these expenses require allocation on a
reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The expenses allocated Include salaries and
benefits, depreciation and amortization, office and other expenses, which are allocated based on
direct payroll hours by functional cost centers.

Change in Net Assets from Operations

The consolidated statements of activities include a measure of change in net assets from
operations. Changes in net assets which are excluded from change in net assets from operations,
include capital contributions and partner distributions which are considered non-operating.

Income Taxes

The Organization is a tax-exempt Section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi) public charity as described in Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (the Code) and is exempt from federal Income taxes on
related income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes
has been reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

The standards for accounting for uncertainty in Income taxes require the Organization to report
any uncertain tax positions and to adjust Its consolidated financial statements for the impact
thereof. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Organization determined that it had no tax
positions that did not meet the more-likely-than-not threshold of being sustained by the applicable
tax authority. The Organization files an informational return in the United States. This return is
generally subject to examination by the federal government for up to three years.
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No provision for taxes on income is made in the Limited Partnerships' financial statements since,
as partnerships, all taxable income and losses are allocated to the partners for inclusion in their
respective tax returns.

The Association is not exempt from income taxes; however, the Code categorizes any profits
realized by the Association from its member activities as reductions of members' contributions
towards the operation of the condominium property and not as taxable income of the Association
or its members. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been made in these consolidated
financial statements.

Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S.
GAAP, the Organization has considered transactions or events occurring through March 23, 2022,
which was the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

Management has not evaluated subsequent events after that date for inclusion in the consolidated
financial statements.

2. Availability and Liauiditv of Financial Assets

As of December 31, 2021, the Organization has working capital, excluding current assets with
donor restrictions, of $1,402,203 and average days (based on normal expenditures) cash and
cash equivalents on hand of 43.

Financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general expenditure, such as
operating expenses, scheduled principal payments on long-term debt, and capital acquisitions not
funded through replacement reserves or financed with debt, were as follows:

2021 2020

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,533,606 $ 3,536,208
Accounts receivable 54,462 67,946
Grants and contributions receivable 779,471 1,691,498
Investments 2.704.576 1.235.007

Total financial assets 6,072,115 6,530,659

Donor-imposed restrictions:
Restricted funds f1.226.792) (731.000)

Financial assets available at year end for
current use $ 4.845.323 $ 5.799.659

The Organization also has a line of credit available to meet short-term needs, as described in Note
6.
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The Organization has replacement reserves and cash reserves designated for properties as part
of its debt financing with New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority (NHHFA) which are only
available when approved by NHHFA. As a result, these replacement reserves and cash reserves
designated for properties are not considered available for general expenditure within the next year
and are not reflected in the amount above. The goal for the Organization is to maintain a balanced
budget while meeting the requirements of the various financing authorities.

3. Investments and Fair Value Measurement

The Organization reports investments in the consolidated statement of financial position at fair
value with any realized or unrealized gains and losses reported in the consolidated statement of
activities. Investments are exposed to various risks, including interest rate, market volatility and
credit risks.

U.S. GAAP establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques
used to measure fair value. Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for
an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market
for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement
date. Fair value hierarchy requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and
minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The three levels of inputs
used to measure fair value are;

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that
the entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2: Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices
for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and
other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect an entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

Investments measured at fair value on a recurring basis are summarized below:

Level 1

2021 2020

Cash and cash equivalents $ 24,481 $
Equity mutual funds 123,584 776,600
Equity securities 1,791,812 53,820
Fixed income mutual funds 764.699 404.587

$ 2.704.576 $ 1.235.007

The Organization had no assets measured using Level 2 or Level 3 Inputs at December 31, 2021
and 2020.
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4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

2021 2020

Land $ 3.764,378 $ 3.764,378
Land improvements 812,301 666,247

Buildings and improvements 41,388,854 41,923,542
Furniture and fixtures 1,187,879 1,057,806
Equipment 691,474 639,373
Vehicles 307.197 386.565

48,152,083 48,437,911
Less: accumulated depreciation 14.825.448 14.011.995

Property and equipment, net $ 33.326.635 S 34.425.916

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Organization held $37,215,560 and $37,334,275,
respectively, of land, land improvements, and buildings and improvements for the purpose of
leasing to individuals. Accumulated depreciation on the land improvements, buildings and
improvements at December 31. 2021 and 2020 was $11,094,410 and $10,319,415, respectively.

5. Development in Process

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, development in process consisted of various projects in process
related to all of the properties owned by the Organization.

6. Line of Credit

The Organization has an unsecured line of credit agreement, renewed annually, with a financial
institution in the amount of $550,000. During the term of the agreement, the interest rate on .any
outstanding principal balance shall be equal to the base rate, as defined by the financial institution,
with a floor of 4%. There was no outstanding balance as of December 31, 2021 and 2020.
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7. LonO'Term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following:
2021 2020

A mortgage loan payable to NHHFA in monthly payments of $680,
including interest at 1% and an escrow of $289. The loan is
coHateralized by real estate located on Amherst Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. The loan is due and payable in
full in January 2033. $ 42,847 $ 46,492

A note payable to NHHFA. The note is noninterest bearing and is
coliateralized by real estate located on Amherst Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. The note is due and payable
upon sale or refinancing of the property or in June 2042. 163,283 163,283

A mortgage loan payable to St. Mary's Bank in monthly payments
of $883, including interest at 5% for five years. After five years,
the interest rate adjusts to match the then current Federal
Home Loan Bank of Boston 5-year. 20-year amortizing rate
plus 2.50%. The loan is coliateralized by real estate on Spruce
Street, Manchester, New Hampshire and is due and payable in
full in May 2034. 97,682 103,048

A mortgage loan payable to TO Bank, N.A. in monthly payments of
$1,123, including interest at 4.1%. The loan is coliateralized by
real estate at Beech Street, Manchester, New Hampshire. The
loan Is due and payable in full In November 2023. 23,994 36,401

A mortgage loan payable to RBS Citizens Bank in monthly
payments of $2,126, including interest at 7.18%. The loan is
coliateralized by real estate on Douglas Street, Manchester,
New Hampshire. The loan is due and payable in full in April
2024. 189,792 196,746

A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
coliateralized by Bicentennial property. Monthly payments of
$1,095 include interest at 4.75% per annum until the principal
and interest are fully paid with the final installment due and
payable on May 1,2034. 120,869 128,086
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A noninterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Bicentennial property and various financing
instruments. Annual payments of 50% of surplus cash are due.
The note is due and payable on May 28, 2034. This note is
nonrecourse. 84,456 84,456

A noninterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Bicentennial property and various financing
instruments. Annual payments of 25% of surplus cash are due.
The note is due and payable on May 28, 2033. This note is
nonrecourse and is subordinate to the $84,456 note payable. 336,674 336,674

A noninterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to
Merrimack County, collateralized by Bicentennial property and
various financing instruments. The note is due and payable in
full in May 2033. 260,000 260,000

A noninterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Millyard II property and various financing
instruments. Annual payments of 25% of surplus cash are due.
The note is due and payable upon sale or refinancing of the
property or In May 2031. This note is nonrecourse. 436,958 445,068

A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Millyard II property. Monthly payments of
$1,729 include principal and interest at 3.5% per annum. The
final installment is due and payable on September 1, 2032. 178,960 193,172

A note payable by Housing Benefits to the City of Manchester, New
Hampshire, collateralized by Millyard II property and various
financing instruments. A payment of interest shall be made
annually no later than August 1 each year based on 42.5% of
the net cash flow, as defined. In any year where the Debt
Coverage Ratio, as defined, exceeds 1.15 to 1, principal
payments shall be made no later than August 1 in an amount
that will result in a 1.15 to 1 Debt Coverage Ratio. All unpaid
amounts are due and payable in full on August 1, 2031. This
note is nonrecourse. 212,938 226,725

A noninterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to the New
Hampshire Community Loan Fund, Inc. (NHCLF), collateralized
by Millyard II property. Payment of principal is due and payable
on December 31, 2031. This note is nonrecourse. 250,000 250,000
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A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to the City of
Manchester Community Improvement Program, collateralized
by Millyard Families I real estate. The note is noninterest
bearing and is due and payable in January 2027. 230,000 230,000

A second mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to
Community Development Finance Authority (CDFA),
collateralized by Millyard Families I real estate. Monthly
payments of $1,121 include principal and interest at 2% per
annum. The final installment is due and payable on June 15,
2022. 6,686 19,860

A mortgage note payable by Family Bridge to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and personal property. The note
bears no interest and is to be repaid from 50% of available
surplus cash annually with all remaining principal due on
August 30.2034. 850,000 850,000

A promissory note payable by Family Bridge to TO Bank, N.A.,
collateralized by real estate. Monthly payments of $3,019
include principal and interest at 4.33%. The note is payable in
full in November 27, 2023 and is guaranteed by FIT and Family
Mill. 375,832 396,436

A promissory note payable by Family Bridge to the City of
Manchester, New Hampshire. The note is noninterest bearing
with annual payments of 50% of net cash flow payable by
October 1. The outstanding principal is due by October 1, 2034.
The note is collateralized by real estate and is nonrecourse. 600,000 600,000

A mortgage note payable by Family Willows to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and personal property. The note
bears no interest and is to be repaid from 50% of available
surplus cash annually with all remaining principal due on July 9,
2037. 493,132 505,816

A note payable by Family Willows to the City of Manchester, New
Hampshire. The note is noninterest bearing and has an annual
payment of $9,091 payable on October 1. All outstanding
principal is due by October 2029. The note is collateralized by
real estate and is nonrecourse. 63,635 72,726
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A note payable by Family Willows to RBS Citizens Bank,
collateralized by real estate. Monthly payments of $1,922
include principal and interest at 3.25%, based on the prime rate
capped at 6%. The note is payable in full on June 27, 2033 and
is guaranteed by FIT and Big Shady Tree. 221,623 235,835

A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by School & Third Street real estate and personal
property. Monthly payments of $2,683 include principal and
interest at 8% per annum. The note was paid off in 2021. ■ 9,544

A second mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHCLF,
collateralized by School & Third Street real estate and personal
property. The note bears no interest and monthly payments of
$2,775 will commence on April 15, 2021 and continue until
maturity in October 2039. 592,650 617,613

A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Belmont Street real estate and personal
property. The noninterest bearing note requires annual
payments in amounts equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is
payable in full by December 2040. 395,940 413,575

A mortgage note payable from Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Lowell Street real estate and personal
property. The noninterest bearing note requires annual
payments in amounts equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is
payable in full in August 2040. 34,628 34,628

A second, noninterest bearing, mortgage note payable from
Housing Benefits to the City of Manchester, New Hampshire,
collateralized by Lowell Street real estate. Annual payments
equal to the greater of 25% of net cash flow, as defined, or
$4,000 commenced in October 2012 and continue until the
maturity date in June 2041. 152,121 156,022

A noninterest bearing promissory note payable from Housing
Benefits to NHHFA collateralized by a mortgage and security
agreement on Lowell Street real estate. The note is to be
forgiven 1/15th annually over the low-income housing tax credit
compliance period which ends in 2026, subject to compliance
with certain requirements. During 2021 and 2020, $131,267
was recognized as revenue and support in the consolidated
statement of activities. 590,696 721,963
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A mortgage note payable from Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Dover real estate and personal property. The
noninterest bearing note requires annual payments in amounts
equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is payable in full by
June 2028. 216,148 216,148

A noninterest bearing mortgage note payable to the City of
Manchester Community Improvement Program, collateralized
by real estate located at 393-395 Spruce Street. Annual
payments of the greater of 25% of net cash flow, as defined, or
$5,000 are due annually by October 1. The note is due in full by
October 1,2045. 562,808 567,808

A mortgage note payable to TO Bank, N.A., collateralized by real
estate located at 167 Lake Avenue and personal property
located at 161 South Beech Street, Unit 2. Monthly payments
of $2,137 include principal and interest at 4.35%. The note is
due in full by April 2024. 363,729 372,849

A vehicle loan payable in monthly payments of $472, including
interest at 4.25%. The loan is due in March 2025 and is

collateralized by the related vehicle. 18,569 20,560

A vehicle loan payable in monthly payments of $308, including
interest at 4.75%. The loan is due in October 2023 and is

collateralized by the related vehicle. 6,507 9,791

A mortgage note payable to NHHFA, collateralized by the real
estate at Lake Avenue, Manchester, New Hampshire. The
noninterest bearing note requires annual payments in amounts
equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is payable in fuil by
June 2045. 750,000 750,000

A mortgage note payable to TD Bank, N.A., collateralized by real
estate located at 641 Hayward Street, Manchester, New
Hampshire. Monthly payments of $991 include principal and
interest at 3.015%. The note is due in full by October 2025. 167,585 174,276

A mortgage note payable to Peoples United Bank, collateralized by
Hope House. Monthly payments of $2,283 include principal and
interest at 4.94%. The note is due in full by January 2027. 355,288 364,674
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A construction loan payable to Franklin Savings Bank,
collateralized by real estate located at 267 Wilson Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. Housing Benefits has the ability
to draw up to $825,000 on the promissory note. Monthly
payments including principal, interest and escrow of $6,854 are
due over a 30 year period starting September 2018 at 4.90%
interest. 887,042 707,538

A noninterest bearing construction loan payable to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate located at 267 Wilson Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. The note has a borrowing limit of
$720,000. Annual payments are due in amounts equal to 25%
of surplus cash. The loan is due in full by November 1, 2047. 711,845 720,000

Three vehicle loans collateralized by an activity bus payable to
Ford Credit in monthly payments of $392 at 5.9% annual
interest rate. The loans are due and payable in March 2022. 841 15,937

A noninterest bearing mortgage note payable to the City of
Manchester Community Improvement Program, collateralized
by real estate located at 267 Wilson Street, 2nd Floor. The note
has a borrowing limit of $1,655,323. As costs are incurred.
Housing Benefits is to be reimbursed by the City of
Manchester. Annual payments of the greater of 25% of net
cash flow, as defined, or $5,000 are due by October 1
commencing October 1, 2019. The note is due in full by
October 1,2047. 1,448,182 1,453,182

A noninterest bearing mortgage note payable to the City of
Manchester, collateralized by real estate located at 267 Wilson
Street, 3rd Floor. The note is funded by the City of
Manchester's Community Improvement Program and the City
of Manchester's Affordable Housing Trust Funds. The note has
a borrowing limit of $531,252. As costs are incurred, Housing
Benefits is to be reimbursed by the City of Manchester. Annual
payments in the amount of 25% of net cash flow, as defined,
are due by October 1 commencing October 1, 2019. The note
is due in full by December 1, 2047. 523,097 531,252

A noninterest bearing construction loan payable to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate located in Wolfeboro, New
Hampshire. The note has a borrowing limit of $780,000. Annual
payments in amounts equal to 25% of surplus cash. The loan is
due in full by December 1, 2047. 780,000 780,000
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A mortgage note payable to NHHFA and is collateralized by the
real estate and personal property of HB-AH, LLC on Concord
Street in Manchester, New Hampshire. The mortgage is
insured by the U.S Department of Housing and Urban
Development through the Housing Finance Agency Risk
Sharing Program authorized by Section 542(c) of the Housing
and Community Development Act of 1992. Monthly payments
of $6,745 are due for principal and interest at 4.20%. All
remaining principal is due on May 1, 2059. 1,525,843 1,542,342

A technical assistance note payable to NHHFA to provide support
to the Organization for renovations at the Union Street Shelter
in Manchester, New Hampshire. If the renovation project is
approved, NHHFA is expected to be the lead lender on
renovations. If the renovation project is not approved NHHFA
will forgive the borrowings. The noninterest bearing note
payable is due at the time of closing on the construction loan. 45,000 44,079

A note payable to CDFA, collateralized by real estate located at
199 Manchester Street, Manchester, New Hampshire. Principal
only payments are due for the first 18 months, at which time
monthly payments include principal and interest at 2% will be
required until December 2021. 69 9,268

A noninterest bearing construction loan payable to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate located in Manchester, New
Hampshire. The note has a borrowing limit of $1,134,188. The
loan is due in full 40 years from the closing date. 157,854

A noninterest bearing construction loan payable to City of
Manchester, New Hampshire, collateralized by real estate
located in Manchester, New Hampshire. The note has a
borrowing limit of $275,000. 106.284 :

15,432,087 15,613,873

Less current portion 300,631 345,909
Less unamortized deferred costs 85.278 94.186

$ 15.046.178 $15.173.778

Surplus cash for the purposes of these disclosures is as defined in the respective loan
agreements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2020)

Principal maturities of long-term debt over the next five years and thereafter are as follows;

2022 $ 300,631
2023 551,965
2024 .661,132

2025 305,829
2026 161,341
Thereafter 13.451.189

$15.432.087

Interest expense charged to operations, including amortization of deferred costs of $13,344, was
$209,062 and $238,399 in 2021 and 2020, respectively.

8. Net Assets

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, net assets without donor restrictions are fully available to support
operations of the Organization.

Net assets with donor restrictions were as follows:

2021 2020

Investments to be maintained in perpetuity, income is
to support general operations $ 25.000 $ 25.000

Funds maintained with donor restrictions temporary in
nature:

The Family Place 53,258 134,190
Scholarships 26,664 19,264
Housing programs 164,098 35,000
Direct care for clients 407,049 147,904
Hope House 550.723 369.642

Total funds maintained with donor restrictions

temporary in nature 1.201.792 706.000

Total net assets with donor restrictions $1.226.792 $ 731.000
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December 31, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2020)

Net assets released from net assets with donor restrictions were as follows;

2021 2020

Satisfaction of purpose restrictions:
Operating releases

The Family Place $ 80,932 $ 9,280
Housing programs 35,000 55,000
Direct care for clients 132,225 103,321
Hope House 338,199 21,566
New Horizons for New Hampshire merger ■ 76,944
Substance use disorder services : 97.717

$  586.356 $ 363.828

9. Commitments

Under the terms of the Limited Partnerships' Regulatory Agreements with NHHFA, each Limited
Partnership is required to make deposits to various escrow accounts to fund expected future costs.

Each Limited Partnership has entered into a Land Use Restriction Agreement with NHHFA, as a
condition of the allocation of low-income housing tax credits by NHHFA. Pursuant to the covenant,
the Limited Partnerships are required to remain in compliance with Code Section 42 for the
compliance period and an extended use period, unless terminated sooner.

10. Retirement Plan

The Organization has a tax deferred retirement plan which is available to all employees working
greater than 25 hours a week. All employees are eligible to participate and are fully vested with the
first contribution. The Organization matches contributions at 100% up to 3% of compensation. The
Organization contributed $107,457 and $99,580 during the years ended December 31; 2021 and
2020, respectively.

11. Noncontrollinq Interest

Noncontrolling interest, as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position, represents
investments by limited partners in the Limited Partnerships as follows:

Limited Partner Property 2021 2020

BCCC, Inc. Family Bridge $ - $ 10
Boston Financial Corporate Family Bridge - 607,520
Housing Benefits, Inc. Family Bridge 377,898
BCCC, Inc. Family Willows 10 10
Boston Financial Midway Family Willows 1.637.281 1.737.255

$  2.015.189 $ 2.344.795
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2021

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2020)

12. Uncertainty

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the coronavirus disease {COVID-19)
a global pandemic. Local, U.S., and world governments encouraged self-isolation to curtail the
spread of the global pandemic, COVID-19, by mandating the temporary shut-down of business In
many sectors and imposing limitations on travel and the size and duration of group meetings.
Many sectors are experiencing disruption to business operations. There Is unprecedented
uncertainty surrounding the duration of the pandemic, its potential economic ramifications, and the
scale of government actions to mitigate them. To date, the U.S. government has passed
legislation which allows for increased funding to states to assist in paying for costs associated with
COVID-19. Therefore, while management expects this matter to impact operating results, the
related financial impact and duration cannot be reasonably estimated.

During 2020, the Organization received $1,188,400 under the CARES Act Paycheck Protection
Program (PPP). The PPP funding has specific criteria for eligibility and provides for forgiveness-of
the funds under the program if the Organization meets certain requirements. Any portion of the
funds that are not forgiven were to be repaid within 5 years at 1%. In November 2020, the
Organization received notification of full forgiveness and was included in CARES Act grants in the
consolidated statement of activities for the year ended December 31, 2020.

During 2021 and 2020, the Organization was awarded $347,447 and $2,832,815, respectively,
from the State of New Hampshire's Governor's Office for Emergency Relief and Recovery
(GOFERR). The GOFERR grants are pass-through grants provided to the State of New
Hampshire through the CARES Act. The GOFERR grants are to be used by the Organization to
cover eligible costs outlined in the grant agreements. At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the
Organization satisfied the terms and conditions of the grant agreements and recognized the
revenue which is Included in CARES Act grants in the consolidated statement activities for the
years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.

During 2021 and 2020, the Organization was awarded $1,322,840 and $162,437, respectively,
under the McKinney Emergency Shelter Grant Program. The funds were provided to decompress
the shelters as a result of the COVID-19. The grant was paid on a reimbursement basis as
qualifying expenses were incurred. At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Organization satisfied the
terms and conditions of the awards and recognized the revenue which is included in CARES Act
grants in the consolidated statement activities for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidating Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2021

ASSETS

Curreni assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivatile

Grants and contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses
Due from related parties

Other current assets

Total current assets

Replacement reserves

Reserve cash designated for properties
Related party notes receivable
Accrued interest receivable on related party

notes

Investments

Investment in related entities

Property and equipment, net

Development in process

Total assets

Cunent liabilities

Current portion of long'term debt
Accounts payatrle
Accrued expenses

Due to related parties
Other current liabilities

Total cunent liabilities

Long-term debt, net of current portion and
unamortized deferred costs

Total liabilities

Net assets

Net assets without donor restrictions •

controlling interest
Net assets without donor restrictions •

noncontrolling interest

Total net assets without donor

restriction

Net assets with donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabSities arxl net assets

Families In

Transition -

Ooeratina

722.833
84,544

779,471

97,886

1.970.270

3,445

3.658,449

90,178
88.427

1.725.799

1.344.742
2.679.576

1.247.739

7.420.192
416.959

18,672,061

101.515
211.220

207.768
125.946

6.442

652.891

1.860.532

2.513.423

16.158.638

16.158.638

Limited

Partnerships

45,847

10.636

15,177

1.814

15.931

89,405

16.158,638

18.672.061 $

125.386
260.024

7.114.322

7.589.137 S

67,852
89,383

837.425

217,812
27^506

1.239.978

3,573.193

4,813,171

760,777

2,015,189

2,775,966

2,775,966

Housing

Benefits

Famtty
Outfitters

The New

Hampshire
Coalition to End

Homelessness

217.763

24.300

33.690
26.632

32.678

110.410

879

86.403

335,063 197^692

294,821
438,593

25,051

18,755,158

19,848,686

18,467

216.159

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

•  S131.264 $

52.479
569.216

1.724.031
46.578

1.352
11.479

2.523.568

11.338.252

13.86L820

5,986.866

5.986.866

5,986,866

12.831

12,831

203.328

203.328

203,328

22^822

27.320

548

27.868

27.868

200;954

200,954

200,954

Wilson Street

Condominium

Association

228,822 $

228.822 $

6,139 $

1.552

7.691

921

921

921

58.681

58.681

58.681

With Donor

Restrictions

1.201,792 $

1.201,792

33.415

18,496

25.000

Eliminations

(65,897)

(2,085.119)

(2,151,016)

(1.725.799)

(1.344.742)

(1.271.790)

1.226792

1.226.792

(82.679)
(1.344.742)

(2.068.337)

(3.495.758)

(1.725.799)

(5,221.557)

(1,271.790)

(1.271.790)

(1.271.790)

Total

2,533,606

54.462

779,471
148,305

52,054

3.567,898

543.800

787.044

2.704.576
1.000

33.326.635
416.959

59^02 $^^1726792 $^^6^493^3^ $^^1^347|912

300.631

299.996
281.146

80.526

7,589,137 $ 19.848,686 S 216J59 S 228,822 $ 59,602 $ 1.226,792 $

962.299

15.046,178

16.008,477

22,097,454

2,015,189

24.112.643

1.226.792

25.339.435

41.347.912
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidating Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2021

The New

Hampshire Without

Families in New Horizons Manchester Coalition to Wilson Streel Donor

Transition - Limited Housing Family for New Emergency End Condominium Restrictions With Donor

Goeratina Partnershios Benefits Outfitters Hamnahire Housino Homelessness Association Eliminations Total Restrictions Total

Revenue and support
Federal, state and other grant support S 2.824.911 $ $  463,909 $ - S $ $ $ S  (414.678) S 2.874.142 S  1.082.148 $ 3,956,290

CARES Act grants 1.670.287 - - . - - - - 1,670.287 • 1,670,287

Rental income, net of vacancies 289.331 687.127 1,456,682 - -
- 98.190 (147.961) 2.383.369 - 2.383.369

Thrift store sales - . . 592.005 . . . 592.005 . 592.005

Public support 2.462.321 . 200,135 65 - 80,134 (242.367) 2.500.288 • 2,500.288

Special events 342.619 - - - - - - 342,619 - 342.619

Property management fees 1.144.686 • - - - - (1,144.686) - - -

Unrealized gain on investments 234.310 - - - - - - 234,310 - 234.310

Loss on disposal of property and
equipment (260.590) (2.045) (3.463) - - (1,315) - (267,413) - (267,413)

Interest income 96.244 286 1.965 -
- - 29 (96.190) 2.334 - 2.334

Irwkirtd donations 42.933 . . . . . . 42,933 . 42.933

Forgiveness of debt - • 131.267 • • ■ - 131,267 • 131.267

Medicaid reimbursements 415.708 • • - - - . 415,708 - 415.708

Other income 151.398 41.048 119.788 6,191 - 600 (171.277) 147.748 . 147.748

Net assets released from restrictions 586.356 . . . . - . . 586.356 1586.356) -

Total revenue ar>d support 10.000.514 726.416 2 370 283 598.261
.

79.419 98.219 f2.217.159) 11.655.953 495.792 12.151.745

Expenses
Program activities 8.425.812 1.055,747 2.697.457 496,854 - - 54,626 100,813 (2.144.734) 10,686,575 - 10.686.575

Fundraising 588.381 - 221.060 . . - - . - 609.441 - 809.441

Management and general 893.140 . 333.718 . - - - - - 1.226.858 - 1.226.858

Total expenses 9.907.333 1 055.747 3.252.235 496.854 54.626 100.813 f2.144.734) 12.722.874 12.722.874

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
and support over expenses 93.181 (329,331) (881.952) 101,407

• •
24.793 (2.594) (72.425) (1.066.921) 495,792 (571,129)

Capital contributions - - - - .
. . 3.751 - 3.751 - 3,751

Member distributions . . (18.257) . - • • . 18,257 - . -

Partnership distributions - (3,084) - - - • • - 2,776 (308) - (308)

Equity transferred resulting from dissolution 5.468.159 - - - 15639.571) 171.412 • • - - - -

Change in net assets S 5561 340 $  (3324151 $  f900.2091 S 101.407 S (5 639,571) $  171.412 S  24.793 S  1157 $  (51.392) $ (1 063 478) $  495792 S  (567.686)

-27-



DocuSign Envelope ID: B5550DA9-2318-4D93-6060-36BBCE95C71A

FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidating Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2021

Program Aclivtties

The New

Hampshire
Families In Coalition to Wilson Street Program Management
Transition - Limited Housing Family End Condominium Activities artd

Ooeratino Partnershios Benefits Outfitters Homelessness Association Total Fundraisino General Eliminations Total

Salaries and benefits

Salaries end wages S 3.849,367 S $  579.346 8 283,233 $ $ S 4.711.946 $  442,872 $  664,307 i S 5.819.125

Employee benefits 405.748 92.664 21,465 - - 519.877 49,841 74,761 - 644,479

Payroll taxes 304.824 . 38.267 23.293 - - 366.384 34 309 51.464 - 452.157

Total salaries and benefits 4,559.939 - 710,277 327,991 - -

5.598.207 527,022 790,532
-

6,915.761

Advertisirrg 3,498 . . 13,668 500 _ 17.666 350 525 18.541

Bad debts 7.740 - 17.958 - - . 25.698 - • - 25,696

Bank charges 11.661 404 415 8,246 60 5 20.791 1.207 1,811 - 23.809

Condominium association fees - - 73.104 - - . 73.104 - • (58.529) 14,575

Consultants 72.570 . 5,850 3,988 209 - 82.617 7.842 11,763 - 102,222

COVIO expenses 22.161 - • - - . 22.161 2.216 3,324 - 27.701

Depreciation 321,890 280,321 614,718 3,404 170 4.485 1.224,988 93.661 140,492 - 1,459.141

Events 16,295 - 6,250 - 6,592 - 29,137 - • • 29.137

Food 196,374 . 42,098 - - - 238,472 -
- - 238.472

General insurance 44,994 38,016 70,379 2,318 742 14.397 170.846 11.537 17,306 ■ 199.689

Interest expense 32,606 82,927 145,254 • • - 260,787 17.786 26.679 (96,190) 209.062

Management fees 90,948 243,505 727,203 • 34.420 25.973 1.122.049 - - (1,123,653) (1,604)

Meals and entertainment 3,921 . 396 . . - 4,317 432 648 - 5.397

Meml>er$hip dues 8,730 - - - 540 - 9,270 873 1.309 • 11.452

GfTice supplies 82.547 3,671 22,983 9,451 3.569 70 122.291 10,563 15.829 - 148,673

Operational expenses • other 362.333 - - - - - 362,333 - - - 362,333

Participant expenses 79.545 2,271 6,615 • 5.000 - 93,431 - - - 93,431

Postage 6.770 - 110 17 - - 6.897 688 1,033 - 8,618

Printing 14.350 - 72 818 1.880 - 17,120 1,442 2.164 - 20,726

Professional fees 90.368 31.952 49,729 4,000 - 3.200 179,249 14,010 21.014 .  - 214,273

Related entity expenses 1.328.050 (100) (611.020) 60.000 - - 776,930 - • (776.930) •

Rent 64,632 - - 24.800 • - 89.432 - - (89.432) -

Rental subsidies 265,605 . - -
- - 265.605 - • - 265.605

Repairs and maintenance 223.916 133.696 268.711 18.416 - 36.264 681.005 49,263 73.895 - 804.163

Staff development 22.598 • 3.620 187 100 - 26.505 2.622 3,933 - 33.060

Taxes 52.991 70.848 209.048 163 - . 333.070 - -
- 333.070

Technology support 157.444 1.837 2.243 117 686 - 162.327 15.968 23,953 - 202,248

Telephone 77.568 719 24.324 1,535 - 2.252 106.398 10.189 15,284 - 131,871

Travel 23.078 . 5.629 84 158 - 28.949 2.871 4,306 - 36.126

Utilities 103,195 165,678 285.896 17,631 . 14.167 586.567 38.909 58,363 - 683.839

Workers' compensation 77.495 . 15.595 . - - 93.090 . 12.695 . 105.785

Total expenses $ 8.425.612 $  1.055.747 $ 2.697.457 $ 4M^ S  54.626 S  100.813 $12^31^09 $  809.441 $ 1,226,858 S f2.144.7341 S 12 722.874
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Board of Directors

Roy Tllsley, Chair

Bernstein Shur, Shareholder

Board member since 2018

Heather Whitfleld, Vice Chair

People's United Bank, Sr. Vice President

Board member since 2018

Frank Saglio, Treasurer

Karr& Boucher, PLLC

Board member since 2018

Kristi Scarpone, Secretary

FIRST, Director of Corporate Relations & Field Development Strategy

Board member since 2018

Dick Anagnost, At Large

Anagnost Companies, President

Board member since 2018

Scott W. Ellison, Esquire Prior Chair

COOK, LimE, ROSENBLATT & MANSON, PLLC, Partner

Board member since 2018

Robert Bartley

Bartley Financial Advisors, President, CPA, CFP
Board member since 2018

Colleen Cone,

Comcast, Vice President, Human Resources

Board member since 2018

Alison Hutcheson

Merchants Fleet, Associate Director, Legal
Board member since 2018

AnnMarie French

NH Fiscal Policy Institute, Executive Director

Board member since 2018
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Brian Hansen

Worker Bee Fund, Founder

Board member since 2018

Brian Mikol

Spectrum Marketing, Co-Owner

Board member since 2018

Kitten Steams

Realtor, Coldwell Banker Residential Brokerage
Board member since 2018

Mary Ann Aldrich

Dartmouth Hitchcock, Sr. Advisor Community & Relations, External Affairs
Board member since 2018

Roy Ballentine

Ballentine Partners, LLC, Executive Chairman,
Board member since 2019

Sarah Jacobs

AmeriCorps/Portfolio Manager
Board member since 2018

Sean Leighton

City of Manchester Police Department, Captain

Board member since 2019

Rev. Gayle Murphy

Minister At Large-United Church of Christ

Board member since 2020

Michael McCormick

Business Development Executive, Capgemini Financial Services

Board member since 2020

Michael Simoneau

Members First Credit Union, SVP, Community Outreach Officer
Board member since 2021

Chad Campbell

SiiverJech Inc., Vice President of Sales
Board member since 2021
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Danielle Pliska

FIRST, Vice President, Finance

Board member since 2021

Robert Bonfigllo

Rise Private Wealth Management, Co-Founder

Board member since 2021

Melissa Szymanowski

Coca-Cola, Beverages Northeast, Human Resources Director

Board member since 2021

Stephen Norton

Solution Health, Chief Strategy Officer

Board member since 2021

Susan Harrington

Brewster Academy, Chief Financial Officer

Board member since 2022
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Maria Devlin

Profile

Tenurod professionol with extensive experience leading teams through buDdlng strategies and Initiatives to drive high performance.
Adept at devctoplngond cerryirtg out a strategic vblon, particularly those that require buy-In from Irttomol end external stakeholders.
Expertise Includes fundralsing, change management organizational leadership, budget management and Improving team engagement.

Sl( I l ls/Expertise

Experienced vdth OiBonUotlonai
Budgeting Including Revenue &

Expense Accountabilltv

Organizational Agility & Complexity
Management

Teamwork ond Team Building Skills

External Relationships & Partnerships
Customer Service Oriented

Face of the organization
Mission Focused

Goal Ortenlcd, Leads by Example,
Vislonory and Focused

Program/Project Management Experience

President & C£0

Pamllles In Tronsltlon - New Morizons, Manchecter NH 06/?.020 - present

The President serves as Chief Executive Officer of fomlliGS In Transltlon'New Hwteons and will have overall strategic and operating
responsibility for staff, planning, development, management end successful Implementadon of programs and services, community
ongagementend execution of strategic objectives and mission of the organization.

•  EstaWlshlng a vision for communlly Impact that Is achieved through the efforts of a diverse team of high-performing leaders,
•  Responsible for overseeing the admlnbtratlon of programs to Include flnanda) performaiKO and viBblllty, organization

mission and strategy, organizational operations^ resource development and community Impact

Chief Executive Officer

American Red Cross of NH & VT, Concord, NH 03/2008-05/2020

Responsible for representing the American Red Cross In the community. Focus externally on core mission delfvory, fundralsing
and being the face of the Rod Cross for the media, donors and their communities. Responsible ft>r oversight end cxecudon of a $S million
cpcroUng budget.

•  Created ovaroli strategic plonnlng and oversight for 3 major transitions In Northern N ev; Engbnd. Oversight of execution of
staff and board Integration.

•  Lead orgonliatlonal goals for service deUvfiry, fundralsing and external relations -for the past 4 years have met or exceeded
key performance Indicators and revanuo target of $iJ. - 2.5 million annually

•  Lead dual-state (NH/VT) operations with a team of 24 FTEs phis 1100 volunteers at multiple locations- In August 2019,
bogan merger with Red Cross of Maine to align stafflng, processes, procedures for a new 3-state region

«  Dulld lusting community partnerships with local corporations & groups to ensure mission delivery such as • IrutBlling over
12,000 froc smoke alarms in homes ecross the two states In 5 years

•  Ensure that volunmers, youth and young adults are engaged and retained - 931( of our voluntoer workforco Is ongoged (n
providing at least one hour of voluntoer time to mission within the last fiscal year

Interim Executive Director

Director of Public Affairs

Children's Alliance of New Hampshire, Concord, NH 01/2007-03/2008

The Children's Alliance (now New Futures Kids Count) advocates, educates and collaborates to Improve the health end v/ellness
of NH's residents, Collaborated VNllh Board of Directors on organlzotlona) budget, devdopment goals, policy initiatives and
organlzatlonel values and mission. Responsible for an operations: HR, P&L, Board Development, public policy edvocacy Initiatives
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Maria Devlin

•  OTfjonlzod tho Children's Advocacy Network ~a dlvorse yroup of organizations and Indlvlduftis - dedicated to Improving tho
life of children and families through legislative and public polky Initiatives, such os statowlda kindergarten, statewide
children's hoalth Insurance, greater access to Children In Need of Sorvlcos (CHINS) and maintaining occcss to Supplemental
Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) bonoflts

•  Acting as the Interim Executive Director supported by 3 paid staff and a board of directors with 12 members
•  Stabilized fundralsing, oporadons end personnel to ensure positive transidon to new leadership
•  In partnership with the Annie E. Casey Foundation, created & released the 2007 Kids Count data book for Now Hampshire

en annual report which tracks child wellbelng. Data which Is used to enrich local and state-level discussions around policy
change.

Director of Annual Giving

Southern New Hampshire University, Manchester, NH 10/2(X>3-01/2C>07

Kesponslbte for Increasing annual giving from SNHU alumni, family end friends through personalized outreach,
donor relationship building, and targeted fundralsing events.

•  Successful $SO,000 asks to buld stronger scholarship program for students ot university, developed moves mariagement
plans for donors to Increase donor engagement and support

• Managed annual giving program including direct mall, Telefinzd (connecting with elumni through current students to raise
funds via phone calling) leadership ond class giving, faculty/staff g^ng, class gift and related events

•  Coordlnatod all stewardship activities for University President and VP, Development \vlth average gifts over $18,000
•  Managed stewardship for till scholarship donors with average gift of ovar $1,000

Director of Development & Progrom Services
Moke-A-Wish Foundation of New Hampshire, Manchester, NH 05/1996-10/2003

«  SuccessfuHy dovoloped, Implomcntod and executed a new vduntoer management program to grow active volunteer base
from 100 to ovor 500 volunteers througi^out the state

• Managed & grew special events fundralsing from 15 events annually to ovor 160 events grossing ovor $1 million annually
• Managed communications and public relations - created newsletters, managed website, pitched wish stories to media -

incrcasbig the number of fan^ltos reached to grant over 250 wishes each year.

Education
Soulhom New Hampshire University, Manchester, NH Springfield CoBogo, Manchester, NH (satellite)
Master of Science, OfBanlzatlonal Leodftrshlp Masterof Sdenco In Human Services, Community Psychology

University of Maine, Orono. ME
Bachelorof Science, Child Development & Family Relations

Additional Certifications and Development
•  Certified Personal Trainer, National Academy of Sports Medicine, 2019

•  Adult First Ald/CPR/AED-2-year Certification, American Red Cross, 2018

•  Leadershlpof Non-Proflt Organizations, Graduate Certificate, Southern New Hampshire University, 2008

Honors& Achievements
•  2015 Community Service Award winner, Turkish Cultural Center of NH
•  2014 Excellence In Non-Proflt Award Recipient from NH Business Review
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Mart a D e V1 1 n

•  2013 Dudnass Leoder of the Year PInnacfe Award Winner, GreaterConcord Chamber of Commeice
•  2013 Presenter at the Internotlona) Disaster Management [Ixhlbltlan In Istanbul, Turkey
•  2013 Recognized as one of the Top Women-Led Non-Profits by Business NH Magazine

Community
• Women's Resource Group foundlrrg mombor, American Red Cross 3/19-present
•  Govomor's Council on Diversity and Inclusion, 3/19-pre$ont
• Waypoint NH (fofmerlv known as Child & Family Servldes of NH) Trustee, VZOlS-present
•  Volunteer New Hampshire, Board Member 2014-2016
•  NH Volunteer Organizations Active In Dl5aster{NH VOAD), Board Member 2014-2Die
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Meghan E. Shea, LICSW, MLADC

OBJECTIVE

Continue to utiltM and expftnd the dinioil and management elciUs have I attuincd from toy
ptofcssionfll and flcademic to seaue a position in a fX>nproQt setting.

EDUCATION / HCENSURE

Mftatoc - UcciiBcd AJoohol mid Df ng Coimsclor Sojitembcr 2010> PtcBcnt

Licensed Independent CUnlcnl SobJal Wotket October 22, 2012-Fresent

MosterofSoclniWorlc^UalvetsltyofNcwHampaliiiro May 2010
■ Graduated with an MSW from die Advanced Standuig Pcogram

Bachelor ofAft> Social Work, Unhrecelty ofNcw Hnmpahlrc May 2006
■ Graduated with an BSW widi GPA of 3.41

BKfPLOYMRNT

Vice President, CHalcnt Be Supportive Services
Families in Transltion-Ncw Hocizons December 20"*, 2017 - present

■  Rccdvcrshlp-lDtcnm Exccodve Director of Serenity Phcc
■ Oversees all dJniail and supportive services at Families In I'ranfiition-Ncw Horhons bidudbg

ctoccgency shcltct, tcaosidonBl and permanent Bupportivc housing, Inteoaivc Outpatient Services,
Outpatient setvicca, Recovery Housiog and progcatuming.

* Quality of control of kealtlicarefaclUlicslIccQsutc.
* Ovct&lght of fidelily of evicbucc based practices and models.
" Overaight ofstaff competencies and required trainings for beat practices across the agency.
■  SiipervisioQ of agcn^ program managers and housiog director.
"  Provide cUiucal supervisor for llccnBure and cetdficadons.

■  Quality control of all billing policies and ptocodutes.
dinlcal Dlrcotot

Families in Tranahion Sept 1*», 2016- December 2017
*  Ovcfseeand manageSt HousingProgtnm Manager vdio supervises the suppocdvo services dqmrtmcntwldj up

to 25 staff ptovlcfing housing (cmctgcocy, tconsltiotuil and pcnnaneni) and suppordvc services with capacity to
sccw 200 homeless individual and families. Supportive aci^cea cncomjiasa Individual case management,
thempy, psycbo-cducotkmid worksUofis, pro-sot^ froilbr ftcdvUIes and cdsb btccvcQtion.

■  Ovavco the Family >1^110^1 Progam Manager who supervises 11 dlnkal staff who conduct co-occucdng
trealment to women only

■  Develop and staff Recovery Housing progwm and implementation of newest hoiuing and supportive service
pjn^sunmlng

*  Develop and ovcrslgbt Open Doors ouqMiticnt pcogntnmlog for oU tianiUiooal housing programs nf WT
*  Ensure quality ptc^ammlng across Families lu Ttaoslllons clinical department
*  Provide tcalniiig wiibin die orBanbatlon and commwni^ on substance misuse in NH.
■  Adrabistcr all progam pohdci and procedure for PnmClcs In Tcansldoo's various Supportive Service
*  Oversight of billing coniponcnti ofall levels of Cri-occutdngtceatmcot.

Theraplet January 2014- Presont
Bedford Family Hicrapy
"  Tccat a caseload of 15 cSmta in a private outpatient grouji practico
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■  Utilize voiious evidence bniod piscdccs CBT,DBT, nnd Scekiag Safety ddilB to bdp dienu meet dielr owii
iodlviduft] gotb

■  Conduce Drug nud Alcohol uicMments
■  Active piurticlpnnl lo DWI OfEwKiec Piogmra ptovldiog imndatcd oo^adeat leselon foe indivldiwU coming

ftom the Imixtircd Dzlven Pcogram
"  Panidpatc in weekly tupcrvmon svith otbec licensed dloicbuM part of the privtito group pxncdce.

CUoicnl & Siippottivc Setvlce Msmogcf Morclt 7"^, 2016- August 31*<,2016
Fomlliea lu TctuislUon

■  Mmage the day to day operttlom Cor the i^mlly Willows Substance Use Ptogiam including six staff mombers
■  Muuige the day to day opcatioos for the Housing progcnm of Fomlljes In iVaosltion consisHng of over 200

apartment unka in Now I-liunpshlrc. .
■  Provide clinical (uul admlnJstmtivo supervision for a total of 14 staff for Pamliies In Ttanaidon
*  Bnjuro compliance with budgetacy and flnnndal goals.
■  Maintain comjdlaoce with State, Fedeal, Accreditation, Concnct nnd Ituumnce regubdot^
■  Administer nil program policies and procedure for Families In Tmnaillon's voiioui Ctkilca] Progmms,

Progtftm Mnnsigcr of die Ftunily WiUtiw Substaucc Use Treatment Prognun September 2014'2016
Families In Traiiaitlon

■  Manage the day to day operations Sot the Family WIlows Substance Use Program !>»<•>» six staff members
■  Transitioned (he pcogntm &offl grant funded to bGUng all corameidnl L^tumnces
•  bicreaaedacoossibUityoftzoAtmencficom 86clienuln20I3 b>250ia2016.
■  Provided cUnlcfll and adminlstmtrve oversight of the FW Substance Use Trentmcnt Pcogram
". Carded a CAseload of 12-15 indlvkloal clients providing co-occurdng evidence Imc therapeutic inmcvcntlons.
■  Facilitated lateivsivc Ouqmtleat tteatnient In a group setting on a weekly basis to group of 12 women.
•  Provided tcaimc^ and education to staff on cUnical Intervention and best practices in ̂  group setting

Thctopist May 2010-Scptcinbct 2014
Faoillles Ia Ttnnsldoti

■  Facilitated Intensive Outpatient Piogmmlng in a group setting daily for up to 12 dients
■  Cflciied a caseload of up to IS people for Indlviduiil dicmpy.
a  Provided cdsls sendees foe die botUne of Families In Transition

*  Conducted Substance Uto Disorder Asseismeiiti for iccotiUng clients
"  Produced treatment plans, progress notes and supporting dociimeutadon In a timely manner
"  Helped Implement new cutricuhim changes in the treatment programming

MSWlntom May 2000 tx> Mny 2010
Bedford Counseling —Me&tftl Plcaldi Contdt of Gtcntee Munchcstec

■  Conducted intake intecvicws for neav, adult dients and develop) comprefaensive psycho-sodnl assessments to
include diagnosis nnd substance use assessments

■  Provided psychotbcrapcutic intCAxntioo services to twcn^-two Individuaia using brief treatment and cognitive
bebsdornl iotervcotiDas

"  AUcuded l^npeuUc vmrkshops pertaining to diuUIiagnosis, bebiviond heoldi and dieiu driven treatment
plauniog

CaacMaOftgcr Jfuno 2006-Mny 2010
FamlUcB la Trnusidon

■  Provided io home case management services to 30 bdWduals and families to enhance houang staUUty nmdng
tbe homeless population.

■  Provided crisis hotline coverage for all clinical ptogtammlog of Ebmllics In Trenaldon "
"  Conducted piugram Interviews for the commnulty support program
■ Maintained all Rles with updated documentation, dear and cdocIsb progress jiotcs and treatment pbns
"  Fadlitated workshops to hdp enhance ovccoU wetness to participants of foe program
' CoUaborated with community partners to increase rcforeal resources

PR.OPBSSIONAL MRMBBRSHIPS

Providers Assodatiosi Board ofDlt^ctots-Vicc President of Treatment July 2014 to ProBcnt
NH Alcohol & Drug Abuse CciUtsclots Aasodatioa Jautmcy 2012 to Present
Mctnfjcr of the Maticlicstct Substance Use Collaborative Matdi 2012 to Ihcecnt

PRRSRNTATIQNS ^

NPI Afisodntion for lofntit mental health workshop Helping Parents Be Parents:
Addressing Substance Use nndTiftiuna in a Family System- Loon Mountdn June 2015
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Pfovldcfs Aeflodadoii: AddcMeing Substance Misuse in tiw Home Environment Msrdi 31 "^016 nl
Wcntwoctli Douj^s Hospitnl bx Dova> Nl-i

JIBFBRBNCES - AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST
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Lauren Berman

Professional Experience

2018-Present Director of Programs, Community Action Partnership of Strafford County, NH

• Manage over 20 programs, including outreach services; electric and fuel assistance; housing and
homeless initiatives (federal and state-funded); weatherization; senior services and transportation.

•  Prepare and develop annual program budgets totalling 8 million.Prepare grant proposals for
current and new programs.

• Hire, train, mentor and manage 20-person staff.
• Developed program goals based on the organization's strategic objectives by building additional

homeless services in Strafford County. Expanded our geographic coverage and homeless drop day
center.

• Oversaw the development and operation of our first seasonal winter shelter and warming center in
2020-21.

2015-2018 Housing Stability Manger. Community Action Partncrsliip of Strafford County

• Assisted clients with obtaining housing eligibility documentation.
• Assisted clients in identifying emotional, financial, and housing barriers while utilizing their

strengtlis to develop a c^e management plan.
• Executed the Housing First Approach to create a strength-based case management plan for the

client.

• Met with clients weekly to assess and assist family needs.
• Established and maintained positive, productive working relationships with team members,

mental health professionals, shelters, law enforcement, and other community partners.
•  Proactively identified programmatic challenges and issues and provided recommendations for

improvement.

2010-2015 Welfare Officer, City of Soniersworth, Somersworth, NH

• Administered the general assistance program in accordance with the City of Somersworth
Assistance Guidelines and RSA:165.

• Established and maintained relationships with other agencies and organizations in the
community to ensure that services were not duplicated.

• Worked with applicants to ensure that all necessary information is submitted to determine
eligibility.

• Made referrals when necessary., i.e.. Homeless shelters, food pantries.
• Updated the current City Guidelines 2015.

2004-2010 Founder and Partner. Good Worlcs Employment Services York County
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•  Co-foimder and partner of Good Work Employment Services (OWES), a locally run company
committed to assisting individuals in finding gainful employment, continuing their education,
securing volunteer opportunities, and obtaining housing. Clients referred to OWES by the Bureau
of Vocational Rehabilitation (VR), DHHS ASPIRE and Child Protective Services, school districts
and private insurers.

Education

2019-2020 Alumni of Leadership New Hampshire New Hampshire
2017-2018 Alumni of Leadership Scacoast Seacoast, NH
1999 B.S. Therapeutic Recreation Ithaca College Ithaca, NY



DocuSign Envelope 10; B5550DA9-2318-4D93-8060-36BBCE95C71A

Samantha Robertson

Education

UNIVERSITY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE May 2015
Masters of Social Work, Advanced Standing
Summa cum Laude

PLYMOUTH STATE UNIVERSITY May 2012
Bachelor of Social Work

Concentration; Mental Health, Magna cum Laude
Phi Alpha Honor Society, 2012

Social Work Experience

NHTI CONCORD'S COMMUNITY COLLEGE, Concord, NH March 2021 - Current
CC Counselor

Provide comprehensive student development through mental health intervention
« Engage in short term solution focused counseling
• Conduct assessments in order to improve life management skills through a Wellness
Model

• Work collaboratively with SCAN/BIT team and Health and Wellness Committee
• Co-Facilitate campus wide mental health awareness initiatives with various NHTI
directors and NAMI suicide prevention
• Supervise MSW intern
• Implement and provide on campus crisis inlervention and emergency protocols
• Connect and maintain community relationship partners
• Develop and implement Counseling Services policy and procedure
• Complete all administrative duties for Counseling Service (data tracking, reporting,
scheduling and outreach)

RIVERBEND COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH, Concord, NH
ACT Team Manager March 2018 - June 2019

• Served individuals with primary psychotic or major mood disorders, substance
misuse, homelessness, and legal issues
• Coordinated client discharges into the community from NHH and other DRF's
• Implemented yearly state and SAMHSA audit recommendations and guidelines
• Provided crisis management, case management, and individual therapy
• Coordinated staff schedules, team meetings, and time sheets

Adult Clinician July 2016 - March 2018
Provided individual and group therapy to SPMI population.

.  • Implemented therapeutic interventions (DBT, Motivational Interviewing, and CBT)
• Co-Facilitated skills groups such as DBT and Self-Esteem &Disordered Eating
• Provided safety and risk assessments for individuals with increased SI
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• Developed SMART goals, individual treatment plans, and daily SOAP notes
• Conducted intake assessments, eligibility, and diagnosis of prospective CSP clients

Clinical Case Manager June 2015 • July 2016
Provided clinical case management to SPMI and developmentally disabled population.

• Developed individual treatment plans to meet global and comprehensive needs
• Worked collaboratively with area agencies, family members, and guardians
• Provided functional support services and individual and group therapy
• Completed service referral, clinical assessment, and crisis management

CROSS ROADS HOUSE, Portsmouth, NH May 2014 - May 2015
MSW Advanced Clinical Internship
Provided case management to individuals and families affected by homelessness.

• Developed individualized case plans and goals
• Provided crisis intervention and service referrals

• Worked collaboratively with Social Work team on program development
• Co-facilitated family meetings and Rent Ready workshops

School Based Experience ,

CAMPTON SCHOOL DISTRICT, Campton, NH Sept 2013 - May 2014
After School Homework Advisor

Supervised school aged youth K-8
• Coordinated and facilitated diverse educational enrichment programs
• Collected and documented weekly payments for afterschool program
• Collaborated with other educators on gi'oup activities

PLYMOUTH ELEMENTARY SCHOOL, Plymouth, NH Sept 2013 - May 2014
Preschool Individual Aid

Daily functional support for preschool aged male diagnosed on the Autism Spectrum
• Conducted 5hr behavioral monitoring through biopsychosocial assessment
• Completed individualized discrete trials focused on lEP goals
• Aided in the development of gross and fine motor skills

PLYMOUTH PARKS AND RECREATION, Plymouth, NH Oct 2010 - May 2014
After School Homework Advisor

• Coordinated and managed diverse enrichment programs
• Provided after school homework support for school aged children K-8.
• Assisted in administi-alive duties; scheduling, filing, excel, and budgeting

REFERENCES AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST
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Faniilies in Tninsition

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid

from this

Contract

Maria Devlin President/CEO 200,000 0% -

Meghan Shea Chief Programs Officer 125,000 3% 3,750

Lauren Berman-Lefebvre Director of Housing Services 78.000 5%. 3,900

Samantha Robertson Program Manager - Housing 65,000 15% 9,750
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LeriA.ShtMDcm

Coawbriooer

Cbrbtiu L. SitttBieOe

Dirtctor

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC A HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271-9474 1-800-852-3345 Ext 9474

Fax: 603-271-4230 TDD Acctn: 1-800-73S-2964 www.(lbh9.iih.r>v

June 15, 2021

Ht8 ExceDency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to enter into Sole Source amendments with the three (3) Vendors listed in Bold
in the table below and amend the remaining contracts, by exercising renewal options to extend
the completion dates as reflected in the table below, to continue to provide Permanent Housing
and Coordinated Entry Programs to individuals, youth, and/or families who are at risk of or
experiencing homelessness, and by increMing the total price limitation by $2,335,227 from
$3,848,823 to $6,184,050, effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contracts were approved by Governor and Council on June 19, 2019, item
#46, and were subsequently amended with Govemor and Council approval on May 6,2020, item
#37. The contracts highfighted in bold, were amended with Govemor and Council approval, in
the order they appear below, on November 18. 2020, item #17, and on December 2, 2020 item
#11 and Hem #10 respectively.

Vendor Name &

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

Current

Completion
Date

Revised
Completloh

Date

Community ̂tk>n
Partnership

Straffbrd County.
Dover, NH

#177200-8004

Statewide $77,048 $38,524 $115,572
June 30,
2021

June 30,
2022

Community Action
Program Befknap-

Merrimack

Counties, Inc.,
Concord, NH

#177203-8003

Statewide $173,444 $86,722 $260,166
June 30,
2021

June 30,
2022

FIT/NHNH. Inc.,
MarKhester, NH

#157730-8001

Concord $308,452 $219,915 $528,367
August 31.

2021

August 31.
2022

FIT/NHNH. Inc..
Manchester. NH

#157730-8001

CoHdord $137,170 $68,585 $205,755
June 30,
2021

June 30.
2022

The Departmtnl of Htoith ond Human Services'Miseion U to joiix co/n/nuni((<B and families
in providing opportunities for cilieens to achieve health and independence.
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Hit Excelloocy, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Cound

Page 2 of4

The Latos Region
Mental Health

Center, Inc..
Laconla, NH

«154480-B001

Laoonia $202,046 $107,170 $309,216
June 30,
2021

June 30.
2022

Southwestern
Community

Services, Inc.,
Keene, NH

#177511-R001

Cheshire ft

Sullhran

Countiee

$248,042 $170,352 $416,394
August 31,

2021

August 31.
2022

Southwestern

Community
Services, Inc.,
Keene, NH

#177511-R001

Statewide $173,104 $86,552 $259,656
June 30.
2021

June 30.
2022

Southwestern
Community

Services, Inc.,
Keene, NH

#177511-R001

Cheshire ft

Sullivan

Counties

$570,368 $292,036 $862,404
June 30,
2021

June 30,
2022

The Mental Health
Center for Southern

New Hampshire
Derry. NH

#174116-R001

Western

Rockingham
County

$540,894 $286,119 $827,013
June 30,
2021

June 30.
2022

The Mental Health
Center for

Southern New
Hampshire
Oerry, NH

#174116-R001

Weetem

Rockingham
ft Cooe

Counties

$979,973 $758,031 $1,738,004
July 31.
2021

July 31.
2022

Tfi-County
Community Action
Program Inc.,
Berlin, NH

#177195-6009

Statewide $261,644 5130,822 $362,466
June 30,
2021

June 30,
2022

Tri-County
Community Action
Program Inc.,
Berlin. NH

#177195-8009

Grafton.
Coos, &
Carroll

Counties

$178,638 $90,399 $269,037
June 30.
2021

June 30.
2022

Total: $3,848,823 $2,335,227 $6,184,060
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^ ExceOency. Governor Christopher T. Sunimu
and the Horwratile Councfl
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Funds are anticipated to be avaiiable in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2022
and State Fiscal Year 2023, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and
encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-8M2-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class TItIo

Job

NumlMr

Current
Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svcs
TBD $1,606,764 $0 $1.806,764

2021 102-500731
Cor>trads for
Prog Svcs

TBD $2,145,410 $0 $2,145,410

2022 102-500731
Contracts for
Prog Svcs

TBD $96,649 $2,215,928 $2,312,577

2023 102-500731 Contracts for

Prog Svcs
TBD $0 $119,299 $119,299

Total; $3,848,823 $2,335,227 $6,184,050

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Department is seeking to extend the existing
contracts with the three (3) vendors listed In bold above beyond the renewal options available to
align with the revised Federal award dates. Federal regulations require the Department to Identify
each vendor, by name, during the annual, federal Continuum of Care Program renewal application
process, prior to the grant awards being issued. A competitive process occurs at the Federal level
and the Department delivers the funding to the Contractors through these agreements.
Specifically, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urt>an Development reviews the applications
and subsequently awards funding based on pre-established criteria.

The purpose of this request is to continue providing Permanent Housing and Coordinated
Entry Programs that deliver rental and leasing assistance, and access to supportive and other
services to individuals who are experiencing homelessness. The vendors support the primary
goals of the Continuum of Care Permanent Housing arid Coordinated Errtry Programs, which are
to provide housing supports while Identifying and engaging unsheltered homeless persons and
persons at imminent risk of homelessness, as well as providing basic interventions such as food
and referrals to services and to fadlitate their movement to shelter, permanent housing and
maximum self-sufficiency.

Approximately 3.400 homeless individuals, or Individuals at imminent risk of
homelessness, will be served from July 1, 2021, to August 31, 2022.

The vendors will facilitate the movement of participants to shelter and permanent housing
white providing connections to community and mainstream services in order to maximize
participants' abilities to live more Independently. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development established the Continuum of Care concept to support communities In their efforts
to address the problems of housing and homelessness In a coordinated, comprehensive and
strategic manner.
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His B^eOency, Governor Chrietopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Peo64of4

The Department witl monitor contracted services using the following reports and
information:

• Annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and contractual
agreements.

Seml-annuai statistical reports, including vanous demographic information, as well
as income and expense reports, to include match dollars.

Data entry Into the New HampsNre Homeless Management Infonnation System,
which is the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and
housing programs.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language, Section 2.,
Renewal, Paragraph 2.1., of the original contracts, the parties have the option to extend the
agreements for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department
is exercising its option to renew services with nine (9) contractors for the one remaining year
available. As noted above, the Department is seeking to extend the agreements with FIT/NHNH,
Inc. and Southwestern Community Services, Inc.. for one (1) year and only ten (10) months of
renewal is available in each corttract and to extend the contract with the Mental Health Center for
Southern New Hampshire by one (1) year and only 11 months of renewal is available.

Should the Governor and Coundl not authorize this request, there will be fewer permanent
housir>g options and supportive services available, leaving vulnerable Individuals and families In
unsafe or deadly situations without a safety net. Additionally, if data is not collected, as required
by these contracts, the Department will be incompliant with federal regulations, which could result
In a loss of federal funding for these ar^d other types of homeless and permanent housing
supportive services.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: CFDA #14.267. FAIN #8, NH0096L1T002005. NH0003L1T002013.
NH0013L1T002013, NH0020L1T002013, NH0007L1T002013, NH0019L1T002013,
NH0014L1T002013, NH0060L1T002008. NH0057L1T002011.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Continuum of Care, FIT Concord Community PSH contract is by and between
the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and
FIT/NHNH, Inc.. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19. 2019, (Item #46), as amended on May 6, 2020, (Item #37). and as amended on November
18. 2020, (Item #17), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
Standard Contract Language, Section 2, Renewal, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement. Increase the price limitation, or
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

August 31, 2022

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$528,367

3. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Permanent
Supportive Housing Program Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.4., to read:

1.2.4. Grant Numbers

1.2.4.1. NH0060L1T001806 (SFY 2020; July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2020)

1.2.4.2. NH0060L1T001907 (SFY 2021; July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2021)

1.2.4.3. NH0D60L1T001907 (SFY 2022; July 1, 2021 - August 31, 2021)

1.2.4.4. NH0060L1T002008 (SFY 2022; September 1. 2021 - June 30. 2022)

1.2.4.5. NH0060L1T002008 (SFY 2023; July 1, 2022 - August 31, 2022)

4. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Permanent
Supportive Housing Program Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.7., Subparagraph
1.2.7.1., to read:

1.2.7.1. Not to exceed $528,367.

5. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Permanent
Supportive Housing Program, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.8., to read:

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for the Continuum of Care Program;

July 1,2022
July 1,2019- July 1,2020- July 1,2021 - - August 31,
June 30. 2020 June 30, 2021 June 30, 2022 2022

1.2.8.1. Supportive Services: $15,956 $27,267 $31,053 $5,302

1.2.8.2. Leasing: $80,780 $148,143 $177,475 $30,557

1.2.8.3. Administrative Expenses: $2.310 $4.082 $4.648 $794

1.2.8.4. Total Program Amount: $99,046 $179,492 $213,176 $36,653

Contractor Initials

DS

Ml)
SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-10-A03 FIT/NHNH, Inc. c/i
A-S-1.0 Page 1 of 3 Dale
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall t>e effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval, whichever is later.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

V—— OocuSlgntd by:

Q/2.2/2021
i—ooeoMfP^MMo*...

Date Name: Christine santameiio
Title: Di rector

FIT/NHNH. Inc.

— OoeuSigncd by:

6/11/2021
—  — '^i'ASMinaTi.eux..—

Date Name: Man a oevim

Title; president & CEO

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-10.A03 FIT/NHNH. Inc.

A-S-1.0 Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance,
and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

— OotuSigiwd by;

6/12/2021
'ic*»wgce?e«-»c.'.r

Date Name: Catherine Pinos
Title. Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council
of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-10-A03 FIT/NHNH. Inc.
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Lori A. SbiblBtne

CemmJuieo<r

Chiisiloc L Saatinkllo
DIrcdor

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9474 I-600-8S2-334S Ext. 9474

Fix: 603-271-4230 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

October 12. 2020

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to enter into a Retroactive. Sole Source amendment to an existing contract
with FIT/NHNH, Inc. {VC#157730-B001), Manchester, NH for the ongoing provision of Permanent
Housing and Supportive Services to individuals and families who are experiencing homelessness
through the Federal Continuum of Care Program, by exercising a renewal option by increasing
the price limitation by $107,937 from $200,515 to S308.452 and by extending the completion date
from June 30. 2021, to August 31, 2021, effective October l, 2020. upon Governor and Council
approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 19. 2019, item #46
and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on May 6, 2020, item #37.

Funds are. available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2021. and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SERVICES, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING-

SHELTER PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
42308314

$99,046 $0 $99,046

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
42308317

$101,469 $78,023 $179,492

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
42308317

$0 $29,914 $29,914

Total $200,615 $107,937 $308,452

77m Otparlmtnl of Health and Human Stroices' Minion it to join eommunilUt and families
in providing opporltinilies for eitiitnt to achieve health and independence.
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Kis Excellency. Governor Civistopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive because the U.S. Department of Housing and Development
(HUD) grant award required an expansion to the scope of work for this contract in order to
consolidate services provided by the vendor in another contract which expired September 30,
2020, (Continuum of Care. Concord Community Permanent Housing, approved by Governor and
Council on June 19, 2019, Item #46).. Additional time was needed to negotiate and finalize the
revised scope of work prior to the vendor accepting the terms of the agreement. Approval of this
amendment, with the retroactive effective date of October 1. 2020, wiH prevent a lapse in services
critical to the Department's ability to ensure availability of permanent housing' options and
homeless outreach services in MerrlmacK County. This request is Sole Source because federal
regulations require the Department to specify each vendor's name during the annual, federal
Continuum of Care Program renewal application process, prior to the grant award being issued.
Based on the application evaluation process. HUD directs the Department to provide grant awards
and the specific amounts to vendors.

The purpose of this request is to continue a Permanent Housing Program that delivers
rental and leasing assistance, service access and supportive services to individuals and families
who are experiencing homelessness.

The program facilitates the movement of homeless and chronically homeless individuals
and families to permanent housing and maximum self-sufficiency. Approximately sixteen (16)
households and twenty-two (22) individuals will be served from October 1. 2020 to August 31,
2021.

Using the Housing First model and the development of Stabilization and Crisis
Management plans, the vendor will facilitate the movement of each participant into sustained
permanent housing while providing connections to community and mainstream services to
maximize each participant's ability to live more independently.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following reports and
Information:

•  Annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and contractual
agreements.

•  Semi-annual statistical reports, including various demographic information, as well
as income and expense reports, to include match dollars.

•  Data entry Into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System,
which is the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing
programs.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language. Section 2..
Renewal., of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its
option to renew services for two (2) months of the remaining one (1) year available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer permanent
housing options and homeless outreach services available, leaving individuals and families who
are vulnerable In unsafe and potentially deadly situations. Additionally, if data is not collected as
required by the contract, the Department will be in non-compliance with federal regulations, which
could result in a loss of federal funding for homeless and permanent housing supportive services.
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Area served; Merrimack County

Source of Funds: CFDA #14.267, FAIN #NH0060L1T001907

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

I

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette
Commissioner
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, FIT Concord Community PSH

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the Continuum of Care,
FIT Concord Community PSH Contract

This 2"^ Amendment to the Continuum of Care, FIT Concord Community PSH contract, (formerly known
as the Continuum of Care, Concord Community Leasing II PH contract), (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #2") is by and between- the Stale of New Hampshire, Department of Health and' Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and FIT/NHNH, Inc., (hereinafter referred
to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 122 Market Street. Manchester,
NH. 03101.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19. 2019 (Hem fM6). as amended on May 6. 2020 (Item #37). the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-i, Revisions to
Standard Contract Language. Section 2.. Renewal, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement
of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or'modlfy
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

August 31, 2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$308,452.

3. Remove all references to "Concord Community Leasing II PH" and replace with "FIT Concord
Community PSH" throughout the Agreement.

4. Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit A - Amendment #2.
Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

5. Modify Exhibit B. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 1. Permanent
Supportive Housing Program Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.4., to read:

1.2.4. Grant Numbers

1.2.4.1. NHOO60L1TOOiaO6 (SPY 2020; July 1. 2019 - June 30, 2020)

1.2.4.2. NH0060L1T001907 (SFY 20.21; July 1. 2020 - June 30. 2021)

1.2.4.3. NH0060L1T0D1907 (SPY 2022; July 1,2021 - August 31. 2021)

6. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1. Permanent
Supportive Housing Program Funding. Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.7., Subparagraph 1.2.7.1:,
to read:

1.2.7.1. Not to exceed $308,452.

FtT/NHNH Inc. Amsndmenl Contractorlnilials

577677W
SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-10-A02 Page 1 of 4 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, FIT Concord Community PSH

7. Modify Exhibit B. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 1. Permanent
••Supportive Housing Program. Subsection 1.2.. Paragraph 1.2.8.. to read;

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for the Continuum of Care Program:

July 1, 2019 . July 1, 2020 - July 1. 2021 ■
June 30, 2020 June 30, 2021 August 31, 2021

1.2.8.1. Supportive Services: $15,956 $27,267 $4,544

1.2.8.2. Leasing: $80,780 $148,143 $24,690

1.2.8.3. Administrative Expenses: $2.310 $4.082 $680
1.2.8.4. Total Program Amount: $99,046 $179,492 $29,914

»ale V ^FIT/NHNH. Inc. Amendmeni tf2 Conlraclor Initials
9/28/2020

SS-2020-BHS-04.PERMA-10-A02 Page 2 of 4 Dale
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, FIT Concord Community PSH

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment U2
remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall be effective October 1, 2020. upon Governor and
Executive Council-approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

9/29/2020

Date

^Oe<uSi«n«4 by;

Santamello

Title; 01 rector

FIT/NHNH, Inc.

9/28/2020

Date

—0o«ujlon«4 by:

Title: president & CEO

FIT/NHNH, Inc.

SS-2020-BHS^4-PERMA-l0-A02

Amendment U2

Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

-0»<uSla^4 br:

10/5/2020

Dale Pinos
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Stale of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

FIT/NHNH, inc. ^ Amendment #2

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-10-A02 ' Page 4 of 4.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program, FIT Concord Community PSH

Exhibit A - Amendment U2

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Permanent Supportive Housing Program

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description Of the language assistance services they will
provided to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their programs
and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective dale; submitted to;

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports (BHS)
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire General'
Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the services described herein, the
State, through the Bureau of Housing Supports, has the right to modify service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State are
contingent upon receipt of federal funds under the Continuum of Care (CoC) Grant. The State, as
the Collaborative Applicant for the Balance of State CoC, and/or, the recipient of the CoC funding,
has applied for the CoC Grant and will continue to perform due diligence in the application process.
However, the State makes no representation that it will receive the funds. In no event shall the
State be liable for costs Incurred or payment of any services performed by the Contractor prior to
the State's receipt of federal funds applied for in the CoC Grant.

1.4. For the purposes of this agreement, the Department has identified the Contractor as a
subreclpient. in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

1.5. Notwithstanding the confidenliality procedures established under 24 CFR Part 578.103(b), US
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the HUD Office of the Inspector General,,
and the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized representatives, must
have the right of access to all books, documents, papers, or other records of the Contractor that
are pertinent to the CoC grant. In order to make audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcripts.
These rights of access are not limited to the requlred retention period, but last as long as the
records are retained.

1.6. The Contractor shall maintain adherence to federal and state financial and confidentiality laws,
and agrees to comply with the program narratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments
thereto, as detailed In the 2017 Notice of Funding Available (NOFA) CoC Project Application
approved by HUD.

1.7. The Contractor shall provide services according to HUD regulations outlined in Public Law 102-
550 and 24 CFR Part 578; CoC Program and other written, appropriate HUD policies/directives.

1.8. Ail programs shall be licensed to provide client level data Into the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs shall follow NH HMIS policy, including
specific information required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required for data
entry. Refer to Exhibit K for Information Security requirements and Exhibit I for Privacy
requirements.

1.9. The Contractor shall cooperate fully with and answer all questions, related to this contract, of
representatives of the State or Federal agencies who may conduct a periodic review of
performance or an' Inspection of records, /—

AtP
FIT/NHNH. Inc. ExhiWl A - Amendment «2 Contfdciof Initials^

9/28/2020
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program, FIT Concord Community PSH

Exhibit A • Amendment #2

1.10. The Conlraclor shall support the primary goal of this program which is to facilitate the movement
'  of homeless and chronically homeless individuals and families to permanent housing and

maximum self-sufficiency.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall implement a Coordinated Entry System (CES) for all projects funded by the
CoC Program, Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) Program, and Housing Opportunities for
Persons with AIDS (HOPWA) Program, In accordance with CoC interim rule. 24 CFR Part 578.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide a Permanent Supportive Housing program comprised of sixteen (16)
housing units (households) and twenty-two (22) beds serving homeless individuals, youth, and/or,
families In Merrimack County with leasing assistance and supportive services, which includes, but
is not limited to;

2.2.1. Utilizatiori of the "Housing First" model, ensuring barriers to entering housing are not imposed
beyond those required by regulation or statute, and will only terminate project participation for
the most severe reasons, once available options have been exhausted to help a participant
maintain housing."

2.2.2. The development of a stabilization plan and crisis management plan with the participant, at
intake and, at a minimum, annually. An ongoing Assessment of Housing and Supportive
Services is required, with the ultimate goal being assistance to the participant in obtaining the
skills necessary to live in the community independently.

2.3. The Contractor shall establish and maintain standard operating procedures to ensure CoC
program funds are used in accordance with 24 CFR 578 and must establish and maintain sufficient
records to enable HUD and BHS to determine Contractor requirement compliance, including:

2.3.1. Continuum of Care Records: The Contractor shall maintain the following documentation related
to establishing and operating a CoC:

2.3.1.1. Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor shall maintain acceptable evidence of
homeless status in accordance with 24 CFR 576.500(b).

2.3.1.2. Records of at Risk of Hometessness Status: The Contractor shall maintain records that

establish "at risk of homelessness" status of each individual or family who receives CoC
hometessness prevention assistance, as identified in 24 CFR 576.500(c).

2.3.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of Imminent Threat of Harm. The Contractor shall maintain

documentation of each program participant who moved to a different CoC due to imminent
threat of further domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, as defined
in 24 CFR 578.51(c)(3). The Contractor shall retain documentation that includes, but is not
limited to:

2.3.1.3.1 The original incidence of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking,
only if the original violence Is not already documented in the program participant's case
file. This may be written observation of the housing or service provider; a letter or other
documentation from a victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider,
pastoral counselor, mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim
has sought assistance: medical or dental records; court records or law enforcement
records; or written certification by the program participant to whom the violence
occurred or by the head of household.

2.3.1.3.2 The reasonable belief of imminent threat of further domestic violence, dalioa violence,
or sexual assault or stalking, which would include threats from a third-par^^uch as a

FIT/NHNH. Inc. EKhlbit A-Amendment #2 Cootfactof Initial!^ —
9/28/2020
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Exhibit A - Amendment #2

friend or family member of the perpetrator of the violence. This may be written
observation by the housing or service provider; a letter or other documentation from a
victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider, pastoral counselor,
mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim has sought
assistance; current restraining order; recent court order or other court records; law
enforcement report or records; communication records from the perpetrator of the
violence or family members or friends of the perpetrator of the violence, Including
emails, volcemails, text messages, and social media posts; or a written certification by
the program participant to whom the violence occurred or the head of household.

■ 2.3.1.4. Records of Annual Income. For each program participant who receives housing assistance
where rent or an occupancy charge is paid by the program participant, the Contractor must

• keep the following documentation of annual Income:

2.3.1.4.1. Income evaluation form specified by HIJD and completed by the Contractor; and

2.3.1.4.2. Source documents (e.g.. most recent wage statement, unemployment compensation
statement, public benefits statement, bank statement) for the assets held by the
program participant and income received before the dale of the evaluation;

2.3.1.4.3. To the extent that source documents are unobtainable, a written statement by a
relevant third party (e.g.. employer, government benefits administrator) or the written
certification by the Contractor's intake staff of the oral verification by the relevant third
party of the income the program participant received over the most recent period; or

2.3.1.4.4. To the extent that source documents and third-party verification are unobtainable, the
written certification by the program participant of the amount of income that the
program participant is reasonably expected to receive over the three (3) month period
following the evaluation.

2.3.1.5. Prooram Participant Records. In addition to evidence of homelessness status or at-risk-of-

homelessness status, as applicable, the Contractor must keep records for each program
participant that document:

2.3.1.5.1. The services and assistance provided to that program participant, including evidence
that the Contractor has conducted an annual assessment of services for those program
participants that remain in the program for more than a year and adjusted the service
package accordingly, and Including case management services as provided in 24 CFR
578.37(a)(1)(ii)(F):and

2.3.1.5.2. Where applicable, compliance with the termination of assistance requirement in 24
CFR 578.91.

2.3.1.6. Housino Standards. The Contractor must retain documentation of compliance with the
housing standards in 24 CFR 578.75(b). including Inspection reports.

2.3.1.7. Services Provided. The Contractor must document the types of supportive services
provided under the Contractor's program and the amounts spent on those services. The
Contractor must keep documentation that these records were reviewed at'least annually
and that the service package offered to program participants was adjusted as necessary.

2.4. The Contractor shall maintain records that document compliance with;

2.4.1. The Organizational conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(c).

2.4.2. The Continuum of Care Board conflict-ol-interest requirements In 24 CFR 578.9%
FiTlNHNH. Inc. Exhibil A -AmendmeAl *2 Conlractot Inllialt^

9/28/2020
SS-2020-BHS04-PeRMA-10-A02 PafleSolS Oaie



DocuSign Envelope ID: B5550DA9-2318-4D93-8060-36BBCE95C71A

OocuSign Envelope ID: 6F8EF4F^A97-44A7-BeOB-006923EE4C63

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program, FIT Concord Community PSH
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2.4.3. The Other Conflicts feouirements in 24 CFR 578.95(d).

2.5. The Contractor shall develop, implement and retain a copy of the personal conflict-of-interest policy
that complies with the requirements in 24 CFR 578.95, Including records supporting any exceptions
to the personal conflict-of-interest prohibitions.

2.6. The Contractor shall cornply and retain documentation of compliance with:

2.6.1. The Homeless Particioation requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.75(g),

2.6.2. The Faith-based Activities requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.87(b).

2.6.3. Affirmativelv Furtherino Fair Housino bv maintaining copies of all marketing, outreach, and
other materials used to inform eligible persons of the program in accordance with 24 CFR
578.93(c).

2.6.4. Other Federal Reouirements in 24 CFR 578.99, as applicable.

2.6.5. Other Records Specified bv HUD. The Contractor must keep other records as specified by
HUD.

2.6.6. The Contractor must retain copies of all procurement contracts and documentation of
compliance with the Procurement Requirements in 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR part 84.

2.7. Confidentiality. In addition to meeting the specific confidentiality and security requirements for
HfvllS data (76 FR 76917), the Contractor shall develop and implement written procedures to
ensure:

2.7.1. All records containing protected identifying information of any individual or family who applies
for and/or receives Continuum of Care assistance shall be kept secure and confidential as
required by this Agreement and state and federal laws and regulations; j

2.7.2. The address or location of any family violence project assisted with Continuum of Care funds
shall not be made public, eixcept with written authorization of the person responsible for the
operation of the project; and

2.7.3. The address or location of any housing of a program participant will not be made public, except
as provided under a preexisting privacy policy of the recipient or subrecipient and consistent
with State and local laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality;

2.8. Period of Record Retention. The Contractor shall ensure all records, originals or copies made by
^ microfilming, photocopying, or other similar methods, pertaining to Continuum of Care funds are
retained for five (5) years following the Contract Completion Dale and receipt of final payment by
the Contractor unless records are otherwise required to be maintained for a period in excess of the
five (5) year period according to state or federal law or regulation.

3. Program Reporting Roauirements

3.1. The Contractor shall submit the following reports:

3.1.1. Annual Performance Report (APR): Within thirty (30) days after the Contract Completion Date,
an APR shall be submitted to BHS that summarizes the aggregate results of the Project
Activities, showing in particular how the Contractor is carrying out the project in the manner
proposed in the application submitted to HUD for the relevant fiscal year Notice of Funding
Availability (NOFA). The APR shall be in the form required or specified by the State, and
submitted to the address listed in section 1.1. Exhibit A; and

3.1.2. Other Reoorts as requested by the Stale in compliance with NH HMIS policy.
FIT/NHNH. Ik, A - Amendment K2 Contraclw Irellels^

9/28/2020
SS-2020-BHS-04-PeRMA-10-A02 PajO^OlS Dote
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4. Contract Administration

4.1. The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff to attend all meetings or trainings requested
by BHS, including training in data security and confidentiality, according to state and federal laws.
To the extent possible. BHS shall notify the Contractor of the need to attend such meetings five (5)
working days in advance of each meeting.

4.2. The Contractor shall inform BHS of any staffing changes within thirty (30) days of the change.

5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor shall adhere to all terms and conditions as set forth in the HUD New Project
Application. #SF-424: and

5.1.1. The Contractor shall abide by the performance measures as detailed in all applicable HUD
regulations including, but not limited to. those outlined in 24 CFR Part 578: Continuum of Care
Program and Public Law 102-550.

5.1.2. The Contractor shall be accountable to all performance measures as detailed in the Annual
Performance Report Section 3.1.1. Exhibit A.

5.2. The Bureau Administrator of BHS. or designee, may observe performance, activities and
documents under this Agreement.

6. Deliverables

6.1. The Contractor shall implement a Coordinated Entry System, as detailed in Section 2.1. Exhibit A.
in accordance with the CoC Program interim rule. 24 CFR Part 578 and as amended.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide a Permanent Supportive Housing program as outlined in Section 2.2.
Exhibit A and as outlined in other written HUD policies and directives as appropriate.

6.2.1. Project outcomes shall include, but are not limited to:

6.2.1.1. Participants exit homelessness faster, and once housed, remain stably housed.

6.2.1.2. Participants experience increased connections to:

6.2.1.2.1. Mainstream benefit resources; employment and/or vocational rehab referrals;

6.2.1.2.2. Mental health and/or substance abuse service access and referrals; and

6.2.1.2.3. Sen/ice Coordination Partners for educational, vocalionat, employment and health
needs.

6.3. The Contractor shall provide accurate and timely reporting as detailed in Section 3.. Program
Reporting Requirements. Exhibit A.

kJO
FIT/NHNH. (nc. Enhlbll A - A/n«nOment «2 ConlQCtor Inllialt^ '

9/28/2020
SS-?020-BHS4)4.PERMA-^OAO? Pafift 5 ol 5 Dale
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

D/ra/O/V OF ECOf^OMlC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301

603-271.9474 I-8004S3-334S Cs(. 9474

Ffli: 603-27M230 TOD Accest: 1-300-735-29^ www.dhhs.nh.gov

April 22, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to amend existing Sole Source contracts with the vendors listed below to
provide Permanent Housing and. Coordinated Entry Programs and Supportive Services to
individuals and families who are experiencing homelessness through the Federal Continuum of
Care Program, by exercising contract renewal options by increasing the total price limitation by
$1.657,969 from $1.606,764 to $3,264,733 and by extending the completion dates from June 30.

2020 to June 30. 2021 effective July 1, 2020 or upon Governor and Council approval, whichever
is later. The original contracts were approved by Governor and Council on June 19.,2019, ilem
#46.100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Name Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

Community
Action

Partnership
Strafford

County.
Dover, NH

177200-

B004
Statewide $38,524 $38,524 $77,048

Community '
Action

Program
Belknap-
Merrimack

Counties, Inc.,
Concord. NH

177203-

8003 ■. Statewide $86,722 $86,722 $173,444

FIT/NHNH,
Inc.,

Manchester,
NH

157730-
8001

Concord $99,046 $101,469 $200,515

FIT/NHNH,
Inc..

Manchester.
NH

157730-
B001

Concord $68,585 $68,585 $137,170

Thf Dcfiorimcnl of I lenlth ond Hiininn Services' Miision is to join contriimitics and fomHies
ill providing opporlnnilies for eilizens to achieve health and indeiKudcnee.
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The Lakes

Region Mental
Health Center.

Inc..
laconia. NH

154480-

8001
Laconia $99,835 $102,211 $202,046

Southwestern

Community
Services. Inc.,
Keene, NH

177511-

R001

Cheshire &

Sullivan

Counties

$85,230 $87,728 $172,956

Southwestern

Community

Services. Inc.,
Keene. NH

177511-

R001
Statewide $86,552 $86,552 $173,104

Southwestern

Community
Services. Inc.,
Keene. NH

177511-

R001

Cheshire &

Sullivan

Counties

$281,824 $288,544 $570,368

The Mental

Health Center

for Southern '

New

Hampshire
Oerry. NH

174116-

ROOl

Western

Rockingham
County

$267,435 $273,459 $540,894

The Mental

Health Center

for Southern

New

Hampshire
Derry. NH

174116-

R001

Western

Rockingham
County

$273,230 $303,674 $576,904

Tri-County
Community

Action

Program Inc..
Berlin, NH

177195-

8009
Statewide $130,822 $130,822 $261,644

Tri-County
Community

Action

Program inc.,
Berlin. NH

177195-

8009

Grafton.
Coos, and
Carroll

Counties

$88,959 $89,679 $178,638

Total: $1,608,764 $1,657,969 $3,264,733
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Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021, with the authority
to adjust budget line Items within the price limitation through the Budget Office, if needed and
justified.

05-95-42-423010.7927 HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SERVICES. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HORAELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING-
SHELTER PROGRAM

State

Fiscal
Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current
Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc 100 $1,606,764 $0 $1,806,764

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD $0 $1,657,696 $1,657,696

Total $1,606,764 $1,657,969 $3,264,733

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because federal regulations require the Department to
specify each vendor's name during the annual, federal Continuum of Care Program renewal
application process, prior to the grant award being issued. Annually, the US Department of
•Housing and Urban Development (HUO) oversees a Continuum of Care Program competitive
application process. As part of this process, the Department Is required to provide HUD with each
potential vendor and HUD evaluates vendor applications. Based on that evaluation process, HUD
directs the Department to provide grant awards and the specific amounts to vendors. As
previously stated, the original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 19. 2019,
Item #46.'

The purpose of this request is to continue providing Permanent Housing and Coordinated
Entry Programs that deliver rental and leasing assistance, access to supportive services and other
services to individuals who are experiencing homelessness.

Approximalely-3,000 individuals will be served from July 1, 2020 to July 1, 2021.

Vendors facilitate movement of participants into sustained permanent housing while
providing connections with community and mainstream services in order to maximize participants'
abilities to live more independently. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
established the Continuum of Care concept to support commuriities in their efforts to address the
problems of housing and homelessness in a coordinated, comprehensive and strategic manner.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following performance
measures;

•  Annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and contractual
agreements.

•  Semi-annual statistical reports, including various demographic information and
income and.expense reports, to include.match dollars.

•  All vendors funded through these contracts will report through the timely and
accurate entry of data into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information
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System, unless the vendor is required by law to use an alternate means of data
collection. This will be the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activilies of
shelter and housing programs.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1. Revisions to Standard Contract Language. Section 2..
Renewal, of the original contracts, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement, of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising Its
option to renew services for one (t) of the two (2) years available.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer
permanent housing options and homeless outreach services available, leaving Individuals and
families that are vulnerable in unsafe and deadly situations without a safety net. Additionally, if

data is not collected as required by these contracts, the Department will be in non-compliance
with federal regulations, which could result in a loss of federal funding for these and other types
of homeless and permanent supportive services.

Area served; Statewide

Source of Funds: CFDA# 14.267/FAIN# NH0014L1T001912. NH0057L1T001910.
NH0060L1T001907. NH0096L1T001904

Respectfully submitted

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Continuum of Care. Concord Community Leasing ll'PH

This 1" Amendment to the Continuum of Care, Concord Community Leasing II PH contract {hereinafter
referred to as 'Amendment is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health
and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or 'Department') end FIT/NHNH. Inc.,
(hereinafter referred to es "the Contractor'), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 122 Market
St. Manchester. NH. 03101.

WHEREAS, pursuant to en agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19. 2019. (ltomF46). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms end
conditions specified In the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 16. and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
Standard Contract Language. Section 2.. Renewal., the Contract may be amended ar>d extended upon
written agreement of tho parties end approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, tha parties agree to extend.the term of the agreement, increase (he price (imitation, or nxidrfy
the scopa of services to suppoh continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contrect and sat forth herein, the parties hereto agree to emend as follows;

1. Form P-37 Gerwral Provisions. Block 1.7, Completion Dale, to read:

June 30. 2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read:

$200,515

3. Exhibit 8. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1. Permanent Supportive
Housing Program Funding. Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.4.. to read: ,

1.2.4. Grant Numbers:

1.2.4.1. NHOOSOLITCDI805 (Grant Year 1)

1.2.4.2. NH0O60L1T0D1907 (Grant Year 2) ■

4. Exhibit B, Methods and Condllions Precedent to Payment. Section 1. Permanent Supportive
Housing Program Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.7.. Subparagraph 1.2.7.1., to read:

1.2.7.1 Not to exceed $200,515

5. Exhibit 6, Methods and Condllions Precedent to Payment, Section 1. Permanent Supportive
Housing Program, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.8., to read:

1.2.8. Funds allocaUon under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program;

-  Grant Year 1 Grant Year 2

1.2.6.1. Case Management (Supportive Services) $15,956 $15,956

1.2.8.2. Leasing $80,780 $83,203

1.2.8.3. Administrative Expenses $2.310 S2:310

1.2.0.4. Total Program Amount $99,046 $101,469

1.2.8.5. Vendor Match (25%) $4,567 $4,567

FIT/NHNH. Inc. Amondmonl //1 ConUodof tnltlals

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-10-A01 Pago 1 of 3 Dele 3-30-2020
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not Inconsistent wtth this Amendment #1 remain In full force and
effect. This amendment ehal) be effective upon the date of Governor end Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have eet their hands as of the dale written below,

Slate of New Hampshire
Oepartment of Health and Human Services

ulT}^
Date ^ * Name:

Fit/NHNH. Inc.

March 30. 2020

Date

0^
ems: Cal hn

Title:
Co-l Executive Leaders

FIT/NHNH. lac.

$S-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-10-A01

AmonOfflcnl nt

Pago 2 or 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Concord Community Leasing IIPH

The preceding Amendmenl, having been reviewed by Ihls office, b approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date* t |vamfi

de:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshiro at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

FIT/NHNH. Inc.

8S-202t«HS^4-PERMA-10-A01

AmendmonlSI

Page 3 o( 3
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^STATE OF NEW HAMPStORE ■

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH A^ HUMAN SERVICES

DimiON OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STA BJLITY

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH OJ30I
60J-27I.9474 1.80^52-3345 ExL9474

''F«i'..M>27m220 tod Aceui: I*806-73S<29^ www;<Jhhs.nh.gev

May 28. 2019 ' .

His Excellency. GovemoV Christopher T. Sunuhu ..'
and the Honorable Council

Stale House
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION .

A'uthohre the Deparlmenl of Health'and Human Services. Division of EMnomic and Housing
Stability, to enter inio sole source agreements with the vendors below to provide Permanent Housing
'and Cobrdinaied EntiV Programs and Supportive Services to horneless individuals and faniilies'through
• the Fede'ral Contlnuum of.Care Prograrh Iri a'n-amount no) to.exceed $1,606,764, effective J.uly 1. 2019,
■ upon Govefhor'^hd Executive Cduncil.appfoval, thfough June 30, 2020.'-100% Federal.Funds.

Vendpr.Name • Project Name Vendor#. Location •
SFY2020.

Arhpunt

ComfTnunily Adion'
Partnership Strafford Courity

Coofdinated-Enlry ■i7?20b-'B0M Statewide' $38,524 .

Cbmnriunity Action Program" .
Belknap^Merrimack Counties..
Inc."

Coordinated Entry ' .177203-B003 Statewide. ' $68,722

FIT/NHNH, Inc.-
Concord Community
Leasing "11 Permanent
Housing-

157730-B001. . Concord $99,046

FIT/NHNH, Inc. Concord. Permanent
"Housing

157730-8001 Concord $68,585

the l.akes Region Mental
Health Center^ Inc. .

McGratli Street ,-
Permanent Housing .1.54480-B001 Laconia" " $99!835

.Southwestern Community "
Services. Inc.

Permanent Housing.
Cheshire County' 177511-RObl

Cheshire &
Sytlivan

.Counties
$85,230

Southwestern Commur)ity
Services-, Inc. • - •-;• Coordinated Entry 1775Tl-R0.bl • Statewide. - . $86,552

•Southwestern Cbrhmunity
Services;-Itic.

Shelter Plus Care .
•Permanent Housing 177511.-RqOl

Cheshire, &
Siitlivan'

■Counties
$281,824

>  , *

The Mental Health Center for ■
Southerri. New Hampshire ■
dba CLM Center for" Life '
Management',

Fa'mily Housing!
Perrha;rient Housing " .174116-R0P1

.Wesierh
Rockingham

•County "
$267,435
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Vendor Name Project Name Vendor III Location
SFV 2020

Amount

The Mental Health Center for
Southern New Hampshire

dba CLM Center for Life
Management

Permanent Housing 1 174116-R001

Western .

Rockingham
County

$273,230

Tfi-County Community Action
Program, Inc. - •

Coordinated Entry - 177195-8009 Statewide . $130,022

Tri-Counly Community Action
Program. Inc.

Perrnanenl Supportive'
Housing 1, Expansion

177195-8009

Grahori,

Coos, and
.Carrol!

Counties

$88,959

Tout; .. $1,606,764.

Funds are available in (he following account for State Fiscal Year 2020, upon the availability and
cbntihued appropriation of funds In the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within
the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between Slate Fiscal. Years through the Budget Office If'-

/ needed and justified.' ■

05.95-42-4230ld.79i7 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, OEPT QF HEALTH AND.HUMAN SVCS,
HHS: HUMAN iSERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM'

State FIscalYear Class/Account Class Title Job Nurriber Amount

2020 ■ 102-500.731 Contracts for Pr'ograrri Seryides TBO $1,606,764,

Total ..$1,606,764;

EXPLANATION •

These requests are sole source because federal regulation's require .the. Departmenl to specify
each vendor's name during the annual, federal Conli.riuum of Care'.Program renewal application process,
prior to the grant award being issued.. The U.S. Oepartrhent Qf Housing and Urban Develop.menl (HUD)
reviews the applications and subsequently awards fundirig based on its criieria. The epplicatior^ process
artd timing .of grant terims do not align with state or federal fiscal years. The start date'of a grant is based
on the month in "which .each grant's driglrial federal agreement was issued.- This results in Continuum of
Care Program grant start dales; and subsequent renewal approval requests, "occurring in various months
.throughout the year."■

.The aHac:hed..agreemenls represent twelve (12) of twenty-nine (29) total agreements, many,.of
which have reriewal dates •dispersed throughout the-, calend.ar year, with vendors who are Ideated
throughout the slate (o.ensu?e"ongoing, statewide delivery of housing services through New Hampshire's'
Continuum of Care Prdgrarn.

• The pufpose of these requests is for thepfovisior> of Permanent Housing and Coordinale.d Entry
Programsthatshairdelive'rrental/leaslng assistance', service access, supportive services and asso.cialed
•administrative-services targeted to serve "approximately three-thousa'rid (3000) participants from July 1,
2019 through June 30,2020.- • • • . '
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Using the 'Housing First* model end ih© development of $tat3iliution and Crisis Mahagemeht
•plans, the Vendors''will facilitate .particip'ant's movement ■ Into sustained permanent housing while
providing connections with community and mainstream'serVices to m'aximize participant's ability to live
more independeritly.

Hud-established the Conllriuum'ot Care concept to" suppoil..communities In their efforts to-
address the problems of'housing and homeiessne'ss In a. coordinated." comprehensive, and Strategic
.fashion" The Conlinuurh of.Care serves three main purposes: . ".

A strategic planning process for addressing hometesshess in the community.

.* 'A process to engase broad-based, comh^unity-wide involvement in addressing homeloss'ness
on.a yearn'ound basis. . • ■ -

•  An opportunity for communities to submit an application to^hc tJ.S-. Department .of "Housing
and Urban Oeveloprnent for-resources largeting housing and. support services for homeless
.individuals and families.

- The following performance measures/objecWes wili.be used'to measure coritract compliance and
vendor perfofmahce: •

-• Annual ;c6mplia.hce reviews shall be perforrned that include the collection of data relating to
. compliance vyiih'adminislratiye.rulesand contraCt.ua) agreements.-

•  . Statistical reports'shalj be submitted 6n a.semt-annua.l basis from, ajl fu/ided vendor, including
• various "demdgraphic.lnfolTriatidri'and Income and exp©ns"e'reiwr1s inclu"ding match dollars.-

•  All vendors funded for rapid re-hpusing; transitional, permanent or coordinated entry housing.-
or outreach/supportive services wijl be required lb rriai.nlain timely "ai)d accuraie data entry, in'

■  . the-New Hampshire "Homeless Management Infdrrnatibn Systehri,.unless they are required by
•law to use an allerhai'e means of data collection.-T.he NH Homeless Managerneht.rnfofrnalipn
System will be;the primary.-re'porting tool for outcomes and activities of-shelter arid housing

'  . . pr^'fams funded Ihrough'this contract.. " ' ,

As.referehce.d In .Exhibit C-1 of each" of these contracts, the Department resen/es the right to",
extend each.egreemenl for .up-to-two (02). additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery-of
services, available funding, agreement of .the parties and apprbval of the Governor and'^Executive
Council. •

Should, the Gpyerinpr.ahd Executive Co.uricil not authorize these requests,-P^ermanenl Housing."
.and Coordinated Entry Programs .and'Suppprtive Service.s for New Hampshire, homeless individuals an.d'
familieiriiay pot be'available. in .their com.munities.-and there may be-an Increase i.n demand .for servicfes
placod upon the region's local welfare-aulhbrities. It .may.aisp cause ihdiyiduals and/or families to become
h'onneiess; V? '

Source, of funds: -100%-federal Funds from.the .U.S. Qepartmeht of Housing-and Urban
Development."Office"of Comrhuniiy Planning and Oevelopmeri't, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
"riurnber(CFdA)#14.267.

Area served: •. "Statewide
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Mis Excellency. Governor Christopher T: Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 4 of 4

In the.event (hat the Federal funds become no longer availabte, General funds will not be
requested to support these programs.

Respectfully submitted.

'rey A. Meyers,
mmissioner-'

■  t

■' /

•  I

The OepcriAitni o//JenUh ouct Human Servictt'MUiion it to join comniunitUi o/ul fniiiUlet
in_p/Ouitiingpf)porliin\lits/oreiliunstqnehieucheoUfifin({indtj>einfciic<.
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (venlon S/8/lS)

SubjeCl: Cofllinuum of Cure. Cencofd Commumtv Utting 1! FH SS-2020-BHS»04.PERMA.|Q
Noiicc: a^cemcni and etl of iu aiuchmenis shell become public upon submi&sion lo Governor end

Executive Council fo' epproval. Any inrormiiion thai is private, confidcnilal or propriuary muji

be clearly ideniiried (o Ihe agency end agreed to in writing prior to slgnlrtg ihc coninci.

AGREEMENT

The State ofNcw Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows-.

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I.I Siaic Agency Name
KH Department of Health and Hurr^an Services

t .3 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03)01.3857

1.3 Conlractor Name
FIT/NHKH, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

122 Mtrka Street

Manchester, KH 0)10)

1.5 Coniractor Phone

Number

(603)«I-944I

1.6 Account Number

05-95-42-4230I0-7927-

102-500731

1.7 Completion Date

June 30, 2020

1.8 Price Limitation

S99.046

1.9 Contracting Officer for Stale Agency
Nathan 0. White, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271.9631

1.11 Coniractor Signaturji 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Maureen Beauregard

1.13 Aclcnowlcdgemcni: Slate of Now HampshiroCounty of Hilijborough

On May 29. 2019 . before the undersigned olTicer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, pr satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block I.I l.and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

I.I3.I Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace ^ • ^
*  . ' , RUTH A. SYREN. Nertftry PubBc

y■ T "Z /? . / UyOatrwrttilonExplraa&epterrterS,KUJ

I.I3;2 Namcand Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

Ruth Syreit. Admin. Asst.. Nolery Pubiic
i.U^utc Agency Signoaurc

OfM/m
1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

n«5h M 0 .Civiizin i^/yl h i)i
1.16 Approval by MKH^SapaatowtrxfTAdminttirltion. division of Personnel (if opplieeble) *' ' t

By: Director, On;
✓

1.17 Approval by the Anorncy General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifeppHcable)

1.18 Approval by the Governor and Exceuiivc Council Cifappl'KobU)

By: On;

Page I of4
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2. employment OF CONTIUCTOR/SERVJCES TO
BE PCRTORMCO. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identiTted in bJock 1.1 ("Slate"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contn»cior">io perfonn.
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, ideniined ontf more panicutarly descnbed in the ettfiched
eX>irBIT A which is incofporoted herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwiihsinnding nny provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Coutvcilofihe State ofNewHampshire. if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hcreundcr, shall become effective on the date the Governor

and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicaied in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agrccmem shall become cfTective on the dale the
Agreernertt Is signed by the State Agency as shown in block

•  1.14 ("Encctivt Oaie").
3.2 If the Conirector commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, oil Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Dale shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement docs not
become effective, the Stale shall have no liability to the
Cohiractor, including without (imitation, arty obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services pcrformod.
Contractor must complete oil Services by the Completion Dote
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF agreement.

Noiwithstanding ony provision of this Agreement to the
conirory, oil obligations of the State hereundcr, incluiJing.
without (imitation, the continuance of payments hercunder, ore
contingent upon the ovailability and continued oppropriaiion
of funds, ond in no event shall the Stole be lioble for any
payments hcreundcr in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the Stale shall have the right to withhold
payment unlit such funds become available, ifever, ond shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Conirecioi notice of Such termination. The State
shall not be required to inmsfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account ore reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRlCE/PRiCE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The conifici price, method of payment, ond terms of
payment arc identified and more particularly described in
EXH fDU B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the Slate of the contract price shall be the
only end the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liobiliiy to the Contractor other than the coniracl
price.

Page 2

5.3 The State reserves the right to ofTtet from any amounts
otherwise payable to ihe Contractor under this Agreement
ihose liquidated amounts required or pcrmiiied by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7<< or o/iy other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
rto event shall the total of all payments authorised, or actually
made hercurtdcr, exceed the Price Limitation set fonh in block

1.8. '

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor jhetl comply with ell nalutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of fcderBl, .state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duly upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Conlracior shall
not discriminiie against employees or applicanis for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age. sex.
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 if (his Agreement is funded in any part by monies of (he
United States, the Contractor shall comply with oil ihc
provisions ofExecuiive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employmcfii Opportuniry"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United Slates Department of tabor (41
C.F.R. Pan 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
OS (he State ofNew Hampshire or the United States issue (0
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit (he State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliarKc with ail rules, regulations and Orders,
and Ihe covenom.s, terms ond conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall ei its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
wonants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
(his Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months aficr the
Completion Dale in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit arty subconiritdor or other person, firrrt or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a corhbincd effon to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or officisl, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

or4

Controclor Initials

DatcMay 29.2019
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Agreement. This provision iKall survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.) The Comrocting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's represeniaiivc. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of Ihis Agreement,
the Conirttcting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVEra OF DEFAULT/UEfVlEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the follovringecisor omissions of the
Conimcior shall constitute an event of default hereunder

("Event of Default");
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
sci>cdute;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Defoult, the State
may take anyone, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give (he Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of o greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of (he notice; and if the Event of Default is
noi timely remedied, terminate.ihis Agreement, erfcctive two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of terminaiion;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
-Agreement and ordering that the porsion of (he contract price
which would otherwise accAic to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice uniil-such time as the Stoic
determines that the Conlracior has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
' (he Contractor any damages the State suffers by rcuon of any
Event of Defauli; and/or
g.2.4 ircai the Agreement as breached end pursue anyoftis
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9.. DATAyACCESS/CONFIDENTIAUTY/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this AgrcenKnt, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to. all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, eomputer
printouts, notes, leiiers, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property, which has been received from
the Stale or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be ihe property of the Stoic, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
terminaiion of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 - A or other existing taw. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

Page

10. TERMINATION. In (he event ofan eariy termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, (he Coninicior shell deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not laier than fifteen (IS) days after the date of
termination, a report ('Terminaiion Report") describing in
dciaii all Scrvlcei performed, and the conirict price umed, io
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be iticniieat to ihose.of any Final Report
described in the attached EXKTBfT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

(he pcrrormance of Ihis Agreement the Contractor is in all
respecii on indcpendcni ceniroctor, end is neither on ogcni nor
an employee of ihe State. Ncitha (he Contractor nor any of its
ofTicers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to

.  bind the Stile or receive any bcncfjis, workers' compensation
or Other emoluments provided by (he State to its employees.

12. assicnment/delecation/subcontracts.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
iitierest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the Slate. None ofthc Services shall be

subcomracicd by the Conti^ior without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. fNTEMNlFiCATlON. The Coniracior shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless (he State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, iis officers end employees, and any ami all claims,
liabilities or penalties osscned against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on eccouni of,
based orrtsuiiing from. arising out offor which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Conimcior. Notwithstanding (he foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the Stale, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agieement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, ond shall require any subconiroeior or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

M.I.I comprehensive general liabilily insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than S1.000,OOOper occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property Subject to subparagreph 9.2 herein, in on amount not
less than 80% ofthe whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall

' be on policy forms and cndorsemcnis approved for use in the
Stale of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by Insurers licensed in the Slate ofNew
Hampshire.

3of4
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14.3 The Contreciof stull furnish lo the ConirectingOfTicer
idenliried in block 1.9. or his or her successor, o cenirics«<s)
'of insurance for ell iuunnce required under this Asrcemeni.
Coniractor shsll else furnish lo the Coniraciin^ Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor,ceniriCBie(s) of
insunrKe for ell renewol(s) of iruuronce required under this
Agreemem no later (hen ihlny (30) days prior to the eipiniion
date of eaeh of the insurance policies. The ceriificaicCs) of
insurarKc and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Eoch certifica(c($) of
insurance shall contain o clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9. or his
or her successor, no less than thiny (30) days prior written
notice ofcanccllation or modification ofthe policy.

IS. WORKERS* COMPENSATION. '

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contrutor agrees,
ccrtilies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or eicmpi from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
C Workers' Compensaiion ").
ti.} To the e*tcni the Contractor is subject (o the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 28l*A. Contractor shall
maintain, end require any subcontractor or essignce to secure
and maintain, paymertl of Woriccia' Compensaiion in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undenalce pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting QfTiccr identified In block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Cornpensaiion in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A end any
opplicabic rcnewBl($) ihcrcof, which shsll be attached end are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensaiion .
premiums or for ony other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Conirauor, which might
orisc under applicable Stale of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the pcrrormancc of the
Services under this Agreement-

Id. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by ihe State to
enforce any provisions hereof oiler ar^y Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver ofits rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or ony subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure (0 enforce any'Event of Default shall be dccmcd'a
waiver of (he right of the Stale to enforce each and all ofthe
provisions hereof upon ony further or Other Event of Default
on the pan of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any noiiccby a pony hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at Ihe
lime ofmoiiing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the panics at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and I A, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an iristrumcnt in writing signed
by (he panies hereto and only aRcr approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council ofthe SiaicofNcwHompshlre unless r>o

'suclvapproval Is required under the circumstances pursuant to
Slate law. rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF ACREEM EfH" AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
lows of (he State of New Hompshire. ond is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of (he panics and (heir respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in (his Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any pany.

20. TUIRD Parties. The panies hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreecnent shall not be
connrucd lo confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout Ihe Agramcnt
ore for reference purposes only, and the words contained
(herein shall in rto way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in (he attached EXHfBIT C arc.incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERaBILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement arc held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
cffeci.

24. ENTIRE agreement. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement ond
understonding between the panies. and supersedes all prior
Agreements and un^rsiftryjings relating hereto.

Page 4 of 4
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N0W Hampshire Department of Health and Humen Sen/Ices
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Permanent Supportive Housing Program

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed deschpiion of the language assistance services they will
provided to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful, access to their
programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date; submitted to:

NH DMHS

Bureau of Housing Supports (BHS)
129 Pleasant SUeot

'  Concord. NH 03301

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire General
- Court or federal or stale court orders may have an impact on ihe services described herein, the
Slate, through the Bureau of Housing Supports, has the right to modify service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so'es to achieve compliance therewith.

t.3. Notwithstanding eny provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, ell obligetions of the State are
contingent upon receipt of federal funds under the Continuum of Care (CoC) Grant. The Slate,
as the Collaborative Applicant for the Balance of Slate CoC. and/or, the recipient of the CoC
funding, has applied for the CoC Grant and will continue to perform due diligence in the
application process. However, the State makes no representation that it will receive the funds. In
no event shall the Slate t^o tiable for costs incurred or payment of any services performed by the
Contrector prior to Ihe Stale's receipt of federal funds applied for in the .CoC Grant.

1.4. For the purposes of this agreement, the Department has identified the Contractor as a
subrecipient. in eccordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

1.5. Notwithstanding the confidentiatity procedures established under 24 CFR Part 578.103(b). US
peparimenl of Housing and Urban Development (HUO), (ho HUD Office of the Inspector
General, and the Comptroller General of the United Slates, or any of their authorized
representatives, must have (he right of access to all books, documents, papers, or other records
of the Contractor that ere pertinent to (he CoC grant, in order to make audits, examinations,
excerpts, and transcripts. These rights ol access are not limited to the required retention period,
but last as long as Ihe records era retained.

1.6. The Contractor shall maintain adherence to federal and state financial and confidentiality laws,
and agrees to comply with the program narratives, budge) detail and narrative, and amendments
thereto, as deteited in the 2017 Notice ol Funding Available (NOFA) CoC Project Application
approved by HUD.

1.7. The Contractor shall provide services according to HUO regulations outlined In Public Law 102-
550 and 24 CFR Part 578: CoC Program and other written, appropriate HUD policies/directives.

1.8. All programs shall be licensed to provide client level data into the New tHampshire Homeless
Management Informalion System (NH HMIS), Programs shall follow NH HMIS policy, including
specific Information required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required for data
enlry. Refer to Exhibil K for Informalion^Security requirements and Exhibit I for Privacy
requirements.

1.9. The Contractor shall cooperate fully with and answer ell questions, related to this contract, of
representatives of the Slate or Federal agencies who may conduct a periodic review of
periormanco or an inspection of records.

FiTC«ooon)C«ovnu^UtUnoiiSFr7070 EtNUlA COAtncw Inigui
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
.Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

1.10. The Coniractor shall support the primary goalof this program which Is to facllllale the movement
of homeless and chronically homeless individuals and (dmliies to permanent housing and
maximum self-sufficiency.

2. Scooe of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall Implement a Coordinated Entry System (CES) for all projects funded by the
CoC Progrem, Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) Program, and Housing Opportunities for
Persons with AIDS (HOPWA) Program, in accordance with CoC Interim rule. 24 CFR Part 578.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide a Perrnaneni Supportive Housing program comprised of six (06)
housing units.and twelve (12) beds serving homeless individuals and or families, and which
Includes, but is not limited to:

2.2.1. Utilization of the 'Housing First" model, ensuring barriers to enlerir>g housing are ho! imposed
tmyond those required by regulation or statute, and will only lerrnlnate project participation for
the most severe reasons, once available options have been exhausted to help a participant
.maintain housing.

2.2.2. The devalopmeni of a stabilization plan and crisis management plan with the participant, et
intake end. at a minimum, annually. An ongoing Assessment of Housing end Supportive
Services is required, wiih the ultimale goal being assistance to the participant in obtaining (he
skills necessary to live in the community independenlly.

2.3. The Contractor shell establish and maintein standard operating procedures to ensure CoC
program funds are used in accordance with .24 CFR 578 end must establish and maintain
sufficient records to enable HUO and BHS -to determine Contractor requirement compliance,
including:

2.3.1. Conllnuum o1 Core Records: The Contractor shall mainloin the following documontslion
related to establishing and operating a CoC;

2.3.1.1. Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor shall maintain acceptable evidence of
homeless status in accordance wiih 24 CFR 576.500(b)..

2.3.1.2. Records of el Risk of Homelassness Slalus: The Contractor shall maintain records that

establish *el risk of homelassness* status of each Individual or family who receives CoC
homelessness prevention assistance, as identiHed in 24 CFR 576.500(c).

2.3.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of Imminent Threat of Harm. The Contractor shall maintain

documentation of each-program participani who moved to a different CoC due to Imminent
threat of further domestic violence, dating violen^. sexual assault, or- stalking, as deFined
in 24 CFR 576.51(c)(3). The Coniracior shall retain documentation that includes, but is
not limited to: i

2.3.1.3.1 The original incidence of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or
stalking, only if the original violence is not already documented In the program
participant's case file. This may be written observation of the housing or service
provider; a letter or other documentation from a victim service provider, social worker,
legal assistance provider, pastoral counselor, mental health provider, or oiher
professional from whom the victim has sought assistance: medical or dental records;
court records or law enforcement records; or written certification by the program
participant to whom the violence occurred or by the head of household.

FfT ti SfyJOW E*WiA C<w^o» wd^ii
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New'HampshIro Department of Heatth and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

EihibltA

2.3.1.3.2 The reasonable belief of immlneni threat of further domestic violence, dailr^g
violence, or sexual assault or stalking, which would include threats from a third-party,
such as e friend or family member of the perpetrator of-the violence. This may be
written observation by the housing or service provider; a letter or other documentetioh
from a victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider, pastoral
counselor, mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim has
sought assistance; current restraining order; recent court order or other court records;
law enrorcemenl report or records: commurtication records from the perpetrator of the
' violence or family members or friends of (he perpetrator of the vIolerKO. including

emails, volcemails, lext messages, and social media posts; or a written ceriiftcoUon
by the program participant to whom the violence occurred or the head of household.

2.3.1.4. Records ot Annual Income. For each program participant -who receives .housing
assistance where.rent or an occupancy charge is paid by the program participant, the
Contractor must keep the following documentation of annual income:

2.3.V4.1. Income evaluation form specified by HUO and completed by the Contractor; and

2.3.1.4.2. Source documents (e.g.. most recent wage statement, unemployment corhpensalion
statement, public benefits statement, bank statement) for the assets held by the
program participant and income received before the date of (he evaluation;

2.3.1.4.3. To (he extent (hat source documents are unot>ialnable. a written statement by a
relevant third party (e.g.. employer, govemmeni benefits administrator) or the written
certificalion by the Contractor's intake staff of the oral verification by the relevant third
party of the income the program participant received over the most recent period; or

2.3.1.4.4. To the extent that source documents and third-party verification are unobtainable, the
written certification by the program participant' of the amount of Income (hat the
program participant is reasonably expected to receive over (he three (3) month period
following (he evaluation.

.  2.3.1.5. Prooram Particloanl Records. In addition to.evidence of homelessness status or at-rlsk-of-
homelessness status, as applicable, the Contractor must keep records for each program
participant that document:

2.3.1.5.1. The servlces'and assistance provided to that program participant, including evidence
(hat (he Contractor has conducted an annual assessment .of services for those

program participants that remain in the program for more than a year end adjusted
the service package accordingly, and Including case management services as
provided in 24 CFR 578.37(a)(1)(ii)(F): and

2.3.1.5.2. Where applicable, compliance with the termination of assistance requirement in 24
CFR 678.91.

2.3.1.6. Housino Standards. The Contractor must retain documentation of compliance, with the
housing standards in 24 CFR 578.75(b). including inspection reports.

2.3.1.7.' Services Provided. The Contractor must document the types of supportive services
provided under the Contraclor's progrem and the amounts spent on those services. The
Contractor must keep documentation that these records were reviewed at least annually
and that the service package offered to program participants was adjusted as necessary.

. 2.4. The Contractor shall maintain records that document compliance vrilh;

2.4.1. The Oroanizational conflict-of-inleresl requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(c).
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2.4.2. The Conlinuu'm of Care Board conflict oMnlerest requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(b).

2.4.3. The Other Conflicts reQuiraments in 24 CFR 576.95(d),

2.5. The Contractor shall develop, implemeni and retain a copy of the personal connicl-of-lnterest
policy that complies with the requirements in 24 CFR 576.95', including records supporting any
exceptions to the persorwl conflict-of-interest prohibitions.

2.6. The Cont/ector shell comply and retain documentation of compliance with:

2.6.1. The Homeless Particloallon requiremenls in accordance with 24 CFR 576.75(g).

2.6.2. The FaUh-based AclivHies requiremenls in accordance wlih 24 CFR 570.67(0).

2.6.3. Affiimatlvelv Furthering Fair Housing by maintaining copies of all marketing, outreach, and
other materials used to inform eligible persons of the program In accordance with 24 CFR
578.93(c). ,

2.6.4. Other Federal Requirements in 24 CFR 578.99. as applicable.

2.6.5. Other Records Specified bv HUD. Tho Contractor most keep other records as specified by
HUD..

2.6.6. The- Contractor must retain copies ol all procurement conlracis and docurhentalion of
compliance wllh the Pfocuremeni Requirements in 24 CFR 65.36 and 24 CFR part 84.

2.7. Conndenlialitv. In addition to meeting the specific confidentialiry and "security requirements for
HMIS data (76 FR 76917), the Contractor shall develop and Implemeni written procedures to
ensure:

2.7.1. All records.containing protected identifying information of any individual or family who applies
for and/or receives Continuum of Care assistance shall be kept secure and confidential as
required by this Agreement and slate arvj federal laws and regulations;

2.7.2. The address or location of any family violence project assisted with Continuum, of Care furtds
shall not be made public, except with written authorization of the person responsible for the
operation of the project; and '

2.7.3. The address or Ipcdlion of any housing of a program participant will not be made public,
except es provided under a preexisting privacy policy of the recipient or s'ubrecipieni and
consistent with State and local law? regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality;

2.6. Period of Record Retenlion. The Conlractor shall ensure all records, originals or copies made by
microfilming, photocopying, or other similar methods, pertaining to Continuum of Care funds are
retained for five (5) years following the Conlract Completion Date and receipt of final payment by
the Contractor unless records are otherwise required to be maintained for a period in excess of
the five (5) year period according to state or federal law or regulation.

3. Program Reooftinci Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shell submit the following reports;

3.1.1. Annual Performance Reoort fAPRi: Wllhin thirty (30) days after the Contract Completion
Date, an APR shall be submitted to BHS that summarizes the aggregaie results .of the^Project

. Activities, showing in particular'how the Contraclor is carrying out the project In the manner
proposed In the application submitted to HUD for the relevant fiscal year Notice of Funding
Availability (NOFA). Tho APR shall be in the form required or specified by the Stale, and
submitted to the address listed In section 1.1. Exhibit A; and
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3.1.2. Other Reports as requested bv the State incompliance v^lh NH HMiS policy.

4. Contract Administration

4.1. The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff to attend ail meetings or trainings requested
by BHS, including training in date security and conridentiality. according to slate end federat laws.
To the extent possible. BHS shall notify the Coniractor of the need to attend such meetings five
($) worVing days in advance of each meeting.

4.2. The Contractor shall inform BHS of any staffing changes within thirty (30) days of the change.

5. Pertormancd Maaauroo

5.1. The Contractor shall adhere to all terms and conditions as set forth in (he Hub New Project
Application, federal fiscal year 2016. ffSr-424: and

5.1.1. The Contractor shall abide by Ihe performance measures es detailed in all applicable HUD
regulations including, but nol limited to. those outlined in 24 CPR Part 578: Continuum of
Care Program and Public Law 102-550.

5.1.2. The Contractor shall t>e accountable to all performance measures as detailed in the Annual
Performance Report Section 3.1.1. Exhibit A.

5.2. The Bureau Administrator of BHS. or designee. may observe performance, activities and
documents under this Agreement.

6. Deliverables

6.1. The Contractor shall Implement a Coordinated Entry System, as detailed in Section 2.1. Exhibit A.
In accordance with the CoC Program interim rule, 24 CFR Part 578 and as amended.

8.2. The Contractor shall provide a Permanent Supportive Housing program as.outlined in Section
2.2. Exhibit A and as outlined in other written HUD policies and directives as appropriate.

6.2.'1. Project outcomes shall Include, but ere not limited to:'

6.2.1.1. Participants exit homelossness faster, and once housed, remain stably housed.

6.2.1.2. Perticipenis experience Increased connections to:

6.2.1.2.1. Mainstream benefit resources; employment and/or vocational rehab referrals;

6.2.1.2.2. Mental health and/or substance abuse service access end referrals; end
)

6.2.1.2.3. Service Coordination Partners for educational, vocalional, emptoymeni and health
needs.

6.3. The Contractor shall provide accurate and timely reporting as detailed in Section 3.. Program
Reporting Requirements, Exhibit A.
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METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

1. Permanent Supportive Houslno Program Fundmg

1.1. Subiect to the General Provisions of this Agreement and In consideration of the satisfaciory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope
of Services, the State agrees to pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed Form P-37. Block
1.6. Price Limitation and for the time period specified below.

1.2. This Agreement is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Oomesiic Assistance (CFDA). as follows:

NH Generel Fund: 0%

1.2.2. Federal Funds: 100%

1.2.3. CFOAP: 14.267

1.2.4. Grant Number: NH0060L1T001B06

1.2.5. Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUO)

1.2.6. Program Title: Continuum ol'Care. Permanenl Supportive Housing Program

1.2.7. Total Amount Conlinuum of Care;

1.2.7.1. not to exceed $99,046

1-.2.6. Funds allocalion under this agreement for Conlinuum of Care Program;

1.2.0.1. Supponive Services: $15,956

1.2.8.2.1 Case Management $15,956

1.2.8.2. Leasing ^ $80,780

1.2.8.3. Admtnislrallve Expenses; . $2.310

1.2.8.4. Total program amount: $99,046

1.2.6.5: Vendor Match (25%) $4,567

1.3. The Conlractor agrees to provide the services In Exhibit A. Scope of Service in compliance with
funding reguiremertts. Failure to meet.the Scope of Services may jeopardize the Contractor's
current and/or future funding.

2. Financial Reports

2.1. As part of Ihe performance of the Projeci Activities, the Contrector covenants and ogroes to
submit the following:

2.1.1. Audited Financial Report: The Audiied Financial Report shall be prepared in accordance
with 2 CFR part 200.

2.1.2. One (1) copy of the audited financial report within thirty (30) days of Ihe completion of said
report to the Stale el the following address:

NH OHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
129 Pleesenl Stroei
Concord. NH 03301

FIT Ccwd COTinvtr/L^ulngll Ifywro C-ihWlO C«nn>cw Ir^liri
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2.2. Conformance to 2 CFR part 200; Grant funds are to be used only in accordar>ce with procedures,
requirements, end principles speclHed in 2 CFR part 200.

2.3. If the Contractor Is not subject to the requirements of 2 CFR part 200, the Contractor shall submit
one (1) copy of en eudited rnancial report to the Department utilizing the guidelines set forth by
the Comptroller General of the United Slates In 'Standards for Audit of Governmental
Orgenizetions. Program Activities, ertd Furnrtions,* within ninety (90) days after Contrect/Grant
completion date.

3. Prelect'Costs: Povment Schedule: Review by the State

3.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term 'Projec! Costs' shall mean all expenses
directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Project Acliviiles. as

. determined by the Stale to be eligible and ailowabta (or payment in accordance with Public Law
102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in 2 CFR part 200 as revised from time to
lime and with the ailes, regulations, end guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit
subconUeclors shall meet the requirements of 2 CFR pan 200.

3.2. Continuum of Care funds may be used to pay for eligible costs listed in 24 CFR 576.39 through
578.63 when used to establish and operate projects under five program componants: permanent
housing; transitional housing; supportive Eervices only; HMIS; and. in some cases, homeless
prevention. Administrative costs are eligible for all components. At! components are subject to
the restrictions on combining funds (or certain eligible activities in a single, project found in 24

■  CFR 578.67(c).

3.3. Match Funds;

3.3.1. The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUO regulations
and policies described in 24 CFR 578.73.

3.3.2. f^atch requirements ere to 6o documented with each payment request.

3.3.3. The Contractor must match all gran! funds, except for leasing funds, with no less than
twenty-five (25) percent of funds or in-kind contributions from other sources. Cash match
must be used for the cost of activities that are eligible under subpart 0 of 24 CFR 578.
The Contractor shall:'

3.3.3.1. Maintain records of the source and use of 'contributions made to satisfy the match
requirement in 24 CFR 578.73;

3.3.3.2. Ensure records Indicate the grant and fiscal year for which each matching
contribution Is counted;

3.3.3.3. Ensure records Include methodologies that specify how the values of third party
In-kind contributions were derived: and

3.3.3.4. Ensure records include, to the extent feasible, volunteer services (hat are

supported by the same methods used to support the allocation of regular
personnel costs.

3.4. Payment of Project Costs:

3.4.1. The State agrees to provide payment on a cost reimbursement basis for actual, eligible
expenditures incurred in the fufTillment of this Agreement, subject to the evailability of
sufficient fu'rvds,
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3.4.2. The Contractor shall only be reimbursed for (hose cosis designated as eligible and
allowable costs as stated in Section S. Expense Etigibility. Exhibit 8. The Contractor must
have written epproval from the State prior to billing for any other expenses.

3.4.3. Eligible expenditures shell be in accordance with the approved line item not to exceed an
amount as specified in this Exhibit, and defined by HUD ur^er the provisions of Public
Law 102-550 and other applicable regulations.

3.4.4. Payment ol Prbject Costs shall be made through Ihe utilization of funds as provided
through the U.S. Oeparlment of Housing end Urban Development Title .XIV Housing
programs under the Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid ̂Transllipn to Housing
Act {HEARTH Act). Subtitle A-Housing Assistance {Public Law 102-550). In an amount
and time period net to exceed as specified in Section 1.2. Exhibit 8.

3.4.5. Schedule of Payments:

3.4.5.1. At) reimbursement requests for all Project Costs, including the final reimbursement
request for this Contrecl. shall be submitted by the tenth {lOlh) day of each month,
for the previous month, end accompanied by an Invoice from the Contractor for
the amount of each requested disbursement along vrith a payment request form
and any other documeniaiionrequired, as designated by the Stale, which shall be
completed and signed by the Conirector.

3.4.5.2. In lieu of hard copies submitted to the addrpss Hsted In Section 2.1.2. Exhibit 8..
all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature, and emailed to:

housinQsuoo'ortsinvoices@dhhs.nh,Qov

. 3.4.5.3. The Contractor shall keep records of their activiiies related to Oep.artmenl
programs and services, and shall provide such records and any additional
financial information if requested by (he Slate to verify expenses.

3.5. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs:

3.5.1. Al any time during the performance of the Services, and upon receipt of the Annual
Performance Report, Termination Report or Audited Financial Report, (he Stale may
review all Project Costs incurred by tlie Contractor and all payments made to dale.

3.5.2. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items or expenses that are not determined
to be allowabie or are delenrtined to be in excess of actual expenditures, and shall, by
written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures, inform the Contractor of any such
disallowance.

3.5.3. If the State' disallows costs for which paymeni has nol yet been made. It shall refuse to
pay such costs. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement ere
subject to recapture.

3.5.4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
(his Agreement may be withheld, in whole or In part, in the eveni of non-compliance with
any Federal or State law. rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or If (he
said services, products, required report submissions, as detailed in Exhibits A and 8, or
NH-HMIS data entry requirements have not been satisfactorily completed in accordance
with the terms and conditions of.lhls Agreement.
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A. Use of Grant Funds

4.1. Notwiihstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37. changes limited to adjusting
amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits within
'the price limitallon, and to adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made
by written agreement of both parties and may be made through the Budget Office without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council if needed and justified. ''

5. Expense EtiQibllltv

5.1. Based on the continued reoeipl/avaiidbiiiiy of federal funds, the Contractor shall utilize
Contin^m of Cere program funds specified in this Exhibit B from the HUD Continuum of Care
Program, for contract services.

5.2. Qoeratirio Expenses:

5.2.1. Eligible operating expenses include:

S.2.-1.1. Maintenance and repair of housing;

5.2.1.2. Property taxes and insurance (including property and car);

5.2.1.3. Scheduled payments to reserve for replacement of major systems of the housing
(provided that the payment's must be based on the useful life of the system and
expected replacement cost);

5.2.1.4: Building security for a structure where more than fifty (50) percent of the units or
area is paid for vrilh grant funds;

5.2.1.5. Utiiilies, Including electricity, gas and water; and

5.2.1.6. « Furnllure end equipmenl. «

5.2.2. Inetigible costs include:

5.2.2.1. Rental assistance and operating costs in ihe same pfojecl;

5.2.2.2. Operating costs of erhergency shelter and supportive service-only facilities; and

5.2.2.3. Maintenance and repair of housing where the costs of maintaining and repairir^g
(he housing are included in the tease.

5.3. Suo[X)rtlve Services

5.3.1. Eligible supportive services costs rnust comply with all HUD regulations In 24 CFR 578.53.
and are available to individuals eclively participating in the permanent housing program.

5.3.2. Eligible costs shall Include:

5.3.2.1. Annual assessment of Service Needs. The costs of assessment required by
578.63(8) (2); .

5.3.2.2. Assistance with moving costs. Reasonable one*time moving costs are eligible and
Include truck rental and hiring a moving company;

5.3.2.3. Case management. The costs of assessing, arranging, coordinating, and
monitoring the delivery of individualized services to meet the needs of the program
pdriicipant(s) are eligible costs;
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5.3.2.4. Child Care. The costs of establishing and operating child care, and providing child-
care vouchers, for children from families expehencing homelessness.'Including
providing meals and snacks, and comprehensive and coordinated developmental

activities are eligible;

5.3.2.5. Education Services. The costs of improving knowledge end basic educational
skills ere eligible;

5.3.2.6. Employment essisiance and job training. The costs of esteblishing end operating
employment assistance and job trainirig programs are eligible, including
classroom, online and/or computer Instruction, on-lhe-job instruction, services
that assist Individuals in securing employment, acquiring learning skills, and/or
Increasing earning potential. The cost of providing reasonable stipends to
program pariicipants in employment assistance and job training programs Is also
an eligible cost:

6.3.2.7. Food. The cost of providing meals or groceries to program participants is eligible;

5.3.2.8. Housing search and counseling services. Costs of assisting eligible program
participants to locate, obtain, and retain suitable housing are eligible;

5.3.2.9. Legal services. Eligible costs are the fees charged by licensed attorneys and by
pefson(s) under the supervision of licensed attorneys, for advice and
representation in matters that interfere with homeless individual or family's ability
to obtain and retain housing;

5.3.2.10. Life Skills training. The costs of teaching critical life management skills thai may
never have been learned or havo been lost during course of physical or meriiel
illness, domestic violence, substance abuse, and. hometessness are eligible.
These services must be necessary to assist-the program participant to function
independently in the community. Component life skills training are the budgeting
of resources and money management, household management, conflict
management, shopping for food end other needed Hems, nutrition, the use of
public transportation, and parent training;

5.3.2.11. Mental Health Services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of mental
health conditions thai are provided by licensed professionals. Component
services are crisis interventions; counseling; Individual, family, or group therapy
sessions; Ihe prescription of psycholropic medicalions or explar\a(ions about (he
use end management of medications; ary) combinations of Ihorepeulic
approaches to address multiple problems;

5.3.2.12. Outpalieni health services. Eligible costs are the direcl outpatient treatment of
medical conditions when provided by licensed medical professionals:

5.3.2.13. Oulreach Services. The costs of activities to engage persons for the purpose of
providing immediate support and intervention, as well as idenlifylng potential
program participants, are eligible;

5.3.2.14. Substance abuse treatment services. The costs of program participant Intake and
assessment, outpatient treatment, group and individual counseling, and drug
testing are eligible, tnpatieht detoxification and other inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment are Ineligible;

5.3.2.15. Transportation Services ere described in 24CFR 578(e) (15);
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5.3.2.16. Utility Deposits. This form ol assistance consists of paying-for utility deposits.
Utility deposits must be one-lime, paid to utility companies;

5.3.2.17' Direct provision of services. If the service described in 24CFR 578.53(e) (1) - (16)
of this eection is being directly delivered by the recipient or subrecipient, oitgibie
costs for those services ere described in 24 CFR S7d(e) (17);

5.3.2.18. Ineligible costs. Any cost not described as eligible costs under this section is not
an eligible cost of providing supportive services using Continuum of Cere program

funds. Staff training and costs of obtaining professional licensure or certincations
needed to provide supportive services are noi eligible costs: and

5.3.2.19. Special populations. AH eligible costs are eligible to the same extent for program
participants who are unaccompanied homeless, youth; persons, living with
HIV/AIDS; and victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual a'ssaull. or
stalking.

5.4. Rental Assistance

5.4.1. Grant funds may be used for rental assistance for horneless individuals and families.

5.4.2. Rental assistance cannot be provided to a program participant who Is already receiving
rental assistance, or who is living in a housing unit receiving rental assistance or operating
assistance through other federal. Stale, or local sources.

5.4.3. Rental assistance must be administered in accordance'with the policies and procedures
established by the Continuum as set forth in 24 CFR 578.7(3) (9) and 24 CFR 578.51. end
maybe:

5.4.3.1. Short term,.up to 3 months of rent;

5.4.3.2. Medium term, for 3-24 months: or
I  (

5.4.3.3.- Long-term, for longer than 24 months.

5.4.4. Grant funds may bo used for security deposits in an amount not to exceed 2 months of
rent.

5.4.5. An advance payment of the last month's rent may be provided to the landlord, in addition
to the security deposit and payment ol first month's rent.

5.4.6. Rental assistance will only be provided for a unit if the rent is reasonable, as deterrhined
by the Contractor, in relation to rents being charged for comparable unassisted units,
taking into account the location, size. type, quality, amenities, facilities, and management
and maintenance of each unit.

5.4.7. The Contractor may use grant funds in an amount not to exceed one month's rent to pay
for any damage to housing due to the action of a program participant. For Leasino funds
only: Property damages may be paid only from funds paid to the landlord from security
deposits.

5.4.8. Housing must be in compliance with ell Stale and local housing codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act. and any other
requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is located regarding the condition of
the structure and operation of the housing or services.
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5,4.9. The Conlreclor must provide one of the following types of rental assistance: Tenant-based.
Project-based, or Sponsor-based rental assistance as descnbed in 24 CFR 576.51.

5.4.9.1. Tenani-based rental assistance is rental assistartce in which program panicipanis
choose housing of an appropriate size in which to reside. When necessary to
facilitate the coordinailon of supportive services, recipients and subrecipients may
require program panicipants to live in a speciftc area for their entire period of
participation, or in a specific structure for the first year and in a specific area for
the remainder of their period of participaiion. Short and medium temn rente)
esslstence provided under the Repid Re-Housing program component must be
tenant based rental assistance.

5.4.9.2. Sponsor-based rental assistance is provided through contracts between the
recipient and sponsor organization. A sponsor may be a private, nonprofit
organization, or a community mental health agency established' as a public
nonprofit organization. Program participants must reside In housing owned c
leased by the sponsor.

5.4.9.3. Project-based rental assistance is provided through a corttract with the ovynar of
an existing stnjclure. where the owner agrees to (ease the subsidized units to
program panicipants. Program participants will not retain rental assistance if they
move.

5.4.9.4. For project-based, sponsor-based, or tenant-based rental assistance, program
panicipants must enter into e lease agreement for a term of at least one yaar,
which is terminable for cause. The leases must be automatically renewable upon
expiralion for terms that are a minimum of one month long, except on prior notice
by either party.

5.5. Administrative Costs:
I  ■ I

5.5.1. Eligible administrative costs include:

5.5.1.1. The Contractor may use tur^ding awarded under this part, for the payment of
project administrative costs reialed to the planning end execution of Continuum
of Care aclivities. This does not include staff and overhead costs directly related
to carrying out activities eligible under 24 CFR 578,43 through 578.57, because
those costs are eligible es part of those ectivities; and

5.5.1.2. General management, oversight, and coordination. Costs of overall program
management, coordination, monitoring and evaluation. These costs include, but
are not limited to, necessary expenditures for the following:

5.5.1.2.1. Salaries, wages, and related costs of (he staff of the contractor's, or other staff
engage in program administration.

5.5.1.2.1.1. In charging costs to this category, the contractor may Include the entire
salary, wages, and related costs allocable to the program of each person
whose primary responsibilities with regard to the program, involve
program administration assignments, or the pro rate share of the salary,
wages, and related costs of each person whose job includes any program
admiftislralion assignments. The Contractor may only use one of these
methods for each fiscal year grant. Program adminislrailon assignments
irxilude the following:
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5.5.1.2.1.1.1. Preparing program budgets and schedules, and amendments, to
those budgets and schedules:

5.5.1.2.1.1.2. Developing systems for assuring compliance with program
requirements;

5.5.1.2.1.1.3. Developing Interegency egreemenis end agreemenie vrilh
subrecipienis end conlreciors to carry out program activities;

5.5.1.2.1.1.4. f/onitoring program ectivities for progress and compliance with
progrem requirerrtenis;

5.5.1.2.1.1.5. Preparing reports end other documents related to the program for
submission to HUD;

5.5.1.2.1.1.6. Coordinating the solution of audit and monitoring findings;

5.5.1.2.1.1.7. Preparing reports and other documents directly related to the progrem
submission to HUD:

5.5.1.2.1.1.8. Evaluating program results against slated objectives;

5.5.1.2.1.1.9. Managing or supervising persons whose primary responsibilities with
regard to the program include such assignments as those described.
In sections 5.5.1.2.1.1.1. through 5.5.i..2.1.1.8. atxjye. Exhibit 8.

5.5.1.2.1.1.10. Travel costs incurred lor official business In carrying out the program;

5.5.1.2.1.1.11. Admlnislrative services performed under third party conlrecls or
agreements, including such services as general legal services,
eccounting services, and audit services;

5.5.1.2.1.1.12. Other cosis for goods and services required for administration of the
' program. Including such goods and services as rental or'purchase of
equipment, insurance, utilities, office supplies, end rental and
maintenance, but not purchase, of office space;

5.5.1.2.1.1.13. Training on Continuum ol Cere requirements. Costs ol providing
training on Continuum of Care requirements and attending HUO-
Sponsored Conlinuum of Care trainings; and

5.5.1.2.1.1.14. Environmental revlev/. Costs of carrying out the environmental review
responsibilities under 24 CFR 578.31.

5.6. Leasing:

When the Contractor is leasing the structure, or portions thereof, grant funds may be used
to pay for 100 percent of the cost s of leasing a structure or structures, or portions thereof,
to provide housing or supportive services to homeless persons for up to three (3) years.
Leasing funds mey not be used to tease units or structures owned by the Contractor, their
parent organization, any other related org8niz0lion(8). or organizations that are rnembers
of a partnership, where the partnership owns the structure, unless HUD authorized en
exception for good cause.

5.6.1. Requiremonls:
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5.6.1.1. Leasing structures. When grants are used to pay rent ior ati or part of a structure
or structures, the rent paid must be reasonable in relation to rents beir^g charged
in the area for comparable space. In addition, the rent paid may not exceed rents
currently being charged by the same owner for comparable .unassisted space.

5.6.1.2. Leasing individual units. When the grants are used to pay rent for Individual
housing units, the rent paid must reasonable in relation to rents being charged for
comparable units, taking into account the location, size. type. Quality, amenities.,
facilities, and management services, in addition, the rents may not exceed rents
currently beir^g charged lor comparable units, and (ho rent paid may not exceed
HUO-delermined fair madcel rents.

5.6.1.3. Utilities. If electricity, gas. and water are included in the rent, these utilities may
be paid from leasing funds. If utilities are not provided by landlord, these utility
costs ere operating costs, except for supportive service facilities. If the structure
is being used as a supponive service facility, then these utility costs are a
supportive service cost.

5.6.1.4. Security deposits and first and last month's rent. The Contractor may use grant
funds to pay security deposits, in en amount not to exceed 2 months of actual
rent. An advance payment of last month's rent may be provided to the landlord in
addition to security deposit and payment of the first month's rent.

5.6.1.5. Occupancy agreements and subleases. Occupancy agreements and subleases
are required as specified in 24 CFR 57e.77(a).

5.6.1.6. Catculation of occupancy charges and rent. Occupancy charges and rent from
program participants must be calculated as provided in 24 CFR 576.77.

5.6.1.7. Program Income. Occupancy charges and rent collected from program
. participants ere program Income and may. be used as provided under 24 CFR
578.97.

5.6.1.8. Transition. Referlo 24CFR 578.49{b)(B)

5.6.1.9. Rent paid may only reflect actual costs and must be reasonable in comparison to
rents charged in the area for similar housing units. Documentation of rent
reasonableness must be kept on file by the Contractor..

5.6.1.10. The portion of rent paid with grant funds may nol exceed HUO-determined fair
market rents.

5.6.1.11. The Contractor shall pay Individual landlords directly: funds may nol be given
directly to participants to pay teasing costs.

5.6.1.12. Property damages may only be paid from money paid to the landlord for security
deposits.

5.6.1.13. The Contractor cannot leased building that it already owns to itself.

5.6.1.14. Housing must be in compliance with all Stale and local housing codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act. and eny other
requirements of the jurisdiction In which the housing Is located regarding the
condition of the structure and operation of (he housing or services.
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5.7. The Contractor may charge program participants rent and utililies (heal, hot water); however,
the amount charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specified in HUD regulations (24
CFR 578.77). Other services such as cable, air conditioning, telephone. Internet access,
cleaning, parking, pool charges, etc. are at the parlicipanl's option.

5.8. The Contractor shall have any sioH charged In full or part to this Contract, or counted as match,
complete weekly or bi-weekly timesheets.

6. Contractor Financial Mananement Syatem

6.1. Fiscal Control: The Contraclor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting procedures
which assure proper disbursemenl of. and accounling for. grant funds and any required
ncnfederal expenditures. This responsibilily applies to funds disbui^ed in direct operations of
the Contraclor.

6.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial managemeni system that complies with 2 CFR part
' 200 or such equivalent system as the State may require.
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contraclors Obligations: The Conl/actor covenanis and agrees thai ell funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to (he Contractor for services provided to eligible •
individuals end, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Foderal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine Ihe eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance wlin applicable federal erxd
elate laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time end Monnor of Poterminatlor>-. Eligibility delerminetions sholl be mode on forma provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such limes os ore prescribed by
the Department. ^ '

3. Documonteilon: In addition to the delerminaiion forms required by the Oepartmerit. the Cont/aclor
shall maintain a data Tile on eoch recipient of services hereunder. which Hie shall include ell
informalion necessary to supped an eligibility dclermirtaiion and such other Information as the
Oeparlmeni requests. The Coniraclor shall furnish the Department with all forms end documentation
regardir^g eligibility doterminalions lhat (ho Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hoarlnga: The Contractor understands thai ail applicants for services hereunder. as well as
individuals declared ineligibid havo a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants end agrees lhat all applicants for services shall be permitted to riii out
an application form end that each applicant or re>3pplicanl shall t>e informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Oepadmonl regulations.

5. GrotuUlos or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees lhat it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of Ihe Coniraclor, any Sub-Corilractor or
(he Slate In order to mfloence the perfonmance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Cont/aci. The Slate may lermlnsie this Coniraci and any sub-conlract or sub-agreement if it is
determir>ed that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or recoivcd by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sul^Conlractor,

\  .1.

6. Rotroaclive' Payments: Notwithstanding ariything to the conlrary contained in tho Contract or in any
other document, contract or underslaryflng. i( Is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, lhat no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse Iha Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided (0 enyindiyiduBl prior to the Effective Dale ot (he Conlrect
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by ihe Contractor for any services provided
prior to Ihe date on which the individual applies for services or {except as otherwise provided by Ihe
federal regulations) prior to a determinalion that the individual is eligible for such service's.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to Ihe contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein conieined shall be doomed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rote which reimburses the Contractor in excess of (ha Contractors costs, at a rete
which exceeds the emounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
role which ekceods tho rete charged by the Contractor lo ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If el any time during if^e term of this Contract or after receipt of (ho Final
Expenditure Report hereunder. the Department shall determine that the Contractor has usod
payments hereunder to reimburse Items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rales charged by (ho Contractor to ineligible indiiriduols
or other third party fondcrs. tho Department may elect to:

\  7.1. Renegotiate Ihe rates for payment herounder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any lulure payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior relmbursemenlin

excess of costs:

£*Nbll C-Spodol P<ov(iloni Conlfcetof NOali

OttiVH p«a9iof5 Dnifl May 29. 2019



DocuSign Envelope ID: B5550DA9-2318-4093-8060-36BBCE95C71A

OocuSign Envelope ID: 6F8EF4F&-4A97^4A7-B8OB*006923EE4C83

New Hampshire Dopartmom of Health end Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Oemand rapaymeni of (he excess paymeni by the Contracior in which event failure to meke
such repayment shall constilule an Event-of OefeuH hereunder. When the Contractor is
permiRed to determine (he eligibility of individuals (or services, iho Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for ell funds paid by the'Oeparlmeni lo (he Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineti^'ble for such servicesol
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY;

6. Maintenanco of Rocofds: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, theConirector
covcno'nis ond oproBS lo malruain iho foUoMno iccords duhng the Controci Pahod;

6.t. Fiscal Records: books, records, documonis end oiher data evidencing and reflecting oil costs
and other expenses Incurred by the Contractor in (he performance of the Contract, end all
income received or collected by the Contreclor during the Contract Period, said records ic be .
meinlalned In eccordartce with eccouniing procedures and practjcos which sufficiently and
property reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to (he Departmeni. and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and ohgina) evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions end orders, vouchers, requisHions for materials, invenlohes. vaiualions of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, peyrods. and other records reouesled or required by (he
Oeparvnenl.

6.2. Stalisticel Records: Statistical, enrollment, enendance or visit records for each recipient of
services duhng the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of applicalionend
eligibiiily (including ell forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services end ell invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
paymeni for such services.

8.3. Mtxlicel Records: Where appropriate ond as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shell retain medical records on each patieniyredplenl of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall Submit en onnuat audit to the Department within 60 days after the dose of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended thai iho report l>e prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Marxagemenl and Budget Circular A-133. 'Audits of Steles. Local Governments, end Non
Profit Organirations* end .(he provisions cl Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities ond Functions.-issu^ by (ho US General Accountir>g Office (GAO standards) as
ihey pertain to fmarKlal compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of (his Contract end tho period for roienlion hereunder. the
Department, tho United Stales Department ol Health and Hurnan Services, and any of their
dasignaied representatives shall have access lo all reports and records maintained pursuentto
the Contract for purposes of audit, exammailon. excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In oddition to end not In any way in limitation of obligations of the. Contract. II is
understood and agreed by the Conl/actor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federai audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract (o which exception has been taken or which have been disetiow^d because of such on
exception.

10. Confidentleliry of Rocorde: All Information, reports, end records meinlalned horoundcr or collected
In connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential end shatlnol
be drsctosed by (he Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
(he Department regarding (he use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be mode to
public officials requiring such Infoimalion in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services end the ConlracI; and provided further, that
the use or di^losure by any party of any information concerning o recipient for any purpose rtol
direcUy connected wih the edminisiration of tho Department or the Com/actor's respdnsibitilies with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited oxcopi on whncn consent of the recipient, his
aRomcy or guardian. ^
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained heiein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination ol-the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports; Fiscal end Statistical: The Contractor agrees lo submit the following reports al the following
Umes if reguested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Wrinen interim financial repohs containing e detailed description of

'  eQ costs and non-allowat^e expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information es shall be deemed salrsfeciory by the Department lo
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shell be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed saiisfaciory by tho Oeparirneni.

11.2. Finat Report: A final report shall be submitted within (Nrty (30) days after the end of (he term
of this Controct. The Final Report shall tie In o fomi satlsfacio/Y to the Dopartmeni and shall
contain e summery statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in theProposel
and other informalionrequirod by the Department.

72. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provtdad for in (he Conlracl end upon payment of (he price limitation
hereunder, the Contract end all the obligations of (he parties hereunder (except such obligations' es,
by the terms of the ConiracI are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract end/or
survive the (ermtnatlon of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review ofthe
Final Expenditure Report the Department st^8l) disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor es
costs hereunder the Oepailmeni shall retain the right. al its discretion, to deduct the emounl of such
expenses es ere disallowed or lo recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: Ail documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shali irsclude the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was rmanced under a Contract with the Stale
of New Hampshire. Department of Health end Human Services, wiih funds provided In part
by the Stale of New Hampshire end/or such other funding sources es were evailabte or' ■
required, e.g.. the United States Department of Healih and Human Services.

14. Prior Approve! ond Copyright Owne.rehlp; All materfals (wrinen. video, oudlo) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from OHHS before pnnting, production,
distribution or use. The OHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce eny materials produced under the contractwilhoul
prior written approval from OHHS.

15. Oporetion of Fecilitiea: Compiianco with Lows end Rogulationo; In (he operation of any facilities
for providing sen/lces. ihe Contractor shall comply with ell laws, orders and regutalions of federal,
slate, county end municipal euthorilies ar>d with any direction ol any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws wtuch shall impose en order or duty upon the coni/acipr with respect to (he
operetion of the facility or the provision of Ihe services at such fadlity. If eny governmental license or
permit shall be required lor the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services.
Ihe Contractor svill procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms ond
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the loregolng roquiroments. (he
Contractor hereby covenonts and ogroos that, during the term of (his Conlracl Ihe faciHties shall
comply with at) rules, orders, regulations, ond roquircmenls of (ho Stole Office ol the Fire Mershol and
tho local fire protection ogency. end shall be in conlormencc with tocal building and zoning codes, by
laws end regulations.

16. Equal Employmoni Opportunity Plan (EEOP); The Contractor will provide on Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR). II It has
received a single award of S500.000 or more. II the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has SO or
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more empioyees. il will maintain a current EEOP on Hie and submit an EEOP Certirication Form to the
OCR, certifying (hat Its EEOP Is on nie. For recipients receiving less than S25,000. or public grantees
with fewer than 50 .employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient wiU provide an

• EEOP Ccrli/icaiion Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Won-
profit organizations,-Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certificaUon form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at; http:/^^^%^v.ojp.u.sdo)/about/ocr/pd(s/cert.pdf.

17. Limited Engltoh Proficiency (LEP); As clarified by Executive Order 13166. improving Access to
Services (or persons with Limited Er>glish Proficiency. ar\d resulting agency guidance, nationalorlgin
discrimination ir^cludes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP).- To ensiire
compliance with (he Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of ipdd and Title Vi of the Civil
Rights Act of 1864. Coni/ectors must toko raosonabla steps to ensure that LEP persons hove
meaningful access to its programs.

16. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Emptoyoe Whlstloblower Protections: The
following shall apply to ell contrecis that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined In 46
CFR 2.101 (currently. J150.000)

•  Contractor Empvoyee WHiSTiEetoweR Rights ano Reooirement To inform £upt.0Y66s of

Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees worlung on (his contract will be subject to (he whistleblower rights
orid remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 tJ.S.C. 4712 by section 626 ol the National Oolenso Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contraclor shall inform its employees in writing. In the predominant language of (he workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described in section
3.008 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation'.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the subsiance of this clause, including this paragraph (c). in ell
subconiracts over the sinipliricd acquisition threshold.

16. Subcontrectorc: OHHS recognizes thai the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility end accountability lor the functicXs). Prior to
subcorrlracliog. the Contraclor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
funciion{s). This Is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies aclivliios and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performarKO is not adequate. Subconi/actors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as (he Contractor end the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evoluole the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the ectivtties, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have e written agreement.with the subcontractor that specifies ecUvilics andreporting
rosponsib'litios and how sanciions/reyocalion will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor tho subcontrector's performence on an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to OHMS en annual schedule identifying all subcdniraeiors, delegated tunctionsend
responsibilities, er^ when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed -

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor idenlirtes deficiencies or areas for improvement are idenlifred. (he Contracior'shall

take corrective action.

20. Contrect Doftnltfone:

20.1. COSTS: Shall mean those direcl and indirect iioms of expense determined by the Dopartmenl
to be eliowsbte and reimbursoble in sccordence with cost and accounting piSnciplos esieblishod
in accordance with state and.federal laws, rogulations. rules and orders.

20.2. DEPARTMENT: NH Deparlmeni of Health and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL; II applicable, shall mean the document submined by the Contractor on a'
form or forms roQutred by the Department and containing a description of the services and/or
goods to be provided by the Contractor (n accordance with (he terms and conditions of the
Cont/aci and setting forth the lolat cost and sources of revenue for each service lb be provided
underihe Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals herounder. shall
meen (hat period of time or that specified activity determined by (he Oepartmenl'o'nd-specified
in Exhibit B of the Contract.

20.5. FEOERAL/STATE l^W: Wherever federal or slate la^. regulations, rules, orders, and
• policies, etc. ere referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean
ell such lews, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or revised from time to time.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Conlraclor under this
Contract will r>ol supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C - Spodfll Provlsioni Con(mclor inlUoi}
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REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

/

1. RevUiona to Form P-37. Genoral Provisions

t.i. Seclion 4, Cbodilional Nature ol AQfeamenl ts'replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGf^EEMENT. '

Notsvilhslsndtng any provision of this Agreement io the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitaUon, (he continuance of payments, in whole or in pan,
ur^er this Agreement are contingent upon continued epproprialion or avaiiabitiiy of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the opproprtotlon or evaiiabiilty ol funds effected by
any steto or federet legislative or executive ecI>on (hat reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modiftes (he appropriation or availebiiiTy of furvding for this Agreement end (he Scope of
Servtcas provided in Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in whole or In part. Ir^ no event shaD the
Stale be liebte for any payments hereunder in excess of appropn'aled or available fi/nds. In
(he event of a reduciion, termination or rhodification of appropriated or available funds, (he
S(aie shati have (he right (o withhold payment until such funds'become eveilabte. if ever.
The Slate shall have the right to reduce, (erminaie or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Conlracior notice of such reduction.. termtnaiicn or
modiricabon. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or
account into the Account($) identified in blocX 1.6 of the General Provisions. Account
Number, or any other account in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10, Termination. Is amended by adding the following language:

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement el any time (or any reason, at the sole discretion ol.
the Slalo. 30 days after giving the Coniractor wrinen nolice that the State is exerdsing its
-option to terminate the Agreement.

to.2 In the event of early termination, (he Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
/' termination, develop end submit to the Stale a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement, including but not limited to. idenlitying the present end future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Controctor shall futty cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transilion Plon including, but not limited to. any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Trensiiion Plan
end shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Tronsilion Plan to the Stale

, as requested.

10.4 In (he event that services under (he Agreement, including but not limited to c'ienls receiving
services under the Agreement ere tronsliioned to having services delivered by another
entity including contracted providers or (he State, the Contractof shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Tronsilion.Pian.

10.5 The Contrector shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
aboul the transition. The Conl/actor shall include the proposed communications .in its
Transition Plan submitted to the Stale as described above.

2. Ronowel

2.1. The Department reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to two (2) additional years.
conDrtgeni upon satisfoclory delivery of services, available funding, wrinen agroornani of the
parties end approval of the Govemor and Executive Couricil.

EiNbJtC-l-R«>1uonarEKC«o:>aniioSun4arx}ConlaioUnQu<04 ContnOor lv<tb)>
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ORUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor idenliiied in Section 1.3 of the Gene'el Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Orug-FreeWodipiace-Aci of 1986 (Pub. L. tOO-690. Title V. Subtitle 0;4i
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). and further agrees to have the Cor^tractors representaiive. as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certirealion:

At.TERNATIVE I • FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INOfVIOUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS'

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certificatbn is required by the regulations implementing Sectior>5 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
WorVplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle 0; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were emended end published as Part II of (he May 25. 1990 Federal Register (pages ■
21681-21691). and require certirication by grantees (and by inference, sub-granlees arid sub
contractors). prior to award, thai they will maintain e drug-free workplace. Section 30l7.63D(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees end sub<ontractors) that is a Slate
may elect to make one certification to the Oeparlment in each fodera! fiscal year In lieu of certlficales for
each grant during the federal Tiscal year, covered by Iho cedificdlicn. The certificate set out below is o ■
malehal representation of fad upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. Falsa
cerlificalion or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debannenl, Contractors using this form should
send 11 lo:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Sarvlces
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The granloa certifies that it will or witt continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a sletement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a conlrotled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the oclions thai will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;'

1.2-. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program lo inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The gronlee's policy ol maintaining 0 drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, lehabilitation, end employee assislance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for daig abuse vblation's

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making il a requiremenl that each employee to be engaged io the performance of the grant be

given o copy of the stalemeni requlied by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the slalemenl; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer In writing ol his or her conviclioh (or e violation ol a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workptace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying Iho agency in writing, wilhin ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagreph 1.4.2 from en employee or otherwise receiving actual nolice of such conviction.
Employers of convicled employees must provide nolice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whoso grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

EjtfJaii 0 - Cenificallon fcgarding Ofu® Fret Vendor inlUala
W0(tci»C«RCQwlfem«rtl1 or\4rv
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has designated a cenirai point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one^of the foilowing ections. within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
aubparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropfiale personnel action.egainst such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilclalion Act of 1973, as
emended: or

1.6.2. Requiting such employee lo panicipole setlslaclorily In a drug abuse osslstetKO or
rehabilhetion program approved for such purposes by o Federal. State, or loco! I^eahh,
taw enforcement, or other epproprioie egency;

1.7. Making 8 good failh offort to coniinua lo rnsintain a drug-free workplace through
implemantationofparagraphsl.l, 1.2,1.3.1.4,1.6. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the siie($) for the performance of work done in
connection with the speciHc grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, slate, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there ara workplaces on file that are not idanliried here.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, Inc.

—May 29, 2019— yg ^ m e ryt jJ
Maureen Beauregard 0 ^

T'"®- President

ExWbtl 0 - Ccrti-lMllort rogsrdlng Ofvo F«o« Vertdor Inlililijf ^
WorVjUee RoQulrementi '
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CERTIFICATION REGAROING LOBBVING

The Vendor idenlirted in Section 1.3 of ine General Provisions agrees lo comply with (he provisions ot
Section 319 of Public Lew IOt-121. Governnrtenl wide Outdance lot New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. >352, and further agreea to have the Cortlractor'a representative, as identified.In Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following CertiHcation:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US OEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate eppiicebie program covered):
'Temporary Aitistanca to Neady Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Tilte IV-0
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medlcaid Program under Title XIX
'Ccmmunily Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated lunds have been paidor wiil be paid by or on behalf cl the undersigned, lo
ar\y person (or influencing or attempting (6 influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee ol Congress, or an employee ot a Member of Congress in
connection vriih the awarding of any Federal conirect. contir^uation..renewal, amendment, or
modificslion of any Federal contract, greni. loan, or cooperative agreement (end by specific mention
sub-grantee or sutxontractor). 1

2. If any funds Other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person (or
influencing or etiempting to influence en officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (ar^d by'specrfrc mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the unders'gned shall complete end submit Standard Form LLL. (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in eccordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language ol this certification be includod in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, end contracts under granls.
loans, end cooperotivo agreements) end that sub-recipienls shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certificaiion is a material represenlalion of foci upon which reliance was placed when this Iransaclion
was made or entered Into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering Into this
Iransaclion imposed by Section 1352, Title 3i, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file (he required
certrficetion shall be subject lo a civil penalty of not less (han 310,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, Inc.

May 29. 2019 ./n,. fi
Date Namb: Maureen Beauregafd ̂

Presidenl

EjeiTbtl E - CeninuUan Regarding Lobbying Vendor iniilah
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CERTIFICATION REGARDiNG OEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MAHERS

The Vendor identified in Section V3'cf the CenerQl Provisions agrees lo comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of Ihe President. Executive Order 12S49 end 45 CFR Pert 76 regarding Oebarmont.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees lo have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections, t.tt end 1.12 of Ihe Generel Provisions execute the foJlowtng
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. 6y signing end submitting this proposal (contract), the prospectivo primary pahicipdnt is providing the

cedificaiion set out below.

2. The inability of a person lo provide the cehificalion reoui/ed below will not necesserity result in denial
of parlicipalion In (his covered transaction. It necessary, the prospective participant shall submit en
explanation of why K canriol provide Ihe cedificetion. The certification or explenalion win be
constdered in connection wilh Ihe NH Department of Health and Human Services' (OHHS)
delermination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary'
participant to furnish e eertificolion or en explanation shall disqualify such person from parlicipatiorv in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material rep/esenlolion of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to ont'cr into this iransectiori. If it is later determined (hat the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered on erroneous certification, In addition lo other remedies.
Qvailable to (ho Fedcrol Government, OHHS may terminate this transaclion for cause or defautl.

4. The prospective primary participant shell provide immediaie written notice lo the OHHS agency lo
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at eny time Ihe proapect've primary participant teams
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason ot changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction," 'debarred,' 'suspended.* 'ineiigiblo.' 'lower tier covered
trartsacticn.' 'parllcipant.* 'person.' 'primary covered transaction.' 'prirKipal.* 'proposal.* and
'voluntarily excluded,* as used in this clause, have the meanings set but in the Oofindions and
Covorage sections of the rules implemenling Eieculive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See tho
Ghached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (coniract) that, should the
proposed covered transoction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter Into any lower tier covered
transaclion wilh a person who is dabarrod, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from padicrpation In this covered transaction, unless authorized by OHHS.

7. The prospecirvo primary participant further ogtoes by submitting this proposal thai 'rt will include tho
clause titled 'Certification Regarding Dcbarment. Suspension. Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion
Lower Tier Covered Transactions.' provided by OHHS. without modrficalion. In all lower tier covered
transacfions and in ell sollcitalions for lower tier covered transactions.

B. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lowar tier covered transaction that it Is noi debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily oxctuded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that (he certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it dotormines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is nol required to. checti the NonprocuremonI List (of excluded parties).'

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed lo require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good feilh the certification required by (his clause. The knosvtedge end

EtftlbU f - C«i1trtu'Jon RegtrclAg 0<barmcrM. 5u3pcni<on VcfltfO' InrOAlj
And Oihc' RbipQrufbQity Manen
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is itormally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of busir>ess dealings.

10. Except for Uansections authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction Knowingty enters into a lower Her covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or volunlarBy excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal Qovemmeni. DHKS may terminate this Iransaclion
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certlHes to the best of its knowledge and belief, (hat it and its
principals:
11.1. ere not prosenlly debarred, auspendod. proposed for debarmeni.-declared Ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactbns by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding (his proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

e civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a crimir\al offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or perfonming e pubiic (Federal. State or local)
tran&aclior> or a contract under a public Itansaclior); v'rolalion of Federal or State enllirust
statutes or commission of embozzlcment. (heft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false slatcments, or receivirtg stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of (his certiricalion;' and

11.4. have not whhin a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. State or local) terminaied for cause or defauli.

12. Where (he prospoctivo primary participant is urubto to certify to any of (he statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

lower tier covered transactions
13. By sign'ng end submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certrTies to tho bast of its knowiedge and belief (hat it end its principals:
13.1. are not presonlty debarred, susperded. proposed for dobarmenii declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded frorn participation In'lhis transaction by ariy federal department or egency.
13.2. where (he prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to ony of the obove, such

prospective perticlpant shall attach an explanation to this propose) (contract).

14. The prospective tower Her participant further agrees by submitting (his proposal (contraci) that it will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Oebarment. Suspension, inetigibility. end
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions.* without modification in ell lower tier covered
transaclions and in all soliciiatlons for lower tier covered transactions.

VervJof Name; FIT/NHNH, Inc.

May 29,2019 iV /X
ate Norric: Maureen Beaureaard 1/Dote Norrfc: Maureen Beauregard

President

F - CenificatJon Regtrriing Oct^armenl. Smpenslon Vendor lAillabj
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CCRTtFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WiTH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FCOERAL NQNDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASEO ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor identiriod in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
represenlatrve as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of ihe General Provisions, to execute the following
cerlirtcalion;

Vendor will comply, end will reguire any subgraniaes or subcontractors to comply, with any opplicoblo
federal nondiscriminalion requirements, which may include:.

• the Omnibus Crtma Control ond Sofa Siroois Act ol 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3769d} which prohibits

rocipients of federal funding under (his statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or ber>en]s. on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, end sex. The Act
requires cerlein recipients to produce en Equal Emptoymenl Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Aci of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section S672(b}) which edopis by ■
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Sate Streets Act. Recipients of federei funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practicdS or in the delivery of services or
benefds, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements:

. (he Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federe) rmenciet
assisiance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

• the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to emptoymenl and'Ihe delivery of
services or benerds, in any program or activity:

• the Americans with DisQbiiilies Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public occommodations. commercial facilities, end transportation:

• the Educc.lion Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1661. 1663. 16BS-86). which prohibits
discrimination on (he basis of sex in federally essisled education programs;

• the Age Discrirhinalion Act of l975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of. age in programs or aclivilies receiving Federal rmanclal assistance. II does noi include
emptoymenl discrimination;

•• 28 C.F.R. pi. 31 (U.S. Deparlmenl of Justice Regulations - OJJOP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pi. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulelions - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
end Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the taws for foiih-based and community
organizations): Executive Order No. 13559. which provide fundamental principles end policy-making
criteria lor partnerships wilh failh-based and neighborhood organizations:

- 28 C.F.R. pi. 38 (U.S. Deparlmenl of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatmoni (or Faith-Based
Organizations); end Whtslleblower protections 4.1 U.S.C. §4712 and The Notional Defense Authorization
Act (NdAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. I.. 112-239. enacted January 2. 2013) Iho Pilol Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistiebiower Protections, which prelects employees ogoinsi
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection wilh loderal grants end contracts.

The codificate set out below is o material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when (he
agency awards the grant. False cedirication or violation of the certincaiion shell be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarmeni,

Etf^briG
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or Slate adminislralive agency makes a findirvg ol
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion. netior>al origin, or sex
against a recipient ol funds, the recipient will forward e copy of the rir>ding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting ageixy or division whhin the Oepertmeni of.Healih and Human Services, end
to the Oepartment of HeaRh and Hurnan Services Office of the Ombudsnian.

The Vendor identiried in Section 1.3 of the Genoral Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, lo execute the following
certification:

I. By signing arid submitting (his proposal (contract) the vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated ebove.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, Inc.

r.e.(7eA.May?9 2Q19 . { ' CdnfTi
Gate Name! Maureen Beauregard ^

President

ErhtXlG
Vendor inltlab,

Cwt9crt0%c(C»Ti^Ww««17t>»4awn*ra pwWrtr<gwr*owffe>4MiMi%t1an.
•rd ereudoi*
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Lew 10^227, Pert C • Environmeote) Tobacco Smolte, eiso known as (ho Pro-Children Act of'1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of heatth. day care, education,
or library servicaa to children under the age of 16. if (he services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through Stale or local governments, by Federal grant, conlract. loan, or loan guarantee. The

'law does not epply to children's services provided in private residences, focilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, end portions of facilities used for inpatieni drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary' penalty of up to
ilOOO per day eno/pr the imposition of an adminlsireiive corr^iience order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the GenerelProyisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representaiivo as identified in Section i.li and 1.12of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submlRing this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
ell applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C. known.as the Pro-Children Acl of 1994..

Vendor Name: Flt/NHNH, Inc.

May 29.2019

Maureen Beauregard
President

Emrtiii H - Ccrtlficstlon Rtflsffllnp VenOw InlUsl
Eovtroivnenal Tobecca Smoke

cuowttnionj Pope 1 of i Date May 29 2Q19
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Vendor Identified in Seclior> 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of lf>dividually IdentiHable Health Information. 45
CFR Parts '160 and 164 applicable to business essociales. As defined herein, '3u$ir\es$
Associate* shall mean the Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor (hat receive,
use or have access to protected health Information under (his Agreement and 'Covered Entity'
shall mean (he State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Senrlces.

(1 Peflnitlons.

'Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach* in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity* has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 ol Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Desionated Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set*
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data AQoreoation' shall have the same meaning as Ihe term 'data aggregation* in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care Operations' shall-have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations"
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
. Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D. Pad 1 S 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

'HIPAA' means the Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards lor Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Informalion, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

I. 'Individual' shall have the same meaning as Ihe term 'individual* in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include e person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 154.501(g).

j. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually identifiable Heallh
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA.by the United Slates
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health tnformaHon' shall have the seme meaning as the term 'protected heallh
information' in 45 CFR Section 160.103. limited to the Information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3^2014 EjcMDll I Vendor lAlUllt
Meallh inaurance PorUMliry Aci
euiirtcat AaiocJaie AgreetTtam

Paga iQlO Dale May 29. 2019
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I. 'ReQuifed by Law' shall have the same meaning as the term Vequired by lav/ In 45 CFR
Section t64.103.

m. 'Secretary' shall mean the Secretary of ihe Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

f>. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Elecironic Protected
Health lnformatior> a! 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. and artiendmenls thereto.

0. 'Unsecured Protected Health information' means protected health Information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health Information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthoriied individuals and is developed or endorsed by
8 standards developirtg organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.'

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
-established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160. t62 and 164. as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH .

Act.

(2) Business Associate Uae and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

8. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibil A'of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
(Is directors, officers, employees and agents, shali not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI In any manner that would conslltule a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use-or disclose PHI; .
I. For the proper managemenl and administration of the Busirtess Associate;
II. As required by law. pursuant to Ihe terms set forth in paragraph d..below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for.the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI wilt be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (il) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordarrce with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Noliricallon
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PH). to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure Is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on (he basis that it is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/70H ExMbiil Vend0( inlllili
Heetih Injjrince PorUWity AO
Bujlncij AjioUllO AoKemenI

Pt0e2o(ft Daift May 29. 2019
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing thie PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all,
remedies.

e. • (f the Covered Entity nolines the Business Associate (hat Covered Entity has agreed (o
be bound by addi^onal restrictions over and above (hose uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additiortal restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any addilional security safeguards.

(3) ObtlQatlons and Actlvltlea of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. ' The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of (he above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to;

0  The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-ideniificalion;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health Information or to whom the
disclosure was'made:

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
o The extent to which (he risk to (he protected health information has been .

mitigated.
\  '

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of (he
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment In writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all seclions of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or xreated or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule,

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates thai receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions end conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, irtcluding
(he duty (o return or destroy (he PHI as provided under Section 3 (1). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Coniraclor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's Intended business associates, who will be recelvlna-PHI

V70I4 ExMblil iniilai
Kealih iiuurinu Po<tabl]lty Aci
Busincst Astodale A^'eamcni
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pursuant lo this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from' such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph 013 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health Information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during norrnal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies ar>d procedures relating lo the use and disclosure
ol PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes Qf.enabtir>g Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving e written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an Individual in order to meet the
.requirements under 4$ CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amerKfment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available lo Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI In accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounling of disclosures with respecl lo PHI in accordance vnth 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HiPAA and the Privacy and Security Rute. the Business Associate '
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered .Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by (he Business Associate in connection with (he
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed (0 in
the AgVeement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes (hat make the return or destruction infeasible. for so long as Business^y^^

MOU ExMWII Vertd<y
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, (he Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

M) ObllQatlons of Covered EntiN

a. Covered Entity shall notify' Business Associate of any changes or limliation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in eccprdance with 45 CFR Section
1&4.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly rtotify Business Associete of eny changes in. or revocation
of permission provided'to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 4S CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that-such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(6) Termlnetton for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P*37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may cither immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timelrame specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(S) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reoutatorv References. Ail terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to lime. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to Include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to lake such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered,
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and

- Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has" no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shell be rcsojved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

3r20U EiNUll Ven(]or tniUili
Health ImuriAce PontbUity-Ad
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Segreoation. If any term or condilion of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
pefS0n(8) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit 1 regardir^g the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement In section (3) I. the
defense end indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Oeponment of Health and Human Services

>lale

FIT/NHNH. Inc.
Name of the Venc

■"^igrfature of Authorized ReprasCTtaliveSignature of AuthcrlzM RepresenrattTS -^igrfature of Authorized Reprasi

P.|/^ f 1 ^ Q Maureen Beaureqard
Name of Authorized Representative ■ Name of Authorized Representative

Pfesident
Title of Authorized Representative

SDale £U4
Title of Authorized Representative

May?9
Dale

3/J0I4 &mci(i I
Health lMuriiAC4 FonabUlry Act
OuilrAti AjjocTale Aafeemer*!

Plje 8 or a
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CERTIFtCATlON REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTA8IUTY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT (FFATAICOMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding AccouniebilHy and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees ol individual
'Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 end awarded on or after October 1. 2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants ol $25,000 or more. If (he
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal lo or over
$25.000,. the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the dale of the award.
In eccordar>ca with'2 CFR Part 170 (Roponing Subaward and Executive Compensation Infomialton), the
Oeparimeni ol Health ar>d Human Services (OHHS) must report the following infomiaiion for any
subaward or contract award subjecl'to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Fundir>9 agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique idenlifier of the entity {OUNS P)
10. Total compensation and names of iho top five executives if:

10.1.- More than 60Va of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $2SM annually and

10.2. Compensalion information is not already available through reporiirvg to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients musi submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
(he award or award emeridmeni is made.

The Vendor identified in Section l .3 of ihe General Provisions agrees lo comply with tho provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Lew 109*282 end Public Lew 110-252.
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensalion Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certiricalion;.
The below named Vendor egrees to provide needed Information as outlined above to the NH Department
of Health and Human Services and to compty with all applicable provisions of th'e Federal Financial
Accountability and TransparerKy Act.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH. Inc.

,  (Vl?y 29.2919 ffhacU/l
Dale Narfto: Maureen Beauregaro ^

Tlile: President

m.Etrtisn i - Ccnji1c4iion mo FcCcrti Fundi/tg Vendor Initiali.
AoownieWiity And T/aftsp»/mcy Act (FFATaj CompCance
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FORMA

As (he Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify (hat the responses to (he
below listed questions ere true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for vour enlrtv is: 82S36Q399

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (t) 80 percent or more ot your annuel gross revenue in U.S. fedoral contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative ogreemonts; arid (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts. subcor)tracts. loans, grants, subgrants. and/or
cooperative egreements?

NO YES

If the answer to d2 obova is NO. stop here

If the answer to 02 above is YES, please answer the foitowing;-

3. (3oes the public have access to informaiicn about the compensation o( the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.$.C.76m(e).'-7^(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code ot
1986?

NO YES

If tho answer to 03 above is YES. slop here

If the answer to 03 above Is NO. please answer the following:

The names and compensetion of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows;

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name;

Name:

Amount;

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

cuo»*o/Me7t)

EmlDii J - Ceniftcailon Regordlnp (he Federel Funding
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DHHS information Security Requirements

A. Oefcniilons

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document;

1. *Bre8Ch* means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for en other then

authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identinable
informalion. whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health •
Information.' Breach* shall have the same meaning es the term 'Breach* In section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security Incident* shall have the same meaning 'Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NISI Publication 800-61. Computer Security incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards end,Technology. U.S. Department
of,Commerce.

3. 'Confidential Information* or 'Conftdenlial Data* means all confidential Information

disclosed by one party to the. other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and persor\dl information including wlhout limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Ideniifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services -. of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
stale or federal law or regulation. This Informalion, includes, but is not limited to
Prolecled Health Information (PHI), Personal Informalion (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Informalion (FTj). Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User' means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,

business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives •
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA* means the Health Insurance Portability end Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "(ncident' means an act that poleniiaity violates an explicit or implied securliy policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for (he-processirtg or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characleristics without the owner's knowtedge. Instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and mlsrouling of physical or electronic

fMivs. Latt updile lO^Vta EtMbilK Coni/sctiy InSlials
OHKS tntonrutiO'^
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. 'Open Wireless Network' means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Oepartment of Information
Techr>ology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by meens of the Slate, to transmit) will bo considered on open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or conndential DHHS data.

8. 'Personal Information* (or 'PI*) means information which can be used to distinguish
'or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security nurtiber, personal .
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19. biomelric records, etc..
atone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or iinkebte to'a specific individual, such as date and'place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

9. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information et 45.C.F.R. Parts 160 end 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Oepartment of Health and Human Services.

10. 'Protected Health Information' (or 'PHI') has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of 'Protected Health Information' In the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protedion of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subpart .C, and amendments
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health information' means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by e technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuats and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization (hat is accredited by

f  the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A.. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor musi not use. disclose, maintain or Iransmit Conndenlial Informalion
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor,
including but not limitod'to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must no\
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner.ihat would conslltute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contraclor musl not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
I

vs. Lod updalO tCVOSnS EiMbilK ' Conlracior InAlA
OHHS Inloonolion
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request for disclosure or> the basis that it is required by law, in response I9 a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying OhHS 'so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notiHes the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional

restrictions over end above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHi
' pursuant to the Privacy end Security Rule, the Contrector must bo bour>d by such
additional restrictions and must no! disclose PHI in violation of 'such additional

restrictions end must abide by. any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees (hat DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuanl to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for.
any other purposes that are no! indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Conlrecl.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Coniraclor abesls (he applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and (hat said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet. .

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as e method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3.' Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypied and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such Information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User Is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data-, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google. Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via cart/'//ed ground
mall within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices musi be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ e virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile devlce(s) or laptop from whict^ information will be
transmitted or'accessed. .

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). olso known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If

End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privjieges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders end sub-folders used for transmitting Cor\ndential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices, if End User is transmitting ConHdeniial Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information..

(II. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data aixl any
derivative In whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention'

•  1. The Contractor, agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with tha services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data end Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events thai can impact State of NH systems
and/or Departmeril confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain oil electronic end hard copies of Conridenilal Data
in a secure location and idenlifted in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers .and devices must have
currently-supported end hardened operating systems, the latest entiyviral. enii-
hacker. anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anli-mafware utilities. Tha environment, as a
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whole, musl have aggressive Inlrusior^-deleclior^ and firewall prolectlon.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures Its complete cooperation with the Slate's
. Chief information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

6. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will mainlain any Confidential Information on. Its systems (or its
sub*contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or coniracl termination; end will
oblain written certification for any Stale of New Hampshire data destroyed by the

-  • Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitizalion. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for. example,
degaussing) as described in NiST Special Publication 800-88. Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanitizalion, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify, in writing at
time of the data destrucliorij^and wit) provide svritten certification to the Department
upori request. The written certification will Include ali details necessary to
demonslraie data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for releniion requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the Stale and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy ell hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Coniract. and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will mainlain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored In the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will mainlain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential iriformalion throughout the information lifecycle. where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage end secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e.. (ape. disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor wll) maintain appropriate, authentication and- access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Oeparimenl confidential information
where appticeble.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In place to
detect potential security events thel can Impact State of NH systems end/or
Department conridentlal Information for contractor provided ayeteme.

5. The Coniraclor will provide regular security awareness and educalion (or its End.
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for Stale of New Hampshire, (he Contractor will maintain a
progrem of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Coniraclor. including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Oepartrhent to sign and comply with all-applicable-
State of New Hampshire and Oeparimenl system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as pan of

•  obtaining and maintaining access to any Oepanment system(sT Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103. the Contractor will execute a HiPAA Business Associate Agreement

,  (BAA) with the Department and is responsible for rr^aintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Oeparimenl at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey Is to enable'the Department and

. Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over (he life of (he Contractor engagement.- The survey will be completed
ennuaity. or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreemerit by
the Contractor, or the. Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement befween the Departmont and the Coritractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any Stele of New Hampshire
or Oepartmoni data offshore or outside the boundaries of the-United States unless
prior express written consent Is obtained from the Information Security Offrce
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. Ir^ the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of (he breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach end minimize any damage or loss resulting from (he breach.
The Slate shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach. includinQtut not limited to; credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated wilh website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all appiicebie statutes end regutations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, -end must in el) other respects
maintain ihe privacy and Bacurity of PI and PHI ot a ieval ond scope (hat is not less
than Ihe level and scope of requirements applicable to federei egencies. Including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), OHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Paris 160 and 164) that govern protections for Individually identifiable health
information and as apptlcabfe under Slate law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized Vse or access to it. The safeguards must provide o level end
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the Stale of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement al https:/Avww.nh.Qov/doityvendor/index.htm
for (he Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information /elating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer end the
Stale's Security Officer of any socuriiy breach immediately, al the dmait addresses
provided in iSeclion VI. This includes a confidential Information breach, computer
security Incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any Slate of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire networli.

15. Contractor must restrict access to (he Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such OHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified In this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that ell End Users:

a. comply wilh such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above.
Imptemenied to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by OHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. sefeguard this infonmation at all limes.

c. ensure thai laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI. or
PFl ere encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and baing
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Conridenllal information to the extent permined by law.

f. Conridentidl Information received under this Contract and individually
Identifiable date derived from OHHS Data, must be stored fn an ares (hat is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
b'omotric Identifiers, etc.).

g. only euthorized End Users may transmit the Conridentia) Data, including any
derivative files containing personally idenlinabte information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or svhen
stored on podabie media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other, mstances Conridentiat Data must be maintained, used end
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. OHHS
resenres the right to conduct onsiie inspections to monitor compliance with (his
Contract. Including the privacy and security requirements provided In herein. HIPAA.
and other epplicabie laws and Pederai regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the Stale's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents end Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI In
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures end in accordance sviih 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 • 305. In addition to. and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with el) applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will;

1. idenlify Incidents;

2. Determine il personally identifidbte ir^formation is Involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37:

4. Identify and convene a core response group lo determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based rosponsss to Incidents; and

VS. Last updola tCVOft'lS Etftlbii K Conmcto'inlOeh
OHHS InlormatloA

SccwrtryRoQutfwnanU
PapoflolS Dila MBV 29. 2019



DocuSign Envelope ID; B5550DA9-231&-4D93.8060-36BBCE95C71A

DocuSign Envelope 10: 6F8EF4FS-4A97^4A7.BSOB-006923EE4C63

New Hampshire Department o1 Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification Is required, end, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notirication methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associateij with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI musl be addressed end reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 3S9-C;20.

V\. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. OHHS Privacy Officer:

• DHHSPriv8cyOfftcer@dhhs.nh.gov

8. DHKS Security Officer;

DHHSInfofmBlionSecuriryOtflce@dhhs.nh.gov
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